
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 28, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your A genda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and st aff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added i nformation as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
March 28, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Stephen Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition or Special Presentations 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  No Postponed Items 2 



 

 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: 2 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 3 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 3 

I-4 Agreement Between City of Troy and the Troy Historical Society for Management 
of the Troy Museum and Historic Village 3 

I-5 Transfer of Animal Control Services to Oakland County 4 

a) Inter-Local Agreement – Oakland County Animal Impound Amendment ............. 4 
b) Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Services ............................................ 4 
c) Rescinding Chapter 75 – Pet Shops ..................................................................... 5 
d) Amendment to Chapter 90 – Animals ................................................................... 5 
e) Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required ...................................... 5 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 6 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder - Park Restroom and 
Picnic Shelter Cleaning......................................................................................... 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Greenstar & 
Associates, L.L.C. for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services ..................................... 7 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................... 7 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicle ................................................................ 7 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Lowest Bidder – Custodial 
Supplies ................................................................................................................ 7 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control 
Signs and Posts .................................................................................................... 8 



 

 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling and 
Disposal of Dirt and Debris ................................................................................... 8 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program .......................................................................................... 9 

J-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-
010 9 

J-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm Sewer and Surface Drainage 
from Gary F. and Brenda A. Abitheira - #88-20-02-129-023 9 

J-7 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from Woodside Bible 
Church of Troy - #88-20-02-151-005 10 

J-8 Request for Approval of Payment of BG’s LLC Relocation Claim – Rochester Road 
Improvement Project, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 30 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-277-027 10 

J-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #44 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011. 10 

J-10 Request to Sell a City Owned Surplus Parcel located in Section 10, Sidwell #88-
20-02-477-017 and Authorization to Hire an Independent Fee Appraiser 11 

J-11 Application for New Direct Connection-1 for The Neiman Marcus Group, Inc. 11 

J-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations 12 

J-13 Agreement Extension – Troy Community Center Catering Services 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 12 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 13 

a) Major Road Speed Limits: .................................................................................. 13 
b) Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 

2009 International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code ........................ 13 



 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted 13 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 13 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 13 

N. REPORTS 13 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Traffic Committee-Final-August 18, 2010 ........................................................... 13 
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 23, 2010 ..................... 13 
c) Library Advisory Board-Final-January 13, 2011 .................................................. 13 
d) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-February 8, 2011 ...................................... 13 
e) Planning Commission Regular-Final-February 8, 2011 ...................................... 13 
f) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-March 8, 2011 .......................................... 13 
g) Library Advisory Board-Draft-March 10, 2011 .................................................... 13 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft- March 14, 2011 ............................................. 13 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft- February 15, 2011 ............................................ 13 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final- February 15, 2011 ............................................ 13 

N-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – February 2011 ................ 13 
b) Three Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update .......... 13 
c) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 3/1/11 .......................... 13 
d) Update – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite ........................................ 13 
e) Report on Oakland/Macomb Job Hub 2011 ....................................................... 13 
f) Report on CMNtv Michigan Town Hall: State Budget Crisis ............................... 13 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted 13 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 14 

a) City of Huntington Woods Resolution Urging Regional Cooperation Regarding 
Detroit Water and Sewer Governance ................................................................ 14 

N-5  Implementation Schedule for Recommendations Advanced by the International 
City Management Association (ICMA) 14 

O. STUDY ITEMS 14 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 14 



 

 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 14 

P-1  Troy v. Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash) and Nancy Huntley Legal Guardian of Carolyn 
Huntley, a Protected Person v Troy, 14 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 14 

SCHEDULED REGULAR and SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: ................... 14 
Monday, April 4, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 14 
Monday, April 18, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 14 
Monday, April 25, 2011 (CM#2010-10-231Budget) Special Meeting ..................... 14 
Monday, May 2, 2011 (CM#2010-10-231Budget) Special Meeting ....................... 14 
Monday, May 9, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 14 
Monday, May 16, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 14 
Monday, June 6, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 14 
Monday, June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 14 
Monday, July 11, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................. 14 
Monday, July 25, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................. 14 
Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................. 14 
Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 14 
Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 14 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Stephen Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                    at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, March 28, 2011 due to                   . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition or Special Presentations 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a m ember of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if you 
do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with the 

majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five (5) 

minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a m ajority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to topics 
where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up t o speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments:  
 
a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following individual/s to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor - (9-Members) - 3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds Term Expires 12/31/2013 
 
Mark Maxwell Term Expires 12/31/2013 
 
Tom Krent Term Expires 12/31/2013 

 
Yes:       
No:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

 
b) City Council Appointments – None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Troy v Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash West); Nancy Huntley, 
Legal Guardian of Carolyn Huntley, a Protected Person v Troy. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-4 Agreement Between City of Troy and the Troy Historical Society for Management 

of the Troy Museum and Historic Village 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has owned and operated a museum of local and regional history, 
now known as the Troy Museum & Historic Village (Museum) since 1968; 
 
WHEREAS, The Museum has provided outstanding programs regarding everyday life in historic 
times and access to buildings and displays in a historical setting to thousands of school children 
and the public for the purpose of providing educational and enrichment opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Historical Society is a 501(c) (3) non-profit corporation incorporated in 1966 to 
support the formation of the City of Troy Museum with volunteer services and significant 
financial donations in its mission to assist the City of Troy in developing the Museum site; 
 
WHEREAS, Due to current economic conditions and budgetary constraints, City of Troy will no 
longer be able to keep the Museum open to the public after June 30, 2011;  
 
WHEREAS, It is the mission of both the City of Troy and Troy Historical Society is to continue to 
offer such outstanding historical programs and access to the collections of exceptional historical 
buildings to educate students and the public regarding our history;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and Troy Historical Society have entered into discussions 
regarding allowing THS to use and manage the Museum property without compensation from 
TROY except as set out in this Agreement; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

 
WHEREAS, The parties desire to enter into this Agreement to facilitate the mutual goals of the 
parties. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
proposed attached “Agreement by and Between the City of Troy and the Troy Historical Society 
For Use, Operation and Management of the Troy Museum & Historic Village” and authorizes 
the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreement of behalf of the City of Troy. A copy of 
the Agreement is ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Transfer of Animal Control Services to Oakland County 
 
a) Inter-Local Agreement – Oakland County Animal Impound Amendment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Amended Animal Care Center 
Services and Disposal Inter-Local Agreement with Oakland County. A copy of the Amended 
Agreement shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
And 
 
b) Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, 
Administrative Services of the Troy City Code, Section 3, Section 141 (3) and Section 141 (10), 
as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
And 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

 
c) Rescinding Chapter 75 – Pet Shops 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS Chapter 75, Pet Shops of the Troy City 
Code, as recommended by City Administration. A red lined copy shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
And 
 
d)  Amendment to Chapter 90 – Animals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 90, 
Animals of the Troy City Code, as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
And 
 
e) Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required of the Troy City Code, Section 60.04, Fee Schedule, as 
recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)                                         , 
which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of February 28, 2011 
b. Special City Council Meeting of March 21, 2011 

 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder - Park Restroom and Picnic 

Shelter Cleaning 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a seasonal contract to furnish all labor, 
equipment, and supplies to clean the City of Troy park restrooms and picnic shelters with an 
option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder, American Cleaning Company, 
LLC, of Macomb Township, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened on March 
2, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the 
contract expiring October 31, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor SUBMISSION 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Greenstar & 
Associates, L.L.C. for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On April 6, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a two (2) year contract for right-of-way 
services to Greenstar & Associates, LLC with an opt ion to renew for one ( 1) additional year 
(Resolution #2009-04-126); and 
 
WHEREAS, Greenstar & Associates, L.L.C. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the 
contract under the same terms and conditions as the original Agreement with a ten (10) percent 
reduction in the hourly rate to $70.78; and 
 
WHEREAS, The projects identified in Addendum “A” have been modified to remove right-of-
way services for the Rochester Road, Barclay to Trinway project;    
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to EXERCISE the option to RENEW its contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC 
to provide right-of-way services for a period of one (1) year, as amended, which expires on April 
7, 2012.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the First Amendment to the Agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase four (4) 2011 
Chevrolet Silverado 4X4 cabs and chassis from the low total bidder, Berger Chevrolet, Inc, of 
Grand Rapids, MI, through an O akland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an 
estimated total cost of $94,241.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicle 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase one ( 1) 2011 
Ford Expedition 4X4 from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, through a M acomb County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $27,767.50. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Lowest Bidder – Custodial Supplies 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year 
requirements of Custodial Supplies to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation, 
of Linden, NJ, at an estimated total cost of $15,662.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation dated February 23, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon the contractor SUBMISSION 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs and 

Posts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4f 
 
RESOLVED, that Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Traffic 
Control Signs and Posts on a proposal by proposal basis to the five lowest total bidders as 
follows: 
 

Bidders Proposal 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

Custom Products Corporation of Jackson, MS A, B, C, G, J and K $22,700.00 
Rathco Safety Supply, Inc of Portage, MI D and G $  1,900.00 
Rocal, Inc of Frankfort, OH E, F and G $  7,720.00 
Carrier & Gable, Inc of Farmington Hills, MI H $  5,620.00 
Dornbos Sign, Inc of Charlotte, MI I $  5,390.00 

 
At unit prices contained on the bid tabulation, which opened February 10, 2011, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring March 1, 
2012. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling and Disposal 

of Dirt and Debris 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4g 
 
WHEREAS, On April 5, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide Hauling 
and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the lowest 
total acceptable bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI (Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4b); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to RENEW the contract with Bedrock Express 
LTD of Ortonville, MI, to provide one-year requirements of Hauling and D isposal of Dirt and 
Debris under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring March 31, 2012. 
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance 

Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-4h 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for FY 2010/11 to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists Inc., of 
Pontiac, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2011, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which shall not 
EXCEED the budgetary amount of $90,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit, John R  Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-010 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Proposes between Elzbieta 
Strichick, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-230-010, and the City of Troy, for the 
acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard is APPROVED in the amount of $19,700, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary construction Permit in the 
amount of $300 from Elzbieta Strichick, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-230-010 is 
hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm Sewer and Surface Drainage from 

Gary F. and Brenda A. Abitheira - #88-20-02-129-023 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

Resolution #2011-03-     -J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for storm 
sewer and surface drainage, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Gary F. 
and Brenda A. Abitheira, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-02-129-023; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Acceptance of a P ermanent Easement for Water Main from Woodside Bible 

Church of Troy - #88-20-02-151-005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Woodside Bible Church of Troy, 
owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-02-151-005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-8 Request for Approval of Payment of BG’s LLC Relocation Claim – Rochester Road 

Improvement Project, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 30 – Sidwell 
#88-20-02-277-027 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-8 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Troy City Council 
hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from BG’s, LLC, pertaining to the City of Troy’s 
acquisition of property at 3545 Rochester Road, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$19,137. 
 
J-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake R oad to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #44 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes between Elizabeth 
Strichick, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011, and the City of Troy, for the 
acquisition of the property at 6695 John R for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard is APPROVED in the amount of $206,250, plus closing costs, plus 
$1,245.60 for loss of homeowner’s principle residence exemption; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-10 Request to Sell a City Owned Surplus Parcel located in Section 10, Sidwell #88-20-

02-477-017 and Authorization to Hire an Independent Fee Appraiser 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department is hereby AUTHORIZED to proceed with the 
process of selling a City-owned surplus parcel identified with Sidwell #88-20-10-477-017, and to 
RETAIN the services an independent fee appraiser licensed in the State of Michigan. 
 
J-11 Application for New Direct Connection-1 for The Neiman Marcus Group, Inc. 
 
(a) New Direct Connection-1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-11a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL The Neiman Marcus 
Group, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), for a New Direct Connection-1 to be held in conjunction 
with 2010 Class C and SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 2705 
West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #178061}; and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-11b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Neiman Marcus Group, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) for a New Direct Connection-1 
to be held in conjunction with 2010 Class C and SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit 
(Food), located at 2705 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Req. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

#178061} and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-12 
 
RESOLVED, That signage be INSTALLED directing all traffic to turn right when exiting the Tim 
Horton’s driveway (3331 Rochester Road) to southbound Rochester Road, and in the median 
area at the crossover. 
 
J-13 Agreement Extension – Troy Community Center Catering Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-     -J-13 
 
WHEREAS, On February 26, 2007, a contract to provide two-year requirements of Catering 
Services at the Troy Community Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional years was 
awarded to Sankofa Housing of Detroit, MI, as a result of a best value process at an 18% return 
on gross revenue expiring March 31, 2009 (Resolution #2007-02-058-E4d);  
 
WHEREAS, On January 26, 2009, the option to renew the contract with Sankofa 
Housing (aka A&S Catering)  was exercised to provide two-year requirements of 
Catering Services at the Troy Community Center Sankofa under the same pricing, terms 
and conditions to expire March 31, 2011 (Resolution #2009-01-025-F4c);  
 
WHEREAS, On February 24, 2011, new proposals were received for Catering Services 
at the Community Center which will include alcohol service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sankofa Housing (aka A&S Catering) has agreed to extend their current 
contract during the transitional period to a new catering service provider under the same 
terms and conditions as the Agreement dated January 13, 2009; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to EXTEND the contract with Sankofa Housing (aka A&S 
Catering) to provide Catering Services at the Troy Community Center during the 
transition to a new caterer under the same prices, terms and conditions as outlined in the 
Agreement Extension dated March 15, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
EXECUTE the Agreement Extension.    

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):  
a) Major Road Speed Limits: 

Square Lake, Adams to Dequindre 
Wattles, Adams to Livernois 
Coolidge, South City Limits to South Boulevard 
Rochester Road, South City Limits to Stephenson 

b) Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 
International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda  

L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Traffic Committee-Final-August 18, 2010 
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 23, 2010 
c) Library Advisory Board-Final-January 13, 2011 
d) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-February 8, 2011 
e) Planning Commission Regular-Final-February 8, 2011 
f) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-March 8, 2011 
g) Library Advisory Board-Draft-March 10, 2011 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft- March 14, 2011 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft- February 15, 2011 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final- February 15, 2011 
 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – February 2011 
b) Three Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
c) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 3/1/11 
d) Update – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite 
e) Report on Oakland/Macomb Job Hub 2011 
f) Report on CMNtv Michigan Town Hall: State Budget Crisis 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 28, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) City of Huntington Woods Resolution Urging Regional Cooperation Regarding Detroit 

Water and Sewer Governance 
 
N-5  Implementation Schedule for Recommendations Advanced by the International 

City Management Association (ICMA) 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Troy v. Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash) and Nancy Huntley Legal Guardian of Carolyn 
Huntley, a Protected Person v Troy,  

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 
 
SCHEDULED REGULAR and SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, April 4, 2011 ...................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 18, 2011..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 25, 2011 (CM#2010-10-231Budget) .......................................... Special Meeting 
Monday, May 2, 2011 (CM#2010-10-231Budget) ............................................ Special Meeting 
Monday, May 9, 2011 ....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 16, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 6, 2011 ...................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 20, 2011 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 11, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 25, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 8, 2011................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 22, 2011 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 29, 2011 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
 

 



bartholotl
Text Box
I-4

























































 
 

Date March 24, 2011 
 

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Transfer of Animal Control Services to Oakland County 
  
In response to the current budget challenges inherent in our three-year budget and the 
commensurate reductions in City Administration, animal control services, including dog 
licensing, will be transferred to Oakland County as of April 13, 2011. In order to meet this 
goal, there are a number of procedural steps that City Council must take. 
 

 The first step was an amendment of the dispatch, lock-up and animal control 
agreement with the City of Clawson, which was approved by Troy City Council on 
February 28, 2011 and subsequently approved by the Clawson City Council on 
March 1, 2011 (resolution attached). The Troy Police Department will continue to 
provide dispatch and lock-up services, in accordance with the amended agreement.

 The second step is an extension to the Inter-Local Agreement between the City of 
Troy and Oakland County for Impound Services. This amendment would cover 
impound services provided through April 13, 2011. The proposed amended 
agreement is attached. 

 The third step involves the following ordinance amendments to initiate the 
elimination of Troy’s animal care and control regulations, including dog licensing, 
which must happen prior to Oakland County assuming the duties. Troy resident dog 
owners will apply for licenses with Oakland County. Dog licenses or renewals can 
be purchased in person at the County facilities, by mail, or through a web based 
system. 

o Amend Troy City Ordinance, Chapter 3, Administrative Service, to facilitate 
this transition, by delegating animal control to the County. The proposed 
amendment also specifies that the City’s zoning officials will enforce the 
zoning based regulations concerning animals (Chapter 90-Animals). 

o Amend Troy City Ordinance, Chapter 75, Pet Shops, to rescind the Chapter 
entirely. The County could apply State Law to regulate pet shops in the city. 

o Amend Troy City Ordinance, Chapter 90, Animals, to delete many of the 
City’s animal care and control provisions, since the County will be applying 
State Law. However, the proposed amendment does not impact the 
provisions concerning animal excrement and domestic animal appeal 
permits which are retained and under the jurisdiction of the Housing and 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

bartholotl
Text Box
I-5



Zoning Inspector. 
o Amend Troy City Ordinance, Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds, to delete all dog 

licensing fees and impounds services fees. 
 
Oakland County is prepared to assume responsibility for the transfer of animal care and 
control in the City of Troy as of April 13, 2011. Immediately upon the approval of the 
ordinance amendments, the public education process will begin. 





bartholotl
Text Box
I-5a



















CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as a n amendment to Chapter 3 of the Code of 
the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Sections 1.141(3) and (10) are amended as follows:  
 
1.141(3)  A City of Troy Animal Control Officer shall have authority to issue and serve upon 

a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civ il Infraction notice of violation, 
and/or a M unicipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 
believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 26:   Parks - General Regulations  
 
Chapter 75:   Pet Shops  
 
Chapter 88:   Nuisances  
 
Chapter 90:   Animals  
 
Chapter 98.07.01:  Hunting  
 
Chapter 98.07.02:  Trapping  
 
Chapter 98.06.05:  Willfully and knowingly torture, etc., any dog used by the City 
of Troy Police Department.  
  
Chapter 106 § 8: Stopping, Standing and Parking Violations 
 
(Rev. 03-01-2006) 

 
 
1.141(10)  The Zoning Administrator, or his/her designee, a Housing and Zoning Inspector, 

and the Inspector Supervisor shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 
person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civ il Infraction notice of violation, 
and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citati on, if he/she has reasonable cause to 
believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-5b



Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 
 
  Chapter 34: Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches 
 
  Chapter 39: Zoning  
 
  Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
 Chapter 61: Temporary Merchant Business 
 
 Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
  Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 
 
  Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
 
  Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 

  
  Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses 

 
 Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 
 Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
 Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 
 Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  

 
 Chapter 83: Fences  

 
 Chapter 85: Signs  
  
 Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
 Chapter 90: Animals 

 
Chapter 93: Fire Prevention   

 
 Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 

 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities exis ting, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the ti me such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affec t, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal  regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 



of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosec utions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance, under and in  accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at 
the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
 Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or  section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effe ctive ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City C ouncil held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, ____. 

 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
  
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL 
CHAPTER 75 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as repeal of Chapter 75 of  the Code of the City 
of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Repeal 
 
Chapter 75 –Pet Shops shall be repealed in its entirety. 
 
1. Definitions: 
 
 (a) Pet Shop Defined: 
 
  A place where animals are sold or offered for sale, exchange or transfer.  This 

Ordinance is not applicable to the following: 
 
  (i)  Residence premises where animals sold or offered for sale, exchange or 

transfer are exclusively those animals  born and raised on t he premises or 
those animals owned by the transferring par ty and are not sold or offered for 
sale, exchange or transfer in the ordinary course of business; 

 
  (ii) duly organized humane societies; and  
 

(iii) duly authorized animal control departments. 
 
 (b) Animal: Any mammal except livestock as defined in  Act No. 284 of the Public Act of 

1937, as amended, being Sections 287.121 to 287.1 31 of the Michigan Compiled 
Laws of 1948. 

 
 (c) Animal Control Officer: The person or persons employed by the City of Troy as its 

enforcement officer(s). 
 
 (d) Animal Control Appeal Board : Consists of five mem bers appointed by the City 

Council for three overlapping terms. 
 
2. License Required: 
 

No person shall operate a pet s hop within the City of Troy without first obtaining a license.  
License application forms with a copy of this ordinance, will be available at the City Clerk's 
Office. License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City 
of Troy Code of Ordinances and must accompany each license application.  All existing 
establishments within the definit ion of Section 2(1)(a) must complete a license application 
within 30 days of the effective date of this Ordinance; existing establishments shall comply 
with the requirements of this Ordinance as any new license applicant. 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-5c



 
 (Rev. 03-17-03) 
 
 (a) Display of License : A valid license must be fr amed under glass and shall be 

prominently displayed in full view of the licensed premises.  Licensee's name must 
be plainly visible on the license.  The phone number of the Animal Control Officer 
must also be plainly visible. 

 
  (Rev. 11-14-1983) 
 
3. Inspection; Certification by Animal Control Officer: 
 

The applicant shall demonstrate that t he pet shop in question complies with all 
requirements of this Chapter.  The Animal Control Officer s hall conduct an inspection of 
applicant's premises. An application shall obtain cert ification by the Animal Cont rol Officer 
before his application is to be considered. 

 
4. Licensee's Duty to Comply with all Requi rements of this Chapter; Violation as 

Misdemeanor: 
 

A licensee must at all times comply wit h the requirements of this Ordinance.  The penalty 
for failure to comply may subject licensee to a fine of up to $500.00 and costs and/or 90 
days in jail.  Any sentence that may be imposed does not preclude t he City of Troy from 
taking any action to suspend and/or revoke the license in question. 

 
5. Licensee's Duty to Cease Operations during Period of Suspension; Revocation: 
 

During any period of suspension or revocati on, a licensee, anyone with a financial interest 
in licensee's business, any agent, employee, serv ant or officer of licensee shall not sell or 
offer for sale, exchange or transfer, any animal wit hin the scope of licensee's business.  A 
licensee's premises shall remain closed to members of the public.  Licensee must take 
whatever steps are necessary during any su spension or revocation period to meet the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

 
6. Animal Control Officer's Right to Impound Animals: 
 

The Animal Control Officer shall have the ri ght to impound any animal within the scope of 
licensee's business which has been mistr eated, abused, neglected or abandoned as a 
result of licensee's failure to comply with the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
Impounded animals shall be properly housed in a shelter for animals and confined in a 
humane manner. Animals must be reclaimed within a period of ten (10) business days; 
animals may be returned to licensee only after a pr oper showing of compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter.  Animals not returned to licensee within a period of ten (10) 
business days shall be humanely disposed of by the Animal Control Officer or by an 
agency delegated by him to exercise that authority.  Licensee shall remain responsible to 
the City of Troy for all costs or care, feeding and sheltering during any impound period, and 
costs of disposal, if any. 

 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 



7. Records: 
 

For each dog and cat sold or offered for sale, exchange or  transfer, licensee shall maintain 
records of the following: 

 
 (a) Health Certificate: A certificate in which a compet ent and duly licensed veterinarian 

attests to: the age, sex, breed and descrip tion of the animal, inc luding its color and 
approximate weight, and to the fact that at t he time of preparation of the certificate, 
the veterinarian examined the animal and found the animal to be free from 
detectable evidence of communicable disease. 

 
 (b) Proof of Requisite Inoculation: Inoculation Requirements - Dogs: A dog shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee or officer of a 
licensee unless the dog has been inocul ated against distemper, hepatitis, 
leptospirosis, para influenza, and  if indicated, has been treated for external and 
internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of Michigan. Proof 
of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee in the regular 
course of business and said records  made available for inspection by a potential 
purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Cont rol Officer, the Animal Control Appeal 
Board and any other duly authorized repr esentative of t he City of Troy.  Any dog 
sold, exchanged or transferred by a licensee, agent,  employee or officer of a 
licensee shall be accompanied by a Health  Certificate, as  described above, 
including records of the dog's medication and immunization. 

 
 (c) Proof of Requisite Inoculati on; Inoculation Requirements - Cats: A cat shall not be 

offered for sale, exchange or transfer by a licensee, agent, employee, officer of 
licensee, unless the cat has been inoc ulated against feline panleukopenia (cat 
distemper), rinotraecheitis, calicivirus es and if indicated, has been treated for 
external and internal parasites, not less than 7 days before entry into the State of 
Michigan. Proof of inoculation and any other treatment shall be kept by the licensee 
in the regular course of business and said records made available for inspection by 
a potential purchaser or purchaser, the Animal Control Officer, the Animal Control 
Appeal Board and any other duly authorized representative of the City of Troy.  Any 
cat sold, exchanged or transferred by a lic ensee shall be accompanied by a Health 
Certificate, as described ab ove, including records of the cat's medication and 
immunization. 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 
 (d) Name and address of the person from whom the animal was acquired. 
 
 (e) Date of acquisition. 
 
 (f) Name and address of the person to whom it was sold or otherwise disposed of. 
 
 (g) Date, Nature and  Method of Disposition : By sale, death, euthanasia, donation or 

other. 
 
  Said records shall be maintained by the licensee for a period of seven years from 

the date the animal was first acquired.  Said records shall be made av ailable to the 
City Clerk's Office, the Animal Control Office r, the Animal Contro l Appeal Board, or 
any other authorized represent ative of the City of Troy during regular business 



hours. 
 
8. Indoor Facilities: 
 
 (a) Generally: Housing facilities for animal s shall be structurally sound and maintained 

in good repair to protect the animals from injury, to contain the animals, and to 
restrict the entrance of other animals. 

 
 (b) Temperature: The temperature of an indoor housing facility for animals shall provide 

for the health and comf ort of the animals.  Temperatures in the areas in which 
animals are kept  shall be maintained between 65º F and 84ºF. Said temperatures 
shall not be allowed to fluctuate up or down at a rate of greater than 5ºF per hour. 

 
 (c) Humidity: Humidity in areas in which animals are kept shall be maintained at a 

relative humidity of 30% to 70% throughout the year. 
 
 (d) Ventilation: An indoor housing facility for animals  shall be adequately ventilated to 

provide for the health and comfort of t he animals at all times.  The air in areas 
housing animals shall be ventilated at  a rate of exchange between 10 and 15 
changes of air per hour.  The air shall not be re -circulated unless said re -circulated 
air has been treated to remove gaseous contaminants. 

 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 
 (e) Light: An indoor housing facility for animals shall have ample light and be of good 

quality, either by natural or  artificial means or both.  The lighting shall provide 
uniformly distributed illumination of sufficient intensity to p ermit routine inspection 
and cleaning throughout the working period. Primary enclosures shall be so placed 
as to protect the animals from excessive illumination. 

 
9. Outdoor Facilities:  
 
 (a) Shade: When sunlight is likely to cause overheating or discomfo rt, sufficient shade 

shall be provided to allow animals to protec t themselves from the direct rays of the 
sun. 

 
 (b) Shelter: An access to shelter shall be provi ded to allow animals protection in 

inclement weather. 
 
 (c) Drainage: Outside shelters shall be located in areas having suitable drainage. 
 
10. Sanitation: 
 
 (a) Cages and equipment: Animal cages and equipment shall be washed and sanitized 

as often as necessary to keep t hem clean and free from contamination.  Any cage 
under regular use for the housin g of animals shall be washed weekly and more 
often if necessary.  Cages or enclosures housing animals held in quarantine or 
under observation shall be washed and sanitized prior to a new animal being placed 
therein. All animals shall be removed from cages o r enclosures which are being 
washed, sanitized or rinsed. Washing and rinsing shall be performed using water at 
least 180ºF for a period long enough to insure destruction of pathogenic organisms.  



Chemicals may also be used to combat said organisms, providi ng cages and 
equipment are rinsed free of traces or chemicals prior to replacing animals. 

 
 (b) Litter and bedding : All animal enclosures shall be given regular sanitary 

maintenance. Litter and bedding shall be changed at l east daily and more often if 
necessary to allow animals to remain dry and clean and to minimize odors. 

 
  (Rev. 11-14-1983) 
 
 (c) Equipment other than cages and enclosures : All other equipment and implements, 

including food and water, shall be kept in a sanitary condition.  Waste containers 
shall also be kept in a sanitary c ondition and shall be was hed when emptied with 
water at least 180°F and/or with chemical disinfectant. 

 
 (d) Facilities other than cages or enclosures : All other areas of said  pet shop, including 

hallways and storage areas shall be kept clean, neat and unlittered.  Detergents and 
disinfectants shall be used to keep them free from dirt, debris , and other harmful 
contaminants. 

  
 (e) Surfaces to consist of readily sanitizable materials : The indoor building surfaces of 

all indoor housing facilities shall be construct ed of materials which may be readily 
sanitized. 

 
 (f) Proper drainage necessary: A suitable method shall be provided to eliminate excess 

water from indoor housing facilities. Drains shall be properly constructed and kept in 
good repair to avoid foul odors.  Closed drainage systems shall be equipped with 
traps and installed to prevent back-ups. 

 
11. Primary Enclosures: 
 
 (a) Generally: All primary enclosures used for holdi ng animals shall be structurally 

sound and maintained in good repair to protect animals from injury, to contain them, 
to keep predators out and to enable animals to remain dry and clean.  

 
 (b) Sound construction: All enclosures shall be of s ound construction and made from 

material capable of facilita ting effective sanitation.  Suggested nonporous materials 
include aluminum, steel and fiberglass. 

 
 (c) Access to clean food and water : A primary enclosure s hall be constructed and 

maintained so that animals kept have convenient access to clean food and water. 
 

(Rev. 11-14-1983) 
 
  



 (d) Type of enclosure: All primary enclosures s hall be kept in good repair.  Enclosures 
 with shaper edges, broken wires, broken snaps, unconn ected sides, rust and any 
 other defects shall not be used.  The purpose of this is to p rotect the animals from 
 injury. Portable cages are prohibited, including airport transit cages and wire cages 
 with top access secured by clasps. 

 
 (e) Size of enclosures: A primary enclosure shall provide adequate room for the animal 

or animals housed, allowing each animal sufficient space to turn about freely and to 
easily stand, sit and lie in a comfortable no rmal position. Minimum specifications in 
the chart below shall be followed by the licensee: 

 
  ANIMAL SIZE   CAGE SPACE  HEIGHT 
 
  Cat up to 2 pounds  3 sq. ft.   24" 
 

Cat over 2 pounds  4 sq. ft.   24" 
 

Dog up to 7 pounds  8 sq. ft.   32" 
 

Dog 7 to 15 pounds  12 sq. ft.  36" 
 

Dog over 15 pounds  The height of a cage shall be the height of the dog over 
the shoulders (at the withers) plus 6". 

 
  Animals housed together shall be housed in accordance with the above schedule, 

the cage space required being det ermined by the cumulative weight of the group of 
animals. 

 
 (f) Compatible groups: Animals housed together shall be pl aced in compatible groups 

of the same sex, unless animals are from t he same litter or of the same age and 
species and under six months of age.  Animals housed together shall be of 
approximate size. The number of animals in a prim ary enclosure shall not exceed a 
number which would prevent proper ventilation and sanitation. 

 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 
12. Animal Health and Husbandry: 
 
 (a) Feeding: Animals shall have daily access to food according to their age and health.  

The food shall be free of contaminants, wholesome, palatable and of sufficie nt 
quantity and nutritive value to  meet the normal daily r equirements for condition and 
size of the animal.  Food receptacles shall be accessi ble to all animals and located 
to minimize contamination by excretion.  Feeding pans shall be durable and kept 
clean. Disposable food receptacles may be used but shall be discarded after each 
feeding. Self feeders may be used for the feedi ng of dry food and shall be sanitized 
regularly to prevent molding, deterioration or caking of food.  The following chart 
represents recommendations for daily feeding of healthy animals: 



 
  ANIMAL  AGE   * DAILY FEEDING 
 
  Adult dog  Over 6 mo.   Once daily 
 
  Puppy   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 
  Puppy   Under 4 mo.   Three times daily 
 
  Adult cat  Over 6 mo.   One daily 
 
  Kitten   4 - 6 mo.   Twice daily 
 
  Kitten  Under 4 mo.  Three times daily 
 
  (*In quantities according to animals' nutritional needs.) 
 
 (b) Water: All animals shall have daily access to potable, contaminant free water. Water 

shall be positioned to insure its availabi lity without it being subj ect to tipping or 
contamination. Water bowls or devices shall be affixed to cages and animals 
monitored to insure they receive necessary amounts of water. 

 
 (c) Veterinary Services: Licensee, agents, employees, or any other person  responsible 

for maintaining the health of animals on licens ee's premises shall seek the services 
of the veterinarian whenever a health hazard arises.  The veterinarian's name shall 
appear on the application for license or registration. The City Clerk's Off ice shall be 
promptly notified of any change of veterinary services.  

 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 
 (d) Quarantine Area Required: Licensee shall designate and maintain an area separate 

and apart from the area(s) where healthy animals are housed for the purpose of 
housing any animal(s) suspected of carrying contagious disease(s).  

 
13. Animals Suspected of Carrying Contagious Disease: 
 

(a) Observation: No animal shall be sold, offered for sa le, exchange or tr ansfer if that 
animal is suspected to be infected with a co ntagious disease. Any such animal, if it 
is to remain on pet shop premises, shall be housed in an observation or quarantined 
area in a room separ ate from the room or rooms housing animals offered to the 
public. Such separation shall be for the period of ti me necessary to determine 
whether the animal is contagious.  

 
 (b) Quarantined Areas: Isolation Areas: Persons responsible for care of animals shall 

use caution to protect healthy animals by instituting procedures to curtail the transfer 
of pathogenic organisms from suspected sick to healthy animals. 

 



(i) Care Procedures to be established : Licensee shall establish a regime of 
caring for healthy animals to insure that  they remain as disease free as 
possible. Employees shall take particular caution not to transfer food, dishes, 
or other equipment from an observation or quarantine area to a healthy area. 

 
14. Animals Infected with Contagious Disease : No pet shop shall keep upon the premises 

wherein healthy animals are housed, any animal known to be infected wi th a contagious 
disease. 

 
15. Other Prohibitions: 
 

(a) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of Dog, Cat Less than Eight Weeks Old: A licensee 
agent, officer, employee of said licensee s hall not import or c ause to be imported 
into the State of Michigan or offe r for sale or resale a dog or cat less than eight 
weeks old. 

 
 (b) Importation; Sale; Offer for Sale of D og, Cat Without Visible Deciduous Teeth : No 

licensee, agent, employee, or officer of the licensee shall import or cause to be 
imported into the State of Michigan or offer for sale or resale a dog or cat unless the 
dog or cat has deciduous (baby) teeth visibly present. 

 
(Rev. 11-14-1983) 

 
16. Return of Animal Refund: 
 

If within 7 business days from the date of purchase, a duly licensed veterinarian has 
certified in writing that the animal has a communicable debilitating disease including but not 
limited to distemper, leptospiro sis, hepatitis, or other infect ious disease substantially 
affecting the animal's health or causing death of the animal, a purchaser of the animal shall 
be entitled to return the animal to the pet shop.  Licensee shall either replace the animal or 
fully refund the amount of the purchase price. 

 
17. Licensee's Presence Required Regularly: 
 

A licensee shall be present on the premises of a  pet shop on a regular basis and shall be 
responsible for violations of this chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 11-14-1983) 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities exis ting, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the ti me such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affec t, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all pros ecutions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance, under and in  accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at 
the time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effe ctive ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland C ounty, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 90 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as  an amendment to Chapter  90 of the Code of 
the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 90 is hereby amended, rewritten, and renumbered in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
GENERAL REGULATIONS 

 
90.10.10 Definitions. The following terms when used in this Chapter shall have the 

meanings set forth in this Section: 
 
90.10.11 “Animal” - Any living creature, except  humans and plants. “Animal” includes any 

mammal, bird, reptile, snake, turtle, cr ustacean or any other vertebrate or 
invertebrate. 
     

90.10.15 “At Large” - An animal is at large when it is off the property of its owner and no t 
under the reasonable control of a competent person. 

   
90.10.20 “Cruelty” - includes: 
 

(a) an intentional act or omission that unjustifiably causes physical pain, 
suffering or death of an animal, or 

 
(b) an intentional act or omission of failing to provide an an imal with proper food, 

drink, air, space, veterinary care, shelter or sanitary and safe living 
environment, or 

 
(c) tormenting an animal or causing, s ponsoring or permitting an animal to 

engage in a fight or combat with another animal or human.  
 

90.10.25 “Dangerous Animal” - A wild or  feral animal, other than a dog  or cat, which because 
of its size, aggressive natur e or other characteristics constitutes a danger to 
persons or property. 

 
90.10.30 “Domestic Animal” - An animal, other than a dog, that is not  feral in nature, 

including, but not limited to  horses, cows, chickens, geese, pigeons, ducks, steers, 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-5d



ponies, mules, donkeys, sheep, swine, pigs and goats.  
 

90.10.35 “House Pet” - A non-domestic and non-dangerous small animal normally kept 
confined as a pet, including but not limited to hamsters, fish and parakeets. 

 
90.10.40 “Hunt” - includes, but is not limited to shooting, or attempting to shoot, seeking, 

provoking, pursuing or taking any animal. 
 
90.10.45 Impound” - An animal is impounded when an Officer places t he animal in an Animal 

Shelter or other secure place for confinement.  
 
90.10.50 “Neglect” - includes: 
 

(a) an unintentional or negligent  act or omission, that unjustifiably causes 
physical pain, suffering or death of an animal, or 

 
 

(b) an unintentional or negligent failure to provide proper food, drink, air, space, 
veterinary care, shelter, including adequat e shelter to prevent escape, or a 
sanitary and safe living environment. 

   
90.10.55 “Officer” - An Animal Control Officer, or Police Officer. 
 
90.10.60 “Owner” - A person or a group of persons who owns, controls, harbors, keeps, or 

has a property interest in any animal. 
 

90.10.65 “Person” - An individual, employee, corporation, partnership or association. 
 
90.10.70 “Quarantine” - An animal is quarantined when an Officer  orders the animal confined 

to prevent it from having contact with any other animal. 
 
90.10.71 “Shelter” – A roofed structure of at least three sides which provides adequate 

protection to a dog from the elements and weather conditions so as to maintain the 
dog in a state of good health. “Shelter” includes a residence, garage, barn, shed, or 
dog house. “Adequate protection” from the el ements includes, but is not limited to, 
dry bedding when the outdoor temperature is or is predicted to drop below freezing. 

 
90.10.72 “Tethering” – The restraint and confinement of a dog by use of a chain, rope, or 

similar device. 
 
90.10.75 “Trap” - includes hunting, confining, taking or  entrapping any animal by means of 

any trap, snare, bait, hook or other device. 
 
90.10.80 “Veterinary Certificate” - is a certificate from a licensed veterinarian that states that 

an animal has been immunized for rabies and states the date the immunization 
expires. 

 



90.10.85 “Vicious Animal” - An animal is vicious if the animal: 
 

(a) has committed an unprovoked attack on a person or animal, or  
 

(b) approaches a person in an apparent attitude of attack when unprovoked, or 
 

(c) has bitten a person or animal, or 
 

(d) has contracted or is suspected of having contracted rabies. 
 

90.10.90 “Wild Animal” – An animal that is not defined in this Chapter as a dangerous animal, 
domestic animal or house pet. 



PROHIBITED CONDUCT INVOLVING ANIMALS 
  
90.20.10 Cruelty to Animals. No person shall be cruel to an animal. A person who 
violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the 
county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
90.20.20 Neglect to Animals. No person, who owns or controls an animal, shall 
neglect that animal. A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of 
not more than $500 or both. 
 
Injure Police Dog. No person shall torture, torment, beat, kick, strike, injure, disable or 
kill any dog used by the City of Troy Police Department or interfere with or meddle with 
any police dog in the performance of its duties. A person who violates this section is 
guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more 
than 93 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
Tethering a Dog. No person shall tether a dog unless all of the following conditions are 
satisfied: 
 
The dog has access to shelter; 
 
The tether is three times the length of the dog or ten feet in length, whichever is greater; 
 
The tether, harness, collar or other type of collaring device when taken together weighs 
not more than one-eighth of the dog’s body weight; 
 
The harness, collar, or other type of collaring devise being used is designed for the 
purpose of tethering, and is made from material that prevents injury to the dog; 
 
The manner of tethering prevents injury, strangulation, or entanglement on fences, 
trees, or other objects; 
 
Tethering shall occur only during daylight hours, provided the period of tethering does 
not exceed four continuous hours.  
 
A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than 
$500 or both.  
 
Exception: This section shall not apply to a person who is walking a dog on a leash.  
   
90.20.40 Hunting. No person shall hunt any animal. A person who violates this 
section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not 
more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both.  
 
Exceptions:  



 
Officers are authorized to use shell crackers or other noise making devices to control 
geese and migratory waterfowl. 
  
Officials of the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR), or persons permitted 
by the DNR pursuant to MCL 324.40114, are authorized to hunt Canada Geese or other 
nuisance migratory waterfowl in connection with the DNR Goose Round Up Program, 
Goose Egg Program, or other similar programs operated by the DNR. 
 
90.20.50 Trapping. No person shall trap any animal. A person who violates this 
section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not 
more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
Exceptions:  
 
A person may trap small rodents such as mice, rats and moles. 
 
A person licensed or authorized by the State to trap may trap subject to the following: 
 
(1) Only live traps that cannot kill or injure animals or persons may be used. 
 
(2) All traps must be permanently marked with the owner’s name and a telephone 
number where the owner or owner’s agent can be contacted 24 hours a day. 
 
(3) All traps must be checked at least every 24 hours. 
 
Officers are authorized to use traps to capture dangerous, wild or domestic birds or 
animals that are running at large or have become a public nuisance. 
 
Officials of the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR), or persons permitted 
by the DNR pursuant to MCL 324.40114, are authorized to trap Canada Geese or other 
nuisance migratory waterfowl in connection with the DNR Goose Round Up Program, 
Goose Egg Program, or other similar programs operated by the DNR. 
 
90.20.60 Poisoning Animals. No person shall poisonous or attempt to poison any 
animal except rodents and insects. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days 
or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 



90.20.70 Birds. No person, except Officers acting in their official capacity, shall 
molest, injure, kill or capture any wild bird. A person who violates this section is guilty 
of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 
days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
90.20.80 Birds’ Nests. No person, except Officers acting in their official capacity, 
shall disturb any wild bird nest. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days 
or by a fine of not more than $500 or both.  
 
Exception: Owners of private property may disturb a bird nest located on their property 
if disturbing the nest does not violate any federal, state laws.  
 
90.20.90 Feeding Waterfowl. No person shall feed waterfowl, including Giant Race of 
Canada Goose, Mallard Duck and sea gulls. Feeding means providing food other than 
that which is growing naturally on the site. A person who violates this section is guilty 
of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 
days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
DUTIES OF ANIMAL OWNERS 
 
90.30.10 Number of Dogs Allowed. No person shall own, keep or control more than 
three (3) dogs, and no household or premises in the City shall have more than three (3) 
dogs total. This three (3) dog limit shall not apply to puppies, under the age of six (6) 
months, of a litter of a dog owned by the person. A person who violates this section is 
guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more 
than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
90.30.15 Diseased Animals. Any animal with a contagious or infectious disease shall 
be isolated from all other animals to prevent the illness or disease from being 
transmitted to another animal. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days 
or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
90.30.20 Domestic Animals on Public or Private Land. No person who owns or 
controls an animal shall allow that animal, to be on a municipal golf course, cemetery, 
public sidewalk, school district property, airport property, or a public or private parking 
lot. A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than 
$500 or both. 
    
Exception: Animals may be allowed on public property if expressly authorized. 
 
Exception: Officers are authorized to have horses in parades and for official City 
business. 
 
 



Exception: Animals may be allowed on private property with the express consent of the 
owner. 
 
90.30.25 Noises. No person, who owns or controls an animal, shall allow that animal 
to disturb the peace by habitually making noises, including barking, yelping or howling. 
A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than 
$500 or both.  
 
90.30.30 Odors. No person, who owns or controls an animal, shall allow that animal 
to create an odor that is offensive. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days 
or by a fine of not more than $500 or both.  
 
90.30.35 Running at Large Prohibited. No person, who owns or controls an animal, 
except a domestic cat, shall permit that animal to run at large within the City of Troy. A 
person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than 
$500 or both. 
 
90.30.40 Animals in Parks. No person shall permit any dog owned by him or under 
his control or custody to enter any park where a sign or signs are posted bearing the 
legend "No Dogs Allowed", or other words to that same effect. In park areas where dogs 
are permitted, such dogs shall at all times be kept under reasonable control by means 
of a leash. No person shall permit any other animal either wild or domestic, owned by 
him or under his control or custody, to enter any park except when special permission 
is granted by the City Manager. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days 
or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 
 
90.30.45 Vicious Animal. No person shall own, keep or possess a vicious animal. A 
person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than 
$500 or both and the Court may order the destruction of the animal. 

 
90.30.50 Possession of Excrement Removal Device . No person, who is accompanying an 

animal, shall allow that animal to be on property owned by  another unless the 
person has in his or her immediate po ssession, an appropriate device for the 
scooping and temporary storage of excrement. A person who violates this section is 
guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by impris onment in the county jail for not more 
than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 

  
90.30.55 Removal of Animal Excrement . No person, who owns or controls an animal that 

deposits excrement on property owned by another, shall fail to immediately 
remove such excrement and immediately dispose of it in a receptacle located on 
the property of the person who owns or c ontrols the animal and if the person is 
not aware that the animal deposited ex crement on another pr operty, shall upon 



being made aware of such fact, immediately dispose of it in a receptacle located 
on the property of the pers on who owns or controls the animal. A person who 
violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor punis hable by imprisonment in 
the county jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or 
both. 

 
QUARANTINE 

 
90.40.10 Period of Quarantine. An animal shall be quarantined for a period of ten (10) days if 

an Officer has reasonable suspicion that: 
 

(a) the animal has bitten a person or another animal, or  
 
(b) the animal has rabies.  

 
90.40.20 Place of Quarantine. At the Officer’s discretion, an animal may be quarantined: 
 

(a) in an animal shelter, or 
 
(b) at the premises of the owner, if t he owner has proof that the animal has 

had a rabies vaccination, or 
 
(c) in a licensed veterinary hospital. 

 
90.40.30 Expenses of Quarantine. The owner of a quarantined animal shall pay the expenses 

of the quarantine. A person who violates th is section is guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by imprisonment in the county ja il for not more than 90 days or by a fine 
of not more than $500 or both. 

 
90.40.40 Refuse to Follow Quarantine Orders . No person, w ho owns or controls an animal, 

shall refuse to follow the quarantine orders of an Officer. A person who violates this 
section is guilty of a misdemeanor punishabl e by imprisonment in the county jail for 
not more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 

 
IMPOUND 

 
90.50.10 Grounds for Impoundment . An animal may be impounded if the Officer has 

reasonable suspicion that: 
 

(a) the animal is vicious, or 
 
(b) the animal has been neglected, or 
 
(c) the animal was running at large, or 
 
(d) the animal was treated with cruelty. 
 



90.50.20 Release from Impoundment. An impounded animal shall be released to the owner 
upon satisfaction of the following conditions: 

 
(a) the animal owner has paid any fees r equired by Chapter 60 of the Troy 

City Code, and 
 
(b) if a dog, proof that the dog has been immunized against rabies, and 
 
(c) if a dog, proof that the dog has a current license, and 
 
(d) the owner has paid for the cost of boarding the animal, and 
 
(e) the Officer has been adequately assured of the safety of the animal, it’s 

owners, and the pub lic and has consented to the release of the animal or 
a court of competent jurisdiction has ordered the animal released. 
 

90.50.30 Unclaimed Animal. If the ownership of an im pounded animal cannot reasonably be 
ascertained or the owner of the impounded animal does not claim the animal within 
5 days after the date the animal could ot herwise be released, then the animal may 
be made available for adoption or destroyed in a humane manner. 

 
DOG LICENSES 

 
90.60.10 Dog License Tag. No person shall own or control a dog six (6) months of age or 

older in the City of Troy, unless the person who owns or controls the dog is issued a 
dog license tag by the City of Troy.  A person who violates this  section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by impr isonment in the county j ail for not more than 90 
days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 

 
Exception: a person who runs a properly  licensed dog kennel need not apply 
for individual dog licenses under this chapter. 

 
90.60.20 Issuance of License Tag . Dog license tags shall be issued by the City Clerk, upon 

application, presentation of a veterinary certificate stating that the dog has been 
properly immunized against rabies, and paym ent of the license fees and applicable 
late fees, in accordance with Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code.  

 
90.60.30 Transfer of License Tag . A person who becomes the owner of a dog, which was 

previously licensed in the City of Troy, sha ll file an application for a City of Troy dog 
license tag within thirty (30) days of ownership. 

 
90.60.40 License Tag Expiration. Dog license tags expire on the immunization expiration date 

stated in the veterinary cert ification. A dog license is not  valid in the City if the 
current rabies vaccination for the dog ex pires more than one month before the dog 
license expires. In order to insure a valid r abies vaccination for each licensed dog 
during the license period, t he license expiration date for each dog will be converted 
to the last day of the month in which t he rabies vaccination expires. The City Clerk 



may issue monthly licenses to accommodate t he conversion to rabies expiration 
date. The City Clerk may al so issue up to a three -year license for each dog, 
depending upon the expiration date for the rabies vaccination. 

 
90.60.50 Dog License Tag. No person shall own , or control a dog six (6 ) months of age or 

older that does not at all times wear a co llar or harness with a valid City of Troy dog 
license tag attached. A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by imprisonment in the county  jail for not more than 90 days or by a fine 
of not more than $500 or both. 

 
90.60.60 Removal of Dog License Tag. No person shall remove a dog license tag from a dog 

without the consent of the owner. A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in t he county jail for not more than 90 
days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both. 

 
PERMITS 

 
90.70.10 Permit Required for Domestic, Dangerous and Wild Animals . No person shall own 

or control a domestic anima l or a dangerous animal or a wild animal, other than a 
dog, cat or a house pet, within the City of Troy , without having obtained an animal 
permit from the Clerk  for the City of Troy.  A person who violates this section is 
responsible for a Municipal Civil Infraction s ubject to the provision of Chapter 100 of 
the Code of the City of Troy . Each day that the violat ion continues is a separate 
Municipal Civil Infraction. Sanctions for eac h violation shall include a fine of not 
more than $500, costs, damages, and injuncti ve orders as author ized by Chapter 
100. guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonm ent in the county jail for not 
more than 90 days or by a fine of not more than $500 or both.  

 
Exception: 
    
(a) a permit is not required for a dog, house pet or domestic cat. 
 
(b) permits are not required for wild animals if the Housing and Zoning Inspector 

Animal Control Officer determines that the wild anima l, because of its size, 
the number of animals, temperament or other characteristics does not create 
a hazard or nuisance. 

 
90.70.20 Permit Application Process . An applicant for a domestic, dangerous or wild 

animal permit shall: 
 

(a) furnish the Animal Control Officer Housing and Zoning Inspector a list of the 
species of animals to be kept and t he maximum number of each species to 
be kept at any one time, and 

 
(b) demonstrate that the animals  will be treated humanely and will not be 

neglected or treated with cruelty, and 
 



(c) demonstrate that the animals will be ma intained in quarters constructed to 
prevent their escape, and  

 
(d) demonstrate that reasonable precautions shall be taken to protect the public 

from the animals and the animals from the public, and 
 
(e) demonstrate that he or she c an comply with the ordinance and any 

regulations promulgated by the Animal Control Appeal Board, and 
 
(f) in the case of domestic animals, demonstrate to the Housing and Zoning 

Inspector Animal Control Officer that the lot or parcel that animals will be kept 
on is three-quarters (¾) of one (1) acre  or larger. This requirement may be 
waived by the Animal Control Appeal Board if the applicant can demonstrate 
circumstances that allow for waiver pursuant to regulations promulgated by 
the Animal Control Appeal Board. Waivers will not be granted for animals 
that are loud or likely to be detrimental to the neighborhood. 

 
90.70.30 Issuance of Permit for Domestic, Dangerous or Wild Animal. The City ClerkHousing 

and Zoning Inspector shall issue a domestic, dangerous or wild animal permit upon 
showing by the applicant that he or she has obtained the approval of the Animal 
Control Officer Housing and Zoning Inspector and has paid the applicable fee. The 
permit shall list with specificit y the animals subject to the permit, the location of the 
animals in the City of Troy and may contai n limitations and conditions required by 
the Housing and Zoning Inspector Animal Control  Officer or the Animal Control 
Appeal Board. 

 
90.70.40 Duties of Permit Holder. The holder of a domestic, dangerous or wild animal permit 

shall: 
 

(a)  comply with all present and future ordinances in this Chapter and comply 
with the regulations promulgated by the Animal Control Appeal Board, and 

 
(b) apply for a new permit prior to changing their address or changing the 

location of the animals, and 
  
(c) indemnify and hold the Cit y of Troy harmless from any personal injury or 

property damage caused by the animal fo r which the permit is issued as a 
result of the negligence of the permi ttee or any other person placed in 
control of the animal by the permittee. 

 
(d) consent to inspection of the applicant’s facilities by an Housing and Zoning 

Inspector  Animal Control Officer before and after the granting of the 
permit. 

 
90.70.50 Expiration of Permit. A permit shall expire: 
 

(a) 5 years from the date of issuance, or 



 
(b) when ownership or contro l of the animal or animals is transferred to another 

person, or 
 
(c) when the animal or animals are moved to another location, or  

(d) upon death of the animal for which the permit is issued, unless the permit 
specifically provides for replacement of the animal, or  
 

(e) when the terms of the permit require that the permit expires. 
 

90.70.60 Revocation of Permit. A Housing and Zoning Inspector n Animal Control Officer may 
revoke a permit: 
 

(a) if the permit holder fails to comply with the requirements of this Chapter, or 
 
(b) if the permit holder fails to comply  with regulations pr omulgated by the 

Animal Control Appeal Board, or, 
 
(c) if a permit holder fails to comply wit h federal, state or local laws governing 

cruelty to animals or the keeping of animals, or  
 
(d) if a species of animal not listed in the permit application is acquired, or 
 
(e) the maximum number of animals allowed pursuant to the permit is exceeded.  

 
90.70.70 Removal of Animals . A person whose permit is revo ked or has expired, shall 

immediately remove all animals subject to  the permit, from the City of Troy, unless 
the permit holder has filed a timely appeal with the Animal Control Appeal Board in 
which case the revocation shall be postponed pending the outcome of the appeal. 
  

ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD 
 
90.80.10 Animal Control Appeal Board . There is hereby created an Animal Control Appeal 

Board.  
 
90.80.20 This Board shall: 

 
(a) consist of five (5) members appointed by the City Council for three (3) year 

overlapping terms, and  
 
(b) annually elect from among its mem bers a Chair, a Vice Chair and a 

Secretary. 
 
90.80.30 All Board Members, including the Chair,  Vice Chair and Secretary shall have voting 

privileges. 
 



90.80.40 The Chair shall preside over meetings of the Board. 
 

90.80.50 The Vice Chair shall pr eside over meetings of the Board in the absence of the 
Chair. 

  
90.80.60 The Secretary shall re cord and file with the City Clerk accurate and complete 

resolutions, rules and interpretations rendered by the Board.  
 

90.80.70 Duties Of Animal Control Appeal Board. The Animal Control Appeal Board shall:  
 
(a) promulgate regulations regardi ng dangerous animal permits and domestic 

animal permits, and 
 
(b) interpret and determine the application of provisions contained in this 

Chapter as they relate to specific fa ct situations presented to the Animal 
Control Appeal Board, and 

 
(c) adjudicate appeals from a Housing and Zoning Inspector’s an Animal Control 

Officer’s decision regarding the issuance or  denial of a permit for dangerous 
animals, domestic animals and wild animals, and 

 
(d) adjudicate appeals from a  Housing and Zoning Inspector’s n Animal 

Control Officer’s decision regarding the revocation of a permit for 
dangerous animals, domestic animals or wild animals. 

 
90.80.80 Procedure for Appeals.  

 
Appeals from the decisions of the Housing and Zoning Inspector Animal Control 
Officer to the Animal Control Appeal Board must be: 
 
(a) filed at the o ffice of the Troy Housing and Zoning InspectorCity Clerk  on 

forms provided by the Clerk, and 
 

(b) filed within seven (7) days of the date of the Housing and Zoning Inspector 
Animal Control Officer’s decision regarding the issuance or denial of a permit 
for dangerous animals or domestic animals, and  

 
(c) filed within seven (7) days of the date of the Housing and Zoning Inspector 

Animal Control Officer’s decision regarding the revocation of a permit for 
dangerous animals or domestic animals. 

 
(d) upon acceptance of an appeal, the City Clerk shall provide notice of the time, 

date and place of the appeal to all pr operty owners within 300 feet of the 
appellant’s property. 

 
90.80.90. Rulings and interpretations of the Animal Control Appeal Board shall be final. 
 



   
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities exis ting, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the ti me such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affec t, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal  regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosec utions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance, under and in  accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at 
the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
 Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or  section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effe ctive ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland C ounty, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
  



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be k nown and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter  
60 of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 60.04 is amended as follows:  

 
 
60.04 Fee Schedule. 

 
ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 
 
Domestic Animal Permit (Chapter 90) Five Year Permit $ 40.00 $20.00
Inspection fee                                                                                                $ 30.00 
Dogs (Chapter 90) 
Monthly License  
Licenses shall be issued for the unexpired portion of rabies vaccination (90.60.40). 
 Each spayed or neutered dog  0.50¢
 Each un-spayed or un-neutered dog $1.00 
 Leader/Hearing/Service Dog No Charge
Duplicate/Replacement Tag $3.00 
(Rev. 03-23-2009; Effective: 04-01-2009)  

 
If a person makes application for a dog license that is not timely pursuant to Sectio n 17 
of Chapter 90, then a late charge of $15.00 will be assessed. 
 
Pound Fees                                                                                      Oakland County  
                                                                                                           Fee Structure 
1st Offense  $25.00 
Each Additional Offense  $50.00 
Current license fees and vaccination fees may also be due if not   
up to date  
License Fee Refund for Dogs which bec ome deceased aft er license issuance will be 
prorated on complete year units and will be refunded to the dog owner as  originally 
assessed/calculated. (Rev. 12-15-2003) 
 
Pet Shop (Chapter 75): Annual Fee $50.00 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-5e



 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all right s and liabilities existing, acquir ed or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance ta kes effect, are hereby  saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proc eedings were comm enced.  Th is ordinance shall not  be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instit uted under any ordinanc e specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this  ordinance adopting this penal regulation,  for 
offenses committed prior to the effect ive date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this ordinance may  be continued, for o ffenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinanc e, under and in acc ordance with the pr ovisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Coun cil of the Cit y of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular m eeting of the City Counc il held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    _________ _____________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 28, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak – (Absent) 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Resolution #2011-02-038 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Howrylak at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, February 28, 2011 due to being 
absent from the county. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Beltramini, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Schilling, Kerwin 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 
a)  State Representative Marty Knollenberg – Legislative Update 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Janice Daniels Opposes tax increases 
John Vert Opposes using pension funds to pay for City services 
Richard Peters Various topics 
Paul Beck Opposes closing library, DDA, transit center, employee benefits 
James Savage Opposes closing library, DDA, transit center 
Dale Christiansen Supports keeping library open 
Dan Brake Various topics 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  Directive from City Council for City Administration to Provide Business and 
Organization Recommendations to Conduct a Community Survey 

 
Resolution #2011-02-039 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to provide City 
Council with three business or organization recommendations for conducting a statistically 
significant community survey. 
 
Vote to Amend Motion by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2011-02-040 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Directive from City Council for City 
Administration to Provide Business and Organization Recommendations to Conduct a 
Community Survey be SUBSTITUTED in its entirety with the following: 
 

WHEREAS, City Administration was directed to provide City Council with three 
business or organization recommendations for conducting a statistically 
significant community survey, and 
 
WHEREAS, The analysis will assist City Council and management to ascertain 
our citizens’ acceptable level of service in each of the core services and the 
specific services citizens are willing or not willing to pay for. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a 
contract to provide a telephone survey for a community report card on city 
services to Target Insyght of Lansing, Michigan, for a not-to-exceed cost of 
$22,000. 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2011-02-041 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
WHEREAS, City Administration was directed to provide City Council with three business or 
organization recommendations for conducting a statistically significant community survey, and 
 
WHEREAS, The analysis will assist City Council and management to ascertain our citizens’ 
acceptable level of service in each of the core services and the specific services citizens are 
willing or not willing to pay for. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to 
provide a telephone survey for a community report card on city services to Target Insyght of 
Lansing, Michigan, for a not-to-exceed cost of $22,000. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
There was a consensus of City Council to determine what services residents are willing to pay 
for or not willing to pay for and how much the residents are willing to pay for these services. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-02-042 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Add Item O-1 Study Item – Strategies for Public Engagement and 
Follow-Up to ICMA Part I 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

 
Resolution #2011-02-043 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS Item O-1 Study Item – Strategies for Public 
Engagement and Follow-Up to ICMA Part I to the Agenda for the Regular Meeting on Monday, 
February 28, 2011. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Board of Review 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2011-02-044 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) 3-Year Term  
 
Frank A. Strahl Unexpired Term 01/31/2012 
 
Yes:  Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No:  None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointments – None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: Planning Commission 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Resolution #2011-02-045 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 
Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor  (9-Regular)  3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds Term Expires 12/31/2013 
 
Mark Maxwell Term Expires 12/31/2013 
 
Tom Krent Term Expires 12/31/2013 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Nominations – None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Application for Transfer of Ownership of 2010 Class C Licensed Business from 

Café Sushi to JJWM, LLC, and Request for New Permit (Food) 
 
(a) Transfer of Ownership and New Permit (Food) 
 
Resolution #2011-02-046 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
JJWM, LLC to Transfer Ownership of 2010 Class C Licensed Business, located at 5 D 1933 W. 
Maple Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Café Sushi, LLC, and the request for New 
Official Permit (Food)  {MLCC Req. #573485}, “above all others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with JJWM, LLC to Transfer Ownership of 2010 Class C Licensed Business, located at 5 D 
1933 W. Maple Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from Café Sushi, LLC and the request 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

for New Official Permit (Food) {MLCC Req. #573485}, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Resolution in Opposition to Senate Bill 34 
 
Resolution #2011-02-047 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 34 proposes to eliminate all personal property taxes (“these taxes”) in 
the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 34 establishes no revenue offset; and 
 
WHEREAS, Revenue generated from these taxes in the City of Troy (“Troy”) accounts for 3.8 
million dollars in Fiscal Year 2010-11; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy relies on these taxes to provide essential and other services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy, as a Michigan Home Rule City is mandated to provide essential services 
such as police and fire services; and 
 
WHEREAS, The state-wide downturn has resulted in a loss 719 million dollars in Troy’s taxable 
value in just the last two fiscal years; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is estimated that taxable value will further decline by 10.5% in FY 2011-12; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy’s State Shared Revenue has declined 2.7 million dollars since State of 
Michigan FY 2001, creating a cumulative loss in State Shared Revenue of 15.9 million dollars; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy has reduced its full-time staff by 20% (from 488 to 388) since FY 2004-05 
which includes 10% in Police Department personnel and 15% in fire staff officers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Budget planning for FY 2011-12 is well underway and is based on estimated 
revenues that include these taxes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council URGES the State 
Legislature to oppose Senate Bill 34 and any other potential reduction in municipal revenue 
from the State which does not immediately provide for a revenue offset. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this resolution BE TRANSMITTED to the State Senator 
John Pappageorge, Senate Finance Committee Chair, Senator Jack Brandenburg, State 
Representative Marty Knollenberg, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners and the 
Michigan Municipal League. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-6 Request to Schedule a Special City Council Meeting to Review the ICMA Study – 

Police Department Element 
 
RESOLUTION RECONSIDERED by Resolution #2011-02-052 
 
Resolution #2011-02-048 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting at 7:00 PM on 
Monday, March 21, 2011 in City Council Boardroom for the purpose of presentation and 
discussion of the Police Department element of ICMA’s Organizational Restructuring Report. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-7 Discontinued Services – Animal Control Services 
 
a) Amendment to the City of Troy and City of Clawson Lockup, Dispatch and Animal 

Control Services Agreement 
 
Resolution #2011-02-049 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Amendment to the City of Troy and City of Clawson Lockup, 
Dispatch and Animal Control Service Agreement, is hereby APPROVED as recommended by 
City Administration effective March 15, 2011. A copy of this amendment shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:  McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-8 Recommendation for Community Survey Firm 
 
RESOLUTION MOVED AND ADDRESSED AS ITEM H-1 
 
I-9 Amendment of Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File 

Number SP 964) – Proposed Walmart Store Expansion, South of Maple and West 
of Crooks (2001 W. Maple Road), Section 32, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (Consent Judgment) 

 
Resolution #2011-02-050 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revised Preliminary Site Plan 
for an expansion to the Walmart store, including other building and site improvements, located 
south of Maple and west of Crooks, Section 32, as indicated on Site Development Plans 
prepared by CESO, and architectural plans for Walmart and Marshalls, prepared by pb2 
Architecture & Engineering.  This revised site plan revises and updates the exhibits to the 
Consent Judgment in the Meritor Automotive, Inc. and Nelson Companies, Inc. v. City of Troy 
lawsuit, Case Number 94-487484 CZ, and reflects the parties’ agreement as to the proposed 
development on the property. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council also APPROVES a Stipulation and 
Fourth Amendment to the Consent Judgment in the Meritor Automotive, Inc. and Nelson 
Companies, Inc. v. City of Troy Lawsuit, Case Number 94-487484 CZ, to facilitate the 
development as proposed, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the 
document which incorporates the updated and revised Preliminary Site Plan, after all other 
necessary parties have executed it.  A copy of the executed document shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-1a 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of February 21, 2011, as submitted. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 10-5 – Tallman 

and Eckford Water Main Replacement 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 10-5, Tallman and Eckford Water Main Replacement, be 
awarded to Pamar Enterprises, Inc., 58021 Gratiot, New Haven, MI 48048, for their low total bid 
amount of $641,805.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount 
not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Cooperative Contracts Digital In-Car Video 

System 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, Since 2006, International Police Technologies has furnished digital in-car video 
systems including hardware, software, installation, training and extended warranties (Resolution 
#2006-10-392; #2007-12-359; 2008-11-334-F14); and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, International Police Technologies ceased operations effective June, 2010, 
including all system repairs, replacement parts, user training and counseling, trouble-shooting, 
installation, and telephone consultations; and 
 
WHEREAS, In order to replace the current system and continue to provide the community with 
the same level of service, the Police Department has found the Panasonic Arbitrator 360 digital 
in-car video system to be the most user-friendly, adaptable and compatible with our current 
wireless infrastructure and storage, thereby reducing implementation costs; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the purchase 
of the Panasonic Arbitrator 360 digital in-car video system through Oakland County’s 
Cooperative Purchasing Program and utilizing other approved purchasing programs and 
procedures as outlined in Attachment A, Project Costs, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, primarily from Federal Drug Forfeiture Capital Funds for an 
estimated total cost of $345,801.00 over three years, of which $111,000.00 is available from the 
current fiscal year. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Sole Bidder – Bulletproof Vests 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase Bullet Resistant 
Vests for the Troy Police Department from grant monies made available through the 
Department of Justice, Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant Program, to the sole bidder, CMP 
Distributors Inc., of Lansing, MI, at unit prices detailed in the bid tabulation opened February 3, 
2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a 
contract expiration of December 31, 2012; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the expenditure of 
matching City funds for one-half the cost of the vests. 
 
J-5 Telephone System Purchase and Ongoing Annual Maintenance 
 
Resolution #2011-02-051-J-5 
 
WHEREAS, The City has utilized the Avaya telephone system and related equipment for 
telephone service under a lease agreement since 1996; and 
 
WHEREAS, The lease is now ending and the City has the option to purchase the equipment at 
a fair market value of $78,128.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Avaya has offered the City a three-year lease arrangement to pay for this purchase 
at zero percent interest after which time the City will own the equipment outright; in addition, 
Avaya will add the cost of prepaid maintenance utilizing the State of Michigan contract for the 
term of the lease also at zero percent financing; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby deems it to be in the City’s 
best interest to APPROVE a contract to purchase and maintain the existing telephone system 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

and related equipment through a 36-month lease arrangement from Avaya Financial Services 
for an estimated monthly cost of $4,472.00. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals Advanced 

a) Performance Review of City Manager and City Attorney – Advanced by Mayor Pro Tem 
Kerwin 

 
Vote to Reconsider Item I-6 Request to Schedule a Special City Council Meeting to 
Review the ICMA Study – Police Department Element 
 
Resolution #2011-02-052 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2011-02-048, Moved 
by Beltramini and Seconded by Slater, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting at 
7:00 PM on Monday, March 21, 2011 in City Council Boardroom for the purpose 
of presentation and discussion of the Police Department element of ICMA’s 
Organizational Restructuring Report. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes:  Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2011-02-048 by Substitution 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

Resolution #2011-02-053 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2011-02-048, Request to 
Schedule a Special City Council Meeting to Review the ICMA Study – Police Department 
Element by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, 
March 21, 2011, at 6:30 PM, in the Council Boardroom, for the purposes of the Public Hearing 
on the alternative energy personal property tax exemptions approved by the Michigan Next 
Energy Authority for United Solar Ovonic Corporation at 1100 West Maple and L.G. 
ChemPower at 1857 Technology; and the purpose of presentation and discussion of the Police 
Department element of ICMA’s organizational restructuring report. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2011-02-054 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, 
March 21, 2011, at 6:30 PM, in the Council Boardroom, for the purposes of the Public Hearing 
on the Alternative Energy Personal Property Exemptions approved by the Michigan NextEnergy 
Authority for: United Solar Ovonic Corp. (1100 W. Maple) and LG Chem Power (1857 
Technology); and the purpose of presentation and discussion of the Police Department element 
of ICMA’s organizational restructuring report. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin encouraged all to join Incredible Kids with the Troy Community Coalition 
this Thursday, March 3, 2011, at 6:30 PM, at the Troy Community Center. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

 
Resolution #2011-02-055 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Cancel the Special City Council Meeting Scheduled on Monday, 
March 7, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-02-056 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by  Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Special City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 7, 2011, at 7:30 PM in Council Chambers. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Historical Commission-Final-October 25, 2010 
b) Historical Commission-Final-January 25, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter and Card of Appreciation from Ellen Root and Lana Zelley to the Police 

Department and to Officer Gail Grzybowski for her Assistance on I-75 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

N-5  Residential Snow and Ice Control Procedures 
Noted and Filed 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:35 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:45 PM. 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Strategies for Public Engagement and Follow-Up to ICMA Part I 
 
City Council discussed options for public engagement. 
 
The Mayor left the meeting at 10:15 PM. 
 
Assistant City Manager Lamerato presented an update regarding the status of the 3-Year City 
Budget. 
 
General Fund for 2011-12 will require $1.9 million of Fund Balance to balance the budget 
without the Library, and following Option 1. 
 
Current year budget, including revenue projections through the end of the year, considering 
State Shared Revenue loss, using $2.4 million allocated for the current year, revenues are still 
short $300k. Expenditures (budget to actual) are expected to come in $1.8 million under 
budget. A net amount of $1.5 million will be added to Fund Balance if everything holds as-is, 
and after putting $1.9 million towards next year’s budget. A major cause of the expenditures 
being low is the Police Department not filling several vacant positions. 
 
There was a consensus of City Council to replace seven positions back into the budget; five 
positions in Public Works and two positions in Parks. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-02-057 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT February 28, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

Vote on Resolution to Cancel the Regular City Council Meeting Scheduled on Monday, 
March 21, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-02-058 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by  McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 21, 2011, at 7:30 PM in Council Chambers.  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
There was a consensus of City Council to adopt the 3-year budget as a document to be 
“revised” instead of “updated” in the resolution for the Winter Update. 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Meeting of the Troy  City Council was held Monday, Ma rch 21, 2011, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 6:31 PM. 
 
B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 Robin Beltramini 
 Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Public Hearing: Michigan NextEnergy  Exemptions - United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
(1100 W. Maple) and LG Chem Power (1857 Technology) 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-03-059 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemptions of Alternative Energy Personal  Property located at 1100 W. Maple, and 1857 
Technology Drive, Troy, MI, as certified by t he City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed 
$3,546,997, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Cit y Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 3300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C-2 Review of the ICMA Report Part II 
 
Mr. Rapp, Mr. McCabe and Mr. Chelst, from IIMC,  reviewed the ICMA Re port – Part II, which 
included a PowerPoint presentation overview of the report.  

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2b



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:08 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:21 PM. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                                                                    
 
Paul Beck: Discussed City services and complemented City Clerk, City 

Attorney and City Assessing staffs. 
James Savage: Discussed Detroit News handout regarding surveys and studies. 
Mike Kerr: Discussed false alarms and negative impacts to police officers and 

tax payers. He also discussed positive benefits of task forces.  
Audre Zembrzuski Discussed concerns with public drug usage.  

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:49 PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:            March 11, 2011                  
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidder: Park Restroom and Picnic 

Shelter Cleaning 
 
 
Background 
 
On March 2, 2011, bid proposals were received to provide seasonal requirements and furnish all 
labor, equipment, and supplies to clean the City of Troy park restrooms and picnic shelters with a two 
(2) year option to renew. 213 vendors were notified via the MITN system, with seven (7) bid 
responses received. 
 
The low bidder, American Cleaning Company LLC, returned a bid proposal to perform restroom and 
picnic shelter cleaning seven (7) days per week from April through October for an estimated total of 
$36,978.60 at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation. 
 
With a reduction in full time staff in the Parks division, as well as elimination of all seasonal workers 
that used to perform this work, it is necessary to contract the cleaning of restrooms and picnic 
shelters in order to maintain the level of service needed to keep the parks sanitary for public use. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding the contract to provide one (1) year requirements and 
furnish all labor, equipment, and supplies to clean the City of Troy park restrooms and picnic shelters 
with a two (2) year option to renew to the low bidder, American Cleaning Company LLC, 52844 Karon 
Macomb Township, MI 48042, for an estimated total of $36,978.60. The award is contingent upon the 
vendor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available for this contract in the Park Operations budget for contractual maintenance. 
 
 
JJB/G: \Community Center\Council Memos\Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 –Park Restroom & Shelter Cleaning.doc 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-02
Opening Date -- 3/02/11 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Reviewed - 3/3/2011 sl PARKS RESTROOM & PICNIC SHELTER CLEANING

VENDOR NAME:
CHECK #

CHECK AMOUNT
# of Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per

Buildings Building Per Week/Bldg Week Building Per Week/Bldg Week
Restroom

1 Boulan Park 2 9.39$             9 169.02$         $             10.00 9 180.00$         
2 Brinston Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$           $             15.00 9 135.00$         
3 Firefighters Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$           $             15.00 9 135.00$         
4 Jaycee Park 2 9.39$             9 169.02$         $             10.00 9 180.00$         
5 Raintree Park 1 9.50$             9 85.50$           $             15.00 9 135.00$         
6 Flynn Park 1 9.50$             7 66.50$           $             15.00 7 105.00$         
7 Troy Farm 1 9.50$             7 66.50$          15.00$                 7 105.00$         

8 Boulan Park 2 9.39$             9 169.02$        8.00$                9 144.00$         
9 Brinston Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$          14.00$              9 126.00$         

10 Firefighters Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$          14.00$              9 126.00$         
11 Jaycee Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$          14.00$              9 126.00$         
12 Raintree Park 1 9.39$             9 84.51$          14.00$              9 126.00$         

1,232.62$     1,623.00$      
30 Weeks 36,978.60$   48,690.00$    

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N
DATE

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation 
Contact Name
24 Hr Phone Number

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Signed Y or N

EXCEPTIONS:

PROPOSAL:   Provide seasonal requirements and furnish all labor, equipment, and supplies to clean 
       the City of Troy Park Restrooms and Picnic Shelters with a two (2) year option to renew 

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Jeffrey Biegler
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director 

G:/Purchasing/Bid Tabs 11-12/ITB-COT 11-02 RestroomMaint Parks.xls

American Cleaning Company LLC

Item # Location 

Picnic Shelters

586.855.4086

Yes

No Exceptions

9197104691
500.00

9479204259

N/A

Yes
2/18/2011

24 Hours
Brisida Bibashani

500.00

Yes
2/25/2011

6am - 6pm
Ollie Wright

313.929.5214

Wright Way Services & Supplies Inc

Yes

30 days after completion

Yes

30 days Net

Yes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-02
Opening Date -- 3/02/11 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Reviewed - 3/3/2011 sl PARKS RESTROOM & PICNIC SHELTER CLEANING

VENDOR NAME:
CHECK #

CHECK AMOUNT
# of Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per

Buildings Building Per Week/Bldg Week Building Per Week/Bldg Week
Restroom

1 Boulan Park 2 22.00$           9 396.00$          $             18.00 9 324.00$         
2 Brinston Park 1 12.00$           9 108.00$          $             12.00 9 108.00$         
3 Firefighters Park 1 12.00$           9 108.00$          $             12.00 9 108.00$         
4 Jaycee Park 2 18.00$           9 324.00$          $             18.00 9 324.00$         
5 Raintree Park 1 12.00$           9 108.00$          $             12.00 9 108.00$         
6 Flynn Park 1 12.00$           7 84.00$            $             12.00 7 84.00$           
7 Troy Farm 1 12.00$           7 84.00$           12.00$                 7 84.00$           

8 Boulan Park 2 23.00$           9 414.00$         18.00$              9 324.00$         
9 Brinston Park 1 18.00$           9 162.00$         12.00$              9 108.00$         

10 Firefighters Park 1 23.00$           9 207.00$         18.00$              9 162.00$         
11 Jaycee Park 1 18.00$           9 162.00$         12.00$              9 108.00$         
12 Raintree Park 1 18.00$           9 162.00$         12.00$              9 108.00$         

2,319.00$      1,950.00$      
30 Weeks 69,570.00$    58,500.00$    

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N
DATE

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation 
Contact Name
24 Hr Phone Number

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N 

EXCEPTIONS:

PROPOSAL:   Provide one (1) year requirements and furnish all labor, equipment, and supplies to clean 
       the City of Troy Park Restrooms and Picnic Shelters with a two (2) year option to renew 

G:/Purchasing/Bid Tabs 11-12/ITB-COT 11-02 RestroomMaint Parks.xls

Kristel Cleaning Inc (Option #1)

Item # Location 

Picnic Shelters

Yes
6/25/2010

8am - 5pm
Ben Pilumaj

BLANK

586.855.0153

Yes

Kristel Cleaning Inc (Option #2)
17823822

500.00
(see option #1)

30 Days

Yes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-02
Opening Date -- 3/02/11 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Reviewed - 3/3/2011 sl PARKS RESTROOM & PICNIC SHELTER CLEANING

VENDOR NAME:
CHECK #

CHECK AMOUNT
# of Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per

Buildings Building Per Week/Bldg Week Building Per Week/Bldg Week
Restroom

1 Boulan Park 2 35.00$           9 630.00$          $             62.00 9 1,116.00$      
2 Brinston Park 1 35.00$           9 315.00$          $             32.00 9 288.00$         
3 Firefighters Park 1 35.00$           9 315.00$          $             62.00 9 558.00$         
4 Jaycee Park 2 35.00$           9 630.00$          $             62.00 9 1,116.00$      
5 Raintree Park 1 35.00$           9 315.00$          $             46.00 9 414.00$         
6 Flynn Park 1 35.00$           7 245.00$          $             70.00 7 490.00$         
7 Troy Farm 1 35.00$           7 245.00$         46.00$                 7 322.00$         

8 Boulan Park 2 $ 9 50.00$           32.00$              9 576.00$         
9 Brinston Park 1 $ 9 50.00$           32.00$              9 288.00$         

10 Firefighters Park 1 $ 9 50.00$           40.00$              9 360.00$         
11 Jaycee Park 1 $ 9 50.00$           40.00$              9 360.00$         
12 Raintree Park 1 $ 9 50.00$           32.00$              9 288.00$         

2,945.00$      6,176.00$      
30 Weeks 88,350.00$    185,280.00$  

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N
DATE

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation 
Contact Name
24 Hr Phone Number

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N 

EXCEPTIONS:

PROPOSAL:   Provide one (1) year requirements and furnish all labor, equipment, and supplies to clean 
       the City of Troy Park Restrooms and Picnic Shelters with a two (2) year option to renew 

G:/Purchasing/Bid Tabs 11-12/ITB-COT 11-02 RestroomMaint Parks.xls

Du All Cleaning Inc

Item # Location 

Picnic Shelters

Yes No
2/25/2011

8am - 5pm 8am - 5pm
Mondi Rakaj Joe Widzinski

Yes

N/A

586.709.9517 313.999.5344

Yes Yes

ABM Janitorial Services - North Central Inc

BLANK

013003857
500.00

530501122-2
500.00

Net 30 Net 30

Yes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-02
Opening Date -- 3/02/11 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Reviewed - 3/3/2011 sl PARKS RESTROOM & PICNIC SHELTER CLEANING

VENDOR NAME:
CHECK #

CHECK AMOUNT
# of Cost/Cleaning/ # of Cleanings Cost Per

Buildings Building Per Week/Bldg Week
Restroom

1 Boulan Park 2 600.00$         9 10,800.00$        
2 Brinston Park 1 324.00$         9 2,916.00$          
3 Firefighters Park 1 324.00$         9 2,916.00$          
4 Jaycee Park 2 600.00$         9 10,800.00$        
5 Raintree Park 1 324.00$         9 2,916.00$          
6 Flynn Park 1 310.00$         7 2,170.00$          
7 Troy Farm 1 272.00$         7 1,904.00$          

8 Boulan Park 2 750.00$         9 13,500.00$        
9 Brinston Park 1 700.00$         9 6,300.00$          

10 Firefighters Park 1 800.00$         9 7,200.00$          
11 Jaycee Park 1 730.00$         9 6,570.00$          
12 Raintree Park 1 790.00$         9 7,110.00$          

75,102.00$        
30 Weeks 2,253,060.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Y or N
DATE

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation 
Contact Name
24 Hr Phone Number

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N 

EXCEPTIONS:

PROPOSAL:   Provide one (1) year requirements and furnish all labor, equipment, and supplies to clean 
       the City of Troy Park Restrooms and Picnic Shelters with a two (2) year option to renew 

G:/Purchasing/Bid Tabs 11-12/ITB-COT 11-02 RestroomMaint Parks.xls

R&B Maintenance Service LLC

Item # Location 

Picnic Shelters

Yes

Yes

2/24/2011

8am - 5pm M-Sat
Shirley Ross

minimum time.

9202207481
500.00

2% Net 10

Yes

Bid reflects maximum time. If awarded, 
negotiation may be discussed for

313.333.3879



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
March 15, 2011                      
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director   

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option –  

Greenstar & Associates, L.L.C. for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services  
 
 
Background 
The City entered into a two-year contract in 2009 fo r right-of-way acquisition services by Resolution 
#2009-04-126 with Greenstar & Associates, L.L.C. (GA) with a one year option to renew. 
 
GA has been previously approved by City Council and the Michigan Department  of Transportation 
(MDOT) to complete the right-of-way (ROW) phase on the following projects: 
 

1. John R, Long Lake to Square Lake, MDOT s ubcontract No. 05-5109/S1, as approved by  
Resolution #2006-07-289-E-5 

 
2. John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard, MDOT subcontract No. 05-5110/S1, as approved by 

Resolution #2006-07-289-E-6 
 

3. Wattles Road, 1000 feet east and west of Rochester Road, MDOT subcontract No. 06-
5417/S1, as approved by Resolution #2006-10-381-E-6 

 
4. Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay, MDOT  subcontract No. 06-5418/S1, as approved by  

Resolution #2006-10-381-E-7 
 
The above referenced projects are near ing completion and it is  in the Cit y’s best interest to contract 
with GA to complete the ROW phase of these projects to retain continuity with owners as well as 
court proceedings currently underway and  anticipated in the near future.  It is anti cipated that all 
property acquisition related to the above referenced projects will be complete within the 2011/12 City 
fiscal year. 
 
Work assigned to GA is on federally funded major road improvement projects only.   
 
GA was also approved by City Council and MDOT to complete the ROW phase on: 
 

5. Rochester Road, Bar clay to Trinway, MD OT subcontract No. 06-5632/S1, as approved by  
Resolution #2007-01-005-E-7 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4b



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Background – continued  
 
The ROW phase of t his project has been r emoved from GA’s contract and wil l be completed by  in-
house staff that has the requisite training and certifications necessary to perform this work.  This work 
is just starting and anticipated to continue for at least two (2) year s.  Additional ROW  phases ar e 
expected to commence on Livernois and Dequindre roads in the future. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew the contract with Greenstar & 
Associates at the same terms and conditions, except as provided for within the First Amendment to 
the original Agreement, with an expiration date of April 7, 2012. 
 
Funding Considerations 
 
Funds for right-of-way related activities are Capital Project costs and are included in the 2010/11 
Major Roads Fund and will be included in the proposed budget, as necessary, in future years. 
 
GA has agreed to a ten (10) percent reduction in the hourly rate for their services to $70.78 per hour.  
GA is only compensated for actual hours worked on the specified projects.   
 
The ROW phase of a major road reconstruction project is a participating item of work and as such is 
eligible for reimbursement with federal funds, whether completed by a consultant or in-house staff. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: 
 
____________________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
____________________________  
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WJH/wjh\G:\Consulting Services\2011\Greenstar\Final Docs\Regular Business - Greenstar Renewal02.11.doc 



 

 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business - Greenstar RenewalAmendment#1-02.11.doc 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF TROY 

AND GREENSTAR & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C. 

 On April 6, 2009, the City of Troy (T ROY) and Greenstar & Associates, L.L.C. 
(GREENSTAR) entered into an Agreement for Right-of-Way Acquis ition Project 
Management and Related Services, which was approved by the Troy  City Council by 
Resolution # 2009-04-126 (AGREEMENT).   

 Under Section 1 of the AGREEMENT, t he contract term was for two (2) years, 
with a one (1) year option to renew.  The par ties to this AGREEMENT are now desirous 
of exercising the one year option to renew. 

 A First Amendment to the AGREEMENT is necessary to change the hourly rate 
and delete one (1) project.   

The parties agree to the terms of this First Amendment, as well as the one year 
extension of the AGREEMENT. 

 Except as stated below, all terms and co nditions of the AGREEMENT remain in 
full force for the one y ear extension period under the contract, which expires on April 7 , 
2012. 

1. Under Section 1 – Services/Compensation of the AGREEMENT,  the hourly r ate 
for services has been reduced by ten (10) percent to an hourly rate of $70.78. 

2. Addendum A, shall be amended to remove the following project from 
GREENSTAR’s services under the AGREEMENT: 

 Rochester Road, Barclay to Trinway 

The parties agree to exercise the one year option to renew the attached contract, wit h 
the following modifications, which are agreed to on this _____ day of ________, 2011.  
 
 
GREENSTAR & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C   CITY OF TROY   
             
By       By       
        Louise Schilling 
    
Its       Its   Mayor    
 
        

By       
        Tonni L. Bartholomew 
        

Its   City Clerk   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  April 6, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) -3- Year Terms; 1-Troy School Board; 1-Troy Daze; & 
1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Terms 
 
JoAnn Thompson - Sr. Advisory Committee Rep. Term Expires 04/30/2010 
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
Albert T. Nelson, Jr. Term Expires 04/30/2012 
 
Yes:  Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak  

MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-3 Contract with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services 
 
Resolution #2009-04-126 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Greenstar & Associates, LLC has been prov iding right-of-way services to the city 
for the past three (3) years on federally funded major road projects; 
 
WHEREAS, Greenstar & Associates, LLC has been approved by City Council and the Michigan 
Department of Transportation (MDOT) for right -of-way services on John R, Long Lake to 
Square Lake; John R, Square Lake to South Boul evard; Wattles Road, 1,000 feet East and 
West of Rochester; Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay; and Rochester Road, Barclay to 
Trinway; and 
 
WHEREAS, Greenstar and Associates, LLC has agr eed to the same terms and conditions as 
the original agreement, as amended,  with no increase to the hourly rate of $78.64 per hour for 
the first year; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the agreement 
between the City of Troy and Greenstar & Associates , LLC to provide right-of-way services for 
a period of two (2) years wit h an option to renew for one (1) additional year, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute t he agreement documents, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is  CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed documents including insur ance certificates and any other specified 
requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  April 6, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

Yes:  Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak  

MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-4 Scheduling a Special Meeting with Executive Search Firm 
 
Resolution #2009-04-127 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, At the regularly scheduled City C ouncil meeting on March 30, 2009 Troy City 
Council chose the firm of Charles Blockett, Jr. & Associates, Inc. of Lansing, Michigan to 
perform an executive search for a city manager; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Charles Blockett requested a 1–1½ hour meeting with City Council for 
introductions and to: 
 
 Clarify their expectations 
 Gain an understanding of the position 
 Develop a description/profile of the ideal candidate 
 Discuss the tentative schedule and review his proposed strategy;  

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a special 
meeting for Thursday, April 16, 2009 at 7:00 PM in the Council Board Room  of Troy City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: Schilling, Kerwin  
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak  

MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-5 Confirmation of Appointment of Gary Mayer to Chief of Police 
 
Resolution #2009-04-128 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The ACT 78 Board met on March 30, 2009 and certified the eligibility of Acting 
Police Chief Gary Mayer for Police Chief; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the Acting City 
Manager’s appointment of Gary Mayer as Police Chief. 
 















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 21, 2011 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
Background  
 
Berger Chevrolet, Inc is the low total bidder in the Oakland County cooperative bid.  Due to staffing 
reductions, the four (4) 2011 Chevrolet Silverado 4X4’s being purchased are replacing five (5) 2001 
Dodge 4X4 vehicles to be sold at auction.  The vehicles are used daily by the Public Works 
Department.  These four (4) new vehicles will be equipped at a later date with front snow plows and 
2-1/2 yard dump bodies. 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
City management and the Public Works Fleet Division request authorization to purchase four (4) 2011 
Chevrolet Silverado cabs and chassis from Berger Chevrolet, Inc of Grand Rapids, MI, as a result of 
the Oakland County cooperative bid for an estimated total cost of $94,241.00.   
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

         
                                                                                   
ESTIMATED 

  BUDGET           UNIT COST        TOTAL 
      (4) Chevrolet Silverado 4X4  $120,000.00  $23,560.25          $ 94,241.00 
           cabs and chassis           
 
 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Miller Review/Agenda 3.28.11 – SR4 – Vehicles Oakland County Letter 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4c



OAKLAND COUNTY

PURCHASING DIVISION

VendorlD 0000016040
Phone: "llD1575 _'H,Ol"j
Fax: 616/988-9194 bevans@bergerchevy.com

Contad: 'O(UVHl.', ~ob E,VOJl$

Prl tt hD'

CONTRACT
rsna c via rm

Contract 10 Page
0000000000000000000003005 1 of 2
Contract Dates F.O.B. Terms
10/22/2010 to 09/30/2011 DEST NET30
Buyer Phone Email
Scott Guzzv 248/858-5484 ouzzvsenoakcov.com
Description: Contract Maximum
Vehicles 2011 Chevy's ~B- COOP 400,000.00

L. BROOKS PATTERSON - OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE

·11·O'~~.b . ~

g/J
'~.."

Executive Office Building 41 West
2100 Pontiac Lake Rd.
Lower Level
Waterford MI 48328-0462
Main Phone 248/858-0511
www.oakgov.com/purchasing/

Berger Chevrolet
2525 28th Street SE
Grand Rapids MI 49512

Tax Exem tID: 38-6004876

ine # Item Number ItemlDescri tion Cate 0 Co Item UOM Contract Price

000000000000027231 2011 Chevy Trucks and Vans 25000000 EA 1.00

This contract is for 2011 model year Chevrolet Trucks, Vans, and SUV's. Govemment entities are to contact the
dealer for verification of the vehicle ordered and send all Purchase Orders directly to the dealer.

The dealer is responsible for delivery to all participants located within Oakland County.
Delivery charges to municipalities outside the County of Oakland must be noted on the Purchase Order

The vehicle shall include a minimum of five (5) gallons of fuel with each vehicle delivery-or pickup. This is
included in the base price of the vehicle. NO EXCEPTIONS.

The standard cost subtotal shall include cost of the TITLE Which is currently $15.00

The dealer should note any other irregularities in regards to options, etc, on the final Quote to the government
entity.

Color will be determined at the time of order by the County or other government entity ordering the vehicle.

LATE PAY CHARGE from DATE OF DELIVERY:

OVER 10 BUSINESS DAYS $0

OVER 15 BUSINESS DAYS 1% of Purchase

OVER 30 BUSINESS DAYS 2% of Purchase

Charge per mile for delivery to any government entity outside of Oakland County
$1.75/permile.

*IrContact ,?ealer for Verification Actual Cost of Delivery"?"

FOB: DESTINATION- Vendor is responsible until vehicle is accepted at time of pick-up or delivery.

Out of stock purchases are subject to price adjustments due to loss of protection, floor plan credit and possible
GM advertising charges.

THIS IS A COOPERATIVE PURCHASING BLANKET ORDER.

Inasmuch as no specific quantities are indicated on this contract, there is no commitment involved by Oakland County
other than for the payment of goods procured under the conditions of this contract.



OAKLAND COUNTY

PURCHASING DIVISION

VendorlD 0000016040
Phone:
Fax: 616/988-9194 bevans@bergerchevy.com

P" tt hD"

CONTRACT
rsna c via rm

Contract ID Page
0000000000000000000003005 2 of 2
Contract Dates F.O.B. Terms
10/22/2010 to 09/30/2011 DEST NET 30
Buyer Phone Email
Scott Guzzi 248/858-5484 ouaevsencekccv.ccm
Description: Contract Maximum
Vehicles 2011 Chevy's -B- COOP 400.000.00

L. BROOKS PATIERSON - OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE

itilf..,
g~8
'~.>t.

Executive Office Building 41 West
2100 Pontiac Lake Rd.
Lower Level
Waterford MI 48328-0462
Main Phone 248/858-0511
www.oakgov.com/purchasing/

Berger Chevrolet
2525 28th Street SE
Grand Rapids MI49512

Tax Exem tID; 38-6004876

ine # Item Number Item/Descri tion Cate 0 Co Item UOM Contract Price

Oakland County issues individual Purchase Orders on behalf of County Departments as authorization for items ordered from
this contract. The individual Purchase Order numbers are to be used on all Invoices, Bills of Lading, Shipping
Documents and all correspondence relating to the Purchase Order.

Itemized invoices must be submitted to the Oakland County Fiscal Services Division, Accounts Payable, 4th Floor, 2100
Pontiac Lake Rd., Wateriord, Ml 48328, unless otherwise stipulated, for subsequent checking as to price and content.
Invoices not itemized may be returned for Correction.

This contract is not to be used for the purchase of any equipment and or services not listed herein. Oakland County
requires a 30 day written notice of all price changes. Oakland County reserves the right to take advantage of any
special pricing programs available from the contract vendor or any other outside vendors offering the said special
pricing programs to Oakland County during the term of this contract.

Oakland County reserves the right to cancel this contract if orders are not filled within the time and in accordance
with the terms specified.

All shipments must be accompanied by Packing Slips and containers properly marked with requesting Department Name,
Address, Contact Person and Purchase Order Number.

The prices indicated on this contract are not subject to change without written notification in advance.

No Charges will be allowed for boxinq or packing unless stated on the Contract. Acceptance of this contract includes
specifications, process, delivery and conditions. included therein. Material is subject to inspection on our property.
If rejected we agree to first advise vendor before returning goods. All freight and extra handling charges derived from
said rejection shall be borne by the vendor. The acceptance of this contract does not in any way make the County of
Oakland a party to any infringement or damage suits. Such suits to be borne by the vendor.

A Materials Safety Data Sheet shall accompany or precede all shipments of materials subject to the Michigan Hazard
Communications Standard also known as the "Right to Know Law" and classified as hazardous by Michigan Compiled Laws, Act
154 of the Public Acts of 1974 as amended. All containers shall have approved warning labels in accordance with this
law. Copies of all MSDS's are to be sent to the requesting department.

Pursuant to Act 167 of the Public Acts of 1933, the County of Oakland, a Michigan Constitutional Corporation, is exempt
from the sales tax provisions of this Act. In addition, the Michigan Department of Treasury has promulgated General and
Specific Sales and Use Tax Rules which provide that the County of Oakland is not required to have a sales tax exemption
number (R205.79; Rule 29).
FOR REPORTING PURPOSES - COUNTY OF OAKLAND I.D. #38-6004876W.

2010/10/25 CJB
Contract Finalized

J:;ij!;J;0ature



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 21, 2011 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicle 
 
 
Background 
 
Signature Ford is the low total bidder in the Macomb County cooperative bid. The vehicle being 
purchased is a replacement vehicle in the Fire Department for one being sold at auction.  Due to 
staffing reductions in the Fire Department, we are only purchasing one (1) 2011 Ford Expedition, 
instead of the two (2) originally budgeted. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management and the Public Works Fleet Division request authorization to purchase one (1) 2011 
Ford Expedition 4X4 from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, as a result of the Macomb County 
cooperative bid for an estimated total cost of $27,767.50.   
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

            
                                                        ESTIMATED   
BUDGET           UNIT COST        TOTAL 

      (1) Ford Expedition 4X4 (Fire)  $28,000.00  $27,767.50    $ 27,767.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Miller Review/Agenda 3.28.11 – SR4 – Vehicles Macomb County Letter 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4d















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 23, 2011 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager   
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Lowest Bidder – Custodial Supplies  
 
 
Background  
 
On February 23, 2011, formal, competitive bids were received in accordance with City Charter and Code to provide 
one (1) year requirements of custodial supplies. 118 vendors were notified via the MITN website with fifteen (15) bid 
responses received, as well as one (1) statement of no bid.  Supply orders will be placed monthly with inventory 
warehoused and distributed as needed. 
  
Central Poly Corporation is the lowest bidder when you consider more monies would be expended to award to either 
Empire or Hercules, as Empire’s bid was based on an all or none award and Hercules toilet tissue product does not 
fit our dispensers. 
   
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Recommendation  
 
City management and the Building Operations Department recommend awarding the one (1) year contract to 
provide custodial supplies to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation, of Linden,, NJ for an estimated 
total cost of $15,662.00 at unit prices as contained on the attached bid tabulation. 
 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the various departmental operating budgets for Custodial Supplies.  
 
 
Reviewed by: Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - CustodialSupplies ITB-COT11-03 03.11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4e



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

sl
VENDOR NAME: ** Central Empire Sun Valley Hercules & 

Poly Corp Equipment Foods Co Hercules Inc
& Supply Co

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 29.89$        29.33$        31.11$       29.45$        
29.04$        w/terms DMS

2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 13.39$        14.67$        13.69$       15.00$        
14.52$        w/terms

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 15,662.00$ DMS 16,178.00$ N/A
7 - 14 Days

DELIVERY: Within ARO 3 Days 1 Day 7 Days
Minimum shipment: $100.00 $500.00 $500.00 $150.00

Mon - Fri
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-4PM 8AM-5PM 7AM-4PM 8AM-5PM

24 Hr Phone # (800)480-BAGS (313)366-0700 (313)615-9590 (313)933-6669
Fax # (908) 862-9019 (313)366-0706 (313)865-6364 (313)933-1801

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked See Attached A Blank 4064 & 1751

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Y Y

1% 10 Days
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 Net 30PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 

Rplc in 30 days
WARRANTY: ARO Manufacturer Blank Manufacturer

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N N Y Y N

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies
NO BIDS:
Industrial Cleaning Supply Company BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

DMS:
Empire Equipment & Supply Co - Reason: All or None Award ($15,972.00)
Hercules & Hercules Inc - Reason: Toilet roll size too small at 4 x3.21 in - Does not fit dispensers

ATTEST:
MaryAnn Hays Susan Leirstein CPPO,CPPB
Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
Julie Hamilton 

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: APAC Paper Nichols Jem HP Products
& Packaging Industries, Inc Corporation

Alternate
EST CASE CASE CASE CASE

ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
80 Rolls/ Case

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 33.50$         32.20$        30.63$         30.29$          
2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 13.95$        15.10$       17.12$         14.44$         

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 17,025.00$ 17,210.00$ 17,749.00$  18,124.40$  

DELIVERY: Within 3 Days 2 Days 2-3 Days 3-10 Days
Minimum shipment: $200.00 $250.00 $400.00 $200.00

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM 8-5 M-F 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM
24 Hr Phone # (313) 982-6400 (800) 442-0213 (248) 583-1879 (800) 333-7277
Fax # (313) 982-9900 (231) 799-3550 (248) 583-1976 (734) 369-5708

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked NPS Specs Blank #1, #2

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 25 Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Blank BlankWARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Blank Blank

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N N N Y N

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: Supply Pro Staples Jem Commerce
Business Industries, Inc Connect LLC
Advantage

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 35.71$         33.95$        32.81$         46.26$          
2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 14.84$        17.15$       18.34$         25.00$         

** see note
ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 18,133.00$ 18,760.00$ 19,013.00$  26,378.00$  

DELIVERY: Within 1 Day 1 Day 2-3 Days 2 Days
Minimum shipment: $500.00 $50.00 $400.00 $75.00

M-F M-F 
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 7:30AM-4PM

24 Hr Phone # (248) 672-1800 (800) 693-9900 (248) 583-1879 (810) 423-3741
Fax # (810) 239-2819 (248) 465-1529 (248) 583-1976 (810) 424-0042

Descriptive 
DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank Literature Flyer ADD. #1

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX Exception
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y N Y N

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY: N/A Manufacturer Blank Mfg

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N Y N N N

EXCEPTIONS: Attached To Blank Blank Insurance 
Bib "B" will be via 

supplier who
Ships 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

** Note: Amount corrected by Purchasing

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: E & R Applied - Madalyns 
Industrial Michigan, LTD Contracting

LLC
EST CASE CASE CASE CASE

ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
80 Roll Case => 40.63$         w/terms

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 41.46$        42.74$        47.00$         
19.12$        w/terms

2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 19.51$        34.11$        65.70$         
24,186.99$  

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 24,680.60$ 29,877.00$ 46,950.00$  

DELIVERY: Within 1-2 Days 3-5 Days 10 Days
Minimum shipment: $250.00 2 Cases $400.00

8AM-12PM Sat M-F
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM M-F 8AM-4:30PM 9AM-6PM

24 Hr Phone # (586) 540-7635 (586) 978-7400 (248) 414-9438
Fax # (586) 795-2553 (586) 978-7600 (248) 486-4010

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Attachment A Blank X 

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX Page Missing
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Page Missing

2%, 10 Days
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Page MissingPAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Page Missing

WARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Page Missing

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N Y N Page Missing

EXCEPTIONS: $75 shipping Blank Page Missing
fee will apply

for order under 
min ship amount

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Page Missing

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 4, 2011                
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders –    
   Traffic Control Signs and Posts 
 
Background 
On February 10, 2011, bid proposals were received to furnish one-year requirements of traffic control 
signs and posts.  Items were competitively bid in accordance with City Charter and Code with 132 
vendors notified via the MITN system and seven (7) companies responding.  Quantities are estimated 
and shall be purchased at quoted unit prices, on an as needed basis. 
 
All items bid were separated into eleven proposal categories, A – K and due to minimum shipment 
requirements, contracts are to be awarded on a proposal by proposal basis. Proposal G is a set-up 
fee to fabricate non-standard signs for all sizes listed in the contract. Therefore, all vendors awarded 
sign material contracts shall also be awarded Proposal G.   
 
Rathco Safety Supply is the low bidder for Proposal D because their minimum order of $500.00 
allows for a lower total cost.   
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding contracts on a proposal by proposal basis to the following 
five (5) low bidders:  1) Custom Products Corporation of Jackson, MS for Proposals A, B, C, G, J and 
K; 2) Rathco Safety Supply Inc of Portage, MI for Proposal D and G; 3) Rocal Inc of Frankfort, OH for 
Proposals E, F and G; 4) Carrier & Gable Inc of Farmington Hills, MI for Proposal H; and 5) Dornbos 
Sign Inc of Charlotte, MI for Proposal I for an estimated total cost of $43,280.00 at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation, opened February 10, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability 
Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Public Works Streets Division. 
 
 
 
ef S:/MillersReveiw\Agenda Item 03.07.11 – TrafficControlSigns&Posts Letter 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4f



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 11-01
Opening Date -- 2/10/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 3/4/2011 sl TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom Products Carrier & Dornbos
Corp Gable Sign, Inc

ITEM EST QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM

1. 50 36" YIELD (R1-2) 15.86$              No bid 17.09$        
2. 50 30" STOP (R1-1) 23.24$              No bid 24.00$        
3. 10 36" STOP (R1-1) 33.08$              No bid 33.40$        
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way        (R1-4) 3.96$                No bid 3.40$          

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL  -- 2,325.40$        2,422.50$    

PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE, 3M Diamond Grade, DG3 Reflective, Fluorescent Yellow Green
1. 20 36" S2-1 School Crossing 63.67$              No bid 68.35$        
2. 20 30" S1-1 School Advanced 44.46$              No bid 47.45$        
3. 20 36" S1-1 School Advanced 63.67$              No bid 68.35$        
4. 20 24"x12" Directional Arrow (W16-7p) 15.05$              No bid 16.43$        

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL -- 3,737.00$        4,011.60$    

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR - SIGN
1. 10 12" X 18" One Color 6.29$                No bid 6.21$          
2. 20 12" X 36" One Color 11.90$              No bid 12.42$        
3. 10 18" X 6" One Color 3.96$                No bid 3.11$          
4. 30 18" X 18" One Color 9.58$                No bid 9.32$          
5. 20 24" X 24" One Color 15.85$              No bid 16.56$        
6. 50 24" X 30" One Color 19.74$              No bid 20.70$        
7. 20 24" X 36" One Color 22.96$              No bid 24.84$        
8. 50 30" X 30" One Color 23.98$              No bid 25.88$        
9. 10 36" X 36" One Color 34.17$              No bid 37.26$        
10. 10 48" X 24" One Color 30.69$              No bid 33.12$        
11. 10 48" X 48" One Color 59.47$              No bid 66.24$        
12. 50 12" X 30" High Intensity 9.90$                No bid 10.35$        
13. 50 12" X 36" High Intensity 11.90$              No bid 12.42$        
14. 50 12" X 48" High Intensity 15.85$              No bid 16.56$        
15. 20 12" X 54" High Intensity 17.82$              No bid 18.63$        
16. 10 12" X 60" High Intensity 19.74$              No bid 20.70$        

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL -- 7,269.70$        7,690.50$    

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS- SIGN
1. 200 12" X 12" Two Color 5.67$                No bid 4.55$          
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 6.69$                No bid 6.82$          
3. 20 30" X 30" Three Color 30.38$              No bid 28.93$        

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL -- 2,076.10$        1,829.60$    =>DMS

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 1,000 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A Faces 3.20$                No bid 2.15$          
2 50 24" x 24" No Parking Symbol R8-3A Faces 7.91$                No bid 8.26$          
3 50 30" Stop Faces 11.01$              No bid 11.74$        
4 20 36" Stop Faces 14.98$              No bid 16.92$        
5 50 36" Yield Faces 7.44$                No bid 8.46$          

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL -- 4,817.60$        3,911.40$    

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE - SIGN
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded Aluminum White 17.95$              No bid 17.57$        
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded Aluminum White 21.70$              No bid 21.01$        
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded Aluminum White 25.33$              No bid 24.40$        
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded Aluminum White 9.68$                No bid 14.21$        
5. 50 6" X 30" Extruded Aluminum White 12.11$              No bid 17.63$        
6. 50 6" X 36" Extruded Aluminum White 14.33$              No bid 21.07$        
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded Aluminum White 16.73$              No bid 24.50$        

PROPOSAL F: EST TOTAL -- 5 144 90$ 6 247 60$PROPOSAL F:  EST TOTAL -- 5,144.90$        6,247.60$    



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 11-01
Opening Date -- 2/10/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 3/4/2011 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom Products Carrier & Dornbos
Corp Gable Sign, Inc

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES 25.00$             Blank Blank

PROPOSAL H: SQUARE TUBULAR SIGN POSTS - PERFORATED - GALVANIZED STEEL - FHWA APPROVED
1. 100 12 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge 24.31$              22.00$        27.72$        
2. 100   9 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge 18.18$              16.60$        20.79$        
3. 200   3 Ft X 2" Base - 12 Gauge 9.08$                8.80$          11.76$        

PROPOSAL H:  EST TOTAL -- 6,065.00$        5,620.00$  7,203.00$    

PROPOSAL I: ROUND GALVANIZED STEEL POST, 2" NOMINAL SIZE .125 WALL THICKNESS
1. 100 12 FT Galvanized steel round post No bid No bid 53.90$        

PROPOSAL I:  EST TOTAL -- 5,390.00$    

PROPOSAL J: U-CHANNEL SIGN POSTS
1. 50 12 FT - 3lbs Galvanized Steel 27.69$              No bid 29.42$        
2. 100 12 FT - 3lbs Green Painted Steel 23.19$              No bid 23.63$        
3. 100 10 FT - 2lbs Green Painted Steel 13.32$              No bid 13.13$        

PROPOSAL J:  EST TOTAL -- 5,035.50$        5,147.00$    
OPTIONAL:
PROPOSAL K: Complete Signs, Single Face 3M Diamond Grade DG3 Reflective Sheeting Series 4000 or Avery Omnicube T-11500

1. 50 36" Yield (R1-2) 28.97$              No bid 33.28$        
2. 50 30" Stop (R1-1) 43.71$              No bid 45.72$        
3. 10 36" Stop (R1-1) 61.86$              No bid 65.74$        
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way (R1-4) 6.36$                No bid 5.80$          

PROPOSAL K:  EST TOTAL -- 4,316.20$        4,665.40$    

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 22,683.80$      5,620.00$  5,390.00$    

DELIVERY: Minimum Shipment $500.00 $1.00 $ 1,000 +
# of Days 30, Nonstock 14 days 30-45 days

post 45

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 7 a.m. - 5 p.m. 7 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 7:30 a.m.-5:00 p.m.

24 Hr Phone Number: (601) 933-8282 (248)4778700 (517)7192417

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked #5 Catalog Attach. 1 Blank

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 N-30
3M Warranty 

WARRANTY: applies 90 days 3M
30, Nonstock

DELIVERY: post 45 1 week 30 - 45 days

EXCEPTIONS: Attached To Bid None Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y or N N N N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Y Y Y
ATTEST:
Emily Frontera DMS: Dornbos Sign, Inc was disqualified on Proposal D due to minimum shipment levels
Diane Fisher exceeding those specified ($500.00 or less).
Tom Rosewarne ____________________________
Sumita Austen Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
G:\ITB-COT 11-01 Traffic Control Signs & Posts Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-01
Opening Date -- 2/10/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 3/4/2011 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: Rathco Safety Rocal Unistrut Detroit Vulcan 
Supply Inc Inc Service Co Signs

ITEM EST QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM

1. 50 36" YIELD (R1-2) 18.07$           17.82$         No Bid 16.87$           
2. 50 30" STOP (R1-1) 26.73$           28.24$         No Bid 24.25$           
3. 10 36" STOP (R1-1) 38.49$           40.91$         No Bid 35.30$           
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way        (R1-4) 3.29$             3.40$           No Bid 4.60$             

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL  -- 2,657.80$     2,746.10$    2,455.00$     

PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE, 3M Diamond Grade, DG3 Reflective, Fluorescent Yellow Green
1. 20 36" S2-1 School Crossing 67.70$           67.75$         Blank 64.40$           
2. 20 30" S1-1 School Advanced 46.37$           47.21$         Blank 44.93$           
3. 20 36" S1-1 School Advanced 66.77$           67.75$         Blank 64.40$           
4. 20 24"x12" Directional Arrow (W16-7p) 15.04$           15.04$         Blank 15.28$           

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL -- 3,917.60$     3,955.00$    3,780.20$     

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR - SIGN
1. 10 12" X 18" One Color 6.59$             6.81$           Blank 6.36$             
2. 20 12" X 36" One Color 13.17$           13.30$         Blank 12.76$           
3. 10 18" X 6" One Color 3.29$             3.40$           Blank 4.60$             
4. 30 18" X 18" One Color 9.88$             10.10$         Blank 9.66$             
5. 20 24" X 24" One Color 17.56$           17.74$         Blank 16.80$           
6. 50 24" X 30" One Color 21.95$           22.17$         Blank 20.35$           
7. 20 24" X 36" One Color 26.34$           26.61$         Blank 24.42$           
8. 50 30" X 30" One Color 27.44$           27.72$         Blank 25.44$           
9. 10 36" X 36" One Color 39.51$           40.39$         Blank 36.63$           
10. 10 48" X 24" One Color 35.12$           35.90$         Blank 32.56$           
11. 10 48" X 48" One Color 70.25$           71.80$         Blank 65.12$           
12. 50 12" X 30" High Intensity 10.98$           11.22$         Blank 11.77$           
13. 50 12" X 36" High Intensity 13.17$           13.30$         Blank 12.76$           
14. 50 12" X 48" High Intensity 17.56$           17.74$         Blank 16.28$           
15. 20 12" X 54" High Intensity 19.76$           19.96$         Blank 18.32$           
16. 10 12" X 60" High Intensity 21.95$           22.44$         Blank 20.32$           

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL -- 8,155.10$     8,270.10$    7,721.70$     

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS- SIGN
1. 200 12" X 12" Two Color 4.55$             4.68$           Blank 4.98$             
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 6.95$             7.01$           Blank 6.82$             
3. 20 30" X 30" Three Color 30.45$           32.97$         Blank 26.53$           

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL -- 1,866.50$     1,945.90$    1,867.60$     

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 1,000 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A Faces 2.02$             1.92$           Blank 2.35$             
2 50 24" x 24" No Parking Symbol R8-3A Faces 8.06$             7.46$           Blank 7.92$             
3 50 30" Stop Faces 11.82$           11.00$         Blank 11.62$           
4 20 36" Stop Faces 17.01$           15.61$         Blank 16.74$           
5 50 36" Yield Faces 7.56$             7.06$           Blank 7.45$             

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL -- 3,732.20$     3,508.20$    4,034.30$     

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE - SIGN
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded Aluminum White 20.48$           14.15$         Blank 15.34$           
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded Aluminum White 24.57$           16.94$         Blank 18.41$           
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded Aluminum White 28.67$           19.80$         Blank 21.49$           
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded Aluminum White 11.52$           8.21$           Blank 8.53$             
5. 50 6" X 30" Extruded Aluminum White 14.40$           10.26$         Blank 10.70$           
6. 50 6" X 36" Extruded Aluminum White 17.28$           12.32$         Blank 12.80$           
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded Aluminum White 20.16$           14.37$         Blank 14.90$           

PROPOSAL F:  EST TOTAL -- 6,001.60$     4,211.50$    4,470.80$     



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 2/10/11 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 11-01
Date Reviewed -- 3/4/2011 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS Pg. 4 of 4

VENDOR NAME: Rathco Safety Rocal Inc Unistrut Detroit Vulcan 
Supply Inc Service Co Signs

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES 50.00$             $ 1.50 per S.F. Blank Call for Quote

PROPOSAL H: SQUARE TUBULAR SIGN POSTS - PERFORATED - GALVANIZED STEEL - FHWA APPROVED
1. 100 12 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge No Bid No Bid 87.36$             23.76$           
2. 100   9 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge No Bid No Bid 65.52$             17.82$           
3. 200   3 Ft X 2" Base - 12 Gauge No Bid No Bid 23.70$             8.85$             

PROPOSAL H:  EST TOTAL -- 20,028.00$       5,928.00$     

PROPOSAL I: ROUND GALVANIZED STEEL POST, 2" NOMINAL SIZE .125 WALL THICKNESS
1. 100 12 FT Galvanized steel round post 61.50$           No Bid No Bid No bid

PROPOSAL I:  EST TOTAL -- 6,150.00$     

PROPOSAL J: U-CHANNEL SIGN POSTS
1. 50 12 FT - 3lbs Galvanized Steel 31.80$           No Bid Blank 34.60$           
2. 100 12 FT - 3lbs Green Painted Steel 27.48$           No Bid Blank 29.31$           
3. 100 10 FT - 2lbs Green Painted Steel 17.20$           No Bid Blank 16.16$           

PROPOSAL J:  EST TOTAL -- 6,058.00$     6,277.00$     
OPTIONAL:
PROPOSAL K: Complete Signs, Single Face 3M Diamond Grade DG3 Reflective Sheeting Series 4000 or Avery Omnicube T-11500

1. 50 36" Yield (R1-2) 28.86$           29.41$         Blank 29.70$           
2. 50 30" Stop (R1-1) 45.03$           46.82$         Blank 44.83$           
3. 10 36" Stop (R1-1) 64.85$           67.66$         Blank 64.96$           
4. 10 18" x 6" All Way (R1-4) 5.48$             5.63$           Blank 5.86$             

PROPOSAL K:  EST TOTAL -- 4,397.80$     4,544.40$    4,434.70$     

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 1,866.50$     7,719.70$    

DELIVERY: Minimum Shipment $500.00 $500.00 Blank 50.00$          
# of Days 45 day max. 30-45 days 2 weeks stock-3-5 days

nonstock - 30days

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 8:00 a.m.-5:00 pm 8:00 a.m.-4:30 pm 8:00 a.m.-4:30 p.m. 7 a.m.-4 p.m. CST
24 Hr Phone Number: X (740)9982122 None (800) 633-6845

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank Blank telespar-not incl. Blank

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 days Net 30 1/2 of 1%, net Net 30 Days
1 year labor 30 days

WARRANTY: Blank 10 yrs sheeting Blank Std Warranties 
stock-3-5 days

DELIVERY: 45 days max. 30-45 days 2 weeks nonstock - 30days

As Stated
EXCEPTIONS: Blank None Blank in Bid

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y or N N N N N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Traffic Control Signs and Posts

HIGHLIGHTED AMOUNTS DENOTE LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS

G:\ITB-COT 11-01 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 15, 2011 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –  
   Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
 
Background  
 

ITB-COT 10-11, to provide one-year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an 
option to renew for one additional year was competitively bid and opened on March 11, 2010, in 
accordance with City Charter and Code.  On April 5, 2010, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract 
to provide Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
lowest total acceptable bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI (Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4b).  
Bedrock Express LTD is interested in renewing their contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting new 
bids for hauling and disposal of excavated and extracted material.  A survey of like services was performed 
on the MTIN website and another contract bid late 2010 by Sterling Heights reveals pricing up for hauling 
by 18%. 
 
 

Recommendation  
 

City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with Bedrock 
Express LTD of Ortonville, MI for the hauling and disposal of dirt and debris under the same contract 
prices, terms, and conditions expiring March 31, 2012. 

 
 
Fund Availability  
 

Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drain and road 
resurface maintenance and the Water Division for mains and tap-in maintenance. 
 

 
 
 
 
 S:/Millers Review/ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - Hauling&DisposalITB-COT10-11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4g



March 14, 2011 
 

 
TO:      Mark F Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
FROM:     Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
       
RE:     MARKET SURVEY – Hauling/Disposal of Dirt & Debris 
 
 
OSBURN INDUSTRIES INC,   –     Michael Machesky                              (313) 292-4140 
According to Mike, unstable fuel prices remain the biggest challenge. Often times when 
placed in a bidding situation, the company will include an amount for fuel surcharges. 
The charges add stability to a very volatile market.   
 
TOTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC   –      John Johnson                (734) 787-8236 
John commented that even though fuel costs put negative pressure on the market, there 
are positives to consider. More people are hungry for business, labor rates have 
reduced, and a lot of equipment is idle.  
 
AHERN CONTRACTING INC     –       James Ahern                                (810) 343-0403 
James has indicated that the price of fuel impacts contract prices.  In addition, dump 
sites, in particular those for concrete don’t want concrete mixed with dirt. A lack of 
construction sites to dump fill dirt and the need to travel farther to dump sites is 
impacting the market as well.  
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC -   Doug Reams                 (248) 596-3504 
Left message 3/10/11 – No reply 
 
 
TECHNICAL LOGISTIC CORP –            Paul David                                (734) 947-4067 
In talking with Paul, he stated they would bid if given the opportunity, but probably 
couldn’t be competitive as his trains already have dedicated work. 
 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris with the current 
vendor because of the volatility of the fuel market.    
 
 
CC:  File 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final April 5, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Aw ard – Low est Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris  

 
Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract to provide Hauling 
and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to r enew for one (1) additional year to the lowest 
total acceptable bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation, which opened March 11, 2010 with t he contract expiring March 31, 2011, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract document s, including insurance certific ates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed 

Concrete  
 
Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On March 30, 2009, one-year contracts for transit mixed concrete with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional year were awarded to the low bidders, Nagy Ready Mix, Inc. of 
Utica, MI as the primary supp lier and Superior Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI as the 
secondary supplier (Resolution #2009-03-115-F-4b);  
 
WHEREAS, On December 30, 2009, Nagy Ready Mi x, Inc. ceased operati ons and all assets 
and contracts were assumed by Paragon Ready Mix, Inc.; and  
 
WHEREAS, Paragon Ready Mix, Inc., the primary supplier, and Superior Materials, LLC, the 
secondary supplier, have agreed to exercise the option to renew the contracts for one (1) additional 
year under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts to provide transit mixed concrete with Paragon Ready Mix, Inc. of Utica, MI, 
as the primary supplier, and Super ior Materials, LLC, as the secondary supplier, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 12, 2009, with contract expiring April 30, 2011. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low est Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Mosquito Control  
 
Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract for Mosquito 
Control to the lowest total acceptable bidder, Cu stom Lawn Care of Burton, MI for Proposals A-
G at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation, which open ed February 16, 2010, with the 
contract expiring December 31, 2012, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



 

 
March 23, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: – Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications - 

Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
Background 
 On March 11, 2010, bid proposals were electronically received for one-year requirements of Hauling and 

Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year. 
 Ninety-two (92) vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) vendors responding.   
 Each item on the proposal was considered as a separate bid and each item was separately evaluated. 
 Total Management Services was the low bidder for hauling and disposal of catch basin sludge and street 

sweeping, however they were not taking the material to an approved land fill, as required in the City of Troy 
specifications.  

 Ahern Contracting, Inc., the next lowest bidder for the catch basin sludge and street sweeping, bid a land 
fill that would only accept the weights from their own scales and not those of the City’s.  In order to verify 
invoices, the City utilizes the scale located at the DPW for the tonnage that is being taken out of the DPW 
yard.  Since the City will only accept the weights from our own scale, the difference in tonnage was too 
great and Ahern Contracting Inc. decided to withdraw his bid for this item.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2010-2011 Operating Budgets for the Streets and Water departments. 
 The unit price for each of the hauling categories has decreased since the last time these services were bid.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 10-11, Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris was competitively bid as required by City Charter and 

Code. 
 The award is contingent upon contractors’ submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 

specified requirements. 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends awarding a one year contract with an option to renew for one additional 

year to the lowest bidder meeting specifications for all items, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $54,220.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 11, 2010 to 
expire March 31, 2011. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-11
Opening Date -- 3/11/10 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared --  3/11/10 jh HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Bedrock Osburn Total 
Electronic Bid Express LTD Industries, Inc Management

(Bedrock Maint Services
Services)

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed
 w/fill dirt 3.96$                 4.25$                 7.50$                  

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 4.29$                 5.00$                 7.50$                  

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer
repairs. 3.96 6.50$                 7.50$                  

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 14.29$               14.40$               DMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) 54,220.00$        73,400.00$        75,000.00$         

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS:
** ** **

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Riverview

DISPOSAL SITE: Landfill Saulk Trails, Canton Messina Trucking Yard

APPROVED SITE Y or N Yes Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: Will Send if awarded MIR00000 9207 Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations M-S  7AM to 5PM 8 AM to 5 PM Blank
24 Hr Phone # 810-217-6324 313-363-0077 586-709-3891
Tax ID # 38-2691219 38-6061972 30-0508195

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Yes Yes No
Date Blank 9-Mar-2010 Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD -Box Ckd Y or N No No No

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST: ** Called Vendors that were missing the "Information Sheet"

Deanna Theobald BOLDFACE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE  BIDDER
Thomas Rosewarne
Diane Fisher
Linda Bockstanz ___________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 10-11 Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-11
Opening Date -- 3/11/10 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Prepared --  3/11/10 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Electronic Bid Ahern Waste Technical 
Contracting Inc. Management Logistic

of Michigan Corporation

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed No Bid
 w/fill dirt 6.94$               -$                     6.85$                 

No Bid
2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 7.94$               -$                     10.50$               

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer
repairs. 6.94 16.25$                 16.00$               

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. Withdrawn 16.25$                 18.50$               

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) 70,400.00$      130,000.00$        154,700.00$      

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS:
**

REFERENCES: Y or N No Yes Yes

DISPOSAL SITE: Blank Pine Trees - Lenox, Mi Arbor Hills Landfill

APPROVED SITE Y or N No Yes Yes
EPA PERMIT #: Blank MID 185388089 475946

Sat - 7 am to Noon
CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations Blank M-F  7AM to 5 PM 6 AM to 5 PM

24 Hr Phone # Blank 800-963-4776 734-644-3581
Tax ID # Blank 38-2544258 38-3413000

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Yes No Yes
Date 2009 3/4/2010

Contaminated 
EXCEPTIONS: Soils not 1. Shipment weights Blank

Included 2. Waste must be 
profiled and/or recertified

ALL OR NONE AWARD -Box Ckd Y or N No No No

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Y or N Yes N/A per Deanna Yes

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 10-11



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 2, 2011 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager / Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance Program  
 
 
Background 
On March 1, 2011, bids were received to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Program  
2010/11.  245 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system with eleven 
(11) bid responses received. Asphalt Specialists Inc of Pontiac, MI, was the low total bidder.   
City owned parking lots are evaluated and placed on the program for proper maintenance and 
repair on a rotating schedule.  Moving this work forward improves public safety and reduces 
the City’s liability. 
   
ITB-COT 10-30 to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Program was competitively bid as 
required by City Charter and Code. The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s 
submission of proper contracts and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance 
Program for FY2010/11 to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists Inc of Pontiac, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $105,645.25 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation with all work 
not to exceed budgetary limitations.  
 
Fund Availability 
Funds are available in 2010/11 Public Works Administration, Municipal Parking Lots Capital 
Account, #401.464.7974.165. 
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - ParkingLotMtnce ITB-COT10-30 03.11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-4h



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30
Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 8
Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 SL PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

 

Ck # 000287543 161335 000282659
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIREFIGHTER FIRST PARK ON NORTH SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 178 LFT 7.00 7.19 2.00
2 3'Pavement Surface Milling by curb 170 LFT 5.00 4.89 2.00
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 907 Ton 58.30 55.56 60.00

4 Striping (Yellow / White) 4,650 LFT 0.17 0.16 0.15
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 20.00 19.01 5.00
6 Right Arrow (white) 1 EA 20.00 8.81 10.00
7 Left Arrow (white) 1 EA 20.00 8.81 10.00
8 Stop Bars 12" wide (white) 23 LFT 0.60 0.54 0.50
9 Cross Walk 100 LFT 0.25 0.18 0.35
10 Catch Basis Adjust 3 EA 225.00 223.63 125.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1) $56,638.40 $54,081.03 $56,285.00

TASK (2) FIREFIGHTER SECOND PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,004 LFT 0.57 0.59 0.65

2 Double Seal Coat 9,400 SY 0.47 0.49 0.450

3 Striping (Yellow) 3,952 LFT 0.11 0.10 0.10

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 15.00 14.26 5.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2) $7,225.00 $7,449.12 $7,257.80

TASK (3) FIRE STATION #6 WEST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Point 60 LFT 10.00 10.86 2.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T 214 Ton 58.30 63.30 65.00

3 Pavement Repair 223 SY 20.45 32.47 27.00

4 Striping (yellow/white) 532 LFT 0.25 0.34 0.35

5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 15.00 19.01 5.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3) $17,829.55 $21,695.53 $20,257.20

TASK (4) BOULAN PARK EAST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 80 LFT 7.00 7.36 2.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T 390 Ton 58.30 56.19 65.00

3 Striping (yellow/white) 2090 LFT 0.17 0.18 0.15

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 5 EA 15.00 19.01 5.00

5 Catch Basin Adjust 1 EA 225.00 223.63 125.00

Traffic Maintenance Control

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4) $23,952.30 $23,197.78 $25,973.50

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $105,645.25 $106,423.46 $109,773.50

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             16.50  $             32.47  $             35.00 

2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             26.00  $             30.00  $             30.00 

3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $             12.00  $             40.00  $             25.00 

4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $             25.00  $             30.00  $             30.00 

5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $               7.00  $               8.00  $              2.00 

6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $             67.00  $             57.00  $             65.00 

7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $             72.00  $             59.00  $             65.00 

8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $             59.00  $             60.00  $             65.00 

Additional Prices Totals $284.50 $316.47 $317.00

Asphalt Specialists Inc Pro Line Asphalt Florence
Paving Corporation Cement Co

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30

Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 8

Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 248.804.7974 810.343.4716 248.379.8026

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 2/28/2011 2/28/2011 2/17/2011
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Y Y Y
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Two Weeks

WARRANTY: One Year One Year

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached

                       Legal Status Y or N Y Y Y
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Y Y Y

** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
ATTEST:

Julie Hamilton
Marina Basta-Farouk Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
Tom Rosewarne

G:ITB-COT 10-30 ParkingLotMtnce.xls

Asphalt Specialists Inc Pro Line Asphalt Florence
Paving Corporation Cement Co

Per Specifications 30 Days After Completion

Per Specifications

7:30am - 5pm 7am - 5pm 7am - 5pm

Bi-monthly - Negotiable Every Two Weeks Per City Standards



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30
Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 8
Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 SL PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 0865130 000270266 31469409
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIREFIGHTER FIRST PARK ON NORTH SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 178 LFT 10.00 5.00 5.00
2 3'Pavement Surface Milling by curb 170 LFT 10.00 5.00 5.00
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 907 Ton 62.00 56.80 62.00

4 Striping (Yellow / White) 4,650 LFT 0.20 0.15 0.20
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 20.00 5.00 20.00
6 Right Arrow (white) 1 EA 20.00 10.00 12.00
7 Left Arrow (white) 1 EA 20.00 10.00 12.00
8 Stop Bars 12" wide (white) 23 LFT 5.00 0.50 1.50
9 Cross Walk 100 LFT 1.00 0.35 3.00
10 Catch Basis Adjust 3 EA 250.00 200.00 250.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1) $61,769.00 $54,651.60 $60,132.50

TASK (2) FIREFIGHTER SECOND PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,004 LFT 0.55 0.56 0.50

2 Double Seal Coat 9,400 SY 0.50 0.57 0.570

3 Striping (Yellow) 3,952 LFT 0.20 0.15 0.20

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 20.00 5.00 20.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2) $7,812.60 $8,223.04 $8,270.40

TASK (3) FIRE STATION #6 WEST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Point 60 LFT 20.00 5.00 5.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T 214 Ton 70.00 62.80 67.00

3 Pavement Repair 223 SY 10.00 61.50 31.50

4 Striping (yellow/white) 532 LFT 0.25 0.33 0.20

5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 25.00 5.00 20.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3) $18,643.00 $27,649.26 $21,848.90

TASK (4) BOULAN PARK EAST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 80 LFT 15.00 5.00 5.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T 390 Ton 65.00 62.80 64.00

3 Striping (yellow/white) 2090 LFT 0.25 0.15 0.20

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 5 EA 25.00 5.00 20.00

5 Catch Basin Adjust 1 EA 250.00 200.00 250.00

Traffic Maintenance Control

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4) $27,447.50 $25,430.50 $26,128.00

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $115,672.10 $115,954.40 $116,379.80

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             10.00  $             20.00  $             22.50 

2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             30.00  $             36.00  $             44.00 

3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $             15.00  $             15.00  $             51.00 

4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $             35.00  $             25.00  $             41.00 

5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $             15.00  $               5.00  $              6.00 

6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $             65.00  $           150.00  $             74.00 

7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $             67.00  $             65.00  $             69.00 

8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $             70.00  $             68.00  $             75.00 

Additional Prices Totals $307.00 $384.00 $382.50

EST QTY

Included

Included

Included

S&J Sealer Co dba Cadillac Asphalt LLC Hutch Paving Inc
S&J Aspalt Paving Co

Included

EST QTY

EST QTY

EST QTY



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30

Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 8

Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 734.564.2256 734.216.0341 248.514.6924

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Y Y
                                Date Visited 2/24/2011 2/28/2011
                                Did Not Visited N

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Y Y Y
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: 14 Days

WARRANTY: Two Year One Year

EXCEPTIONS: NONE BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached

                       Legal Status Y or N Y Y Y
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Y Y Y

G:ITB-COT 10-30 ParkingLotMtnce.xls

30 days

S&J Aspalt Paving Co
S&J Sealer Co dba

7am - 7pm

Cadillac Asphalt LLC Hutch Paving Inc

Every 14 Days

7am - 7pm 7am - 4pm

30 days

18  Months

Net 30

30 days



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30
Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 8
Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 SL PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 000295278 000239519 216409
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIREFIGHTER FIRST PARK ON NORTH SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 178 LFT 10.40 4.00 5.11
2 3'Pavement Surface Milling by curb 170 LFT 10.40 3.50 6.63
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 907 Ton 57.00 65.00 64.21

4 Striping (Yellow / White) 4,650 LFT 0.23 0.15 0.27
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 20.00 20.00 24.90
6 Right Arrow (white) 1 EA 12.00 10.00 16.98
7 Left Arrow (white) 1 EA 12.00 10.00 16.98
8 Stop Bars 12" wide (white) 23 LFT 0.65 1.00 1.25
9 Cross Walk 100 LFT 0.50 2.00 3.53
10 Catch Basis Adjust 3 EA 150.00 150.00 233.94

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1) $57,046.65 $61,772.50 $62,797.58

TASK (2) FIREFIGHTER SECOND PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,004 LFT 0.65 0.65 0.63

2 Double Seal Coat 9,400 SY 0.52 0.50 0.640

3 Striping (Yellow) 3,952 LFT 0.23 0.15 0.27

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 20.00 20.00 24.90

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2) $8,519.56 $8,015.40 $9,754.96

TASK (3) FIRE STATION #6 WEST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Point 60 LFT 11.50 8.00 18.78

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T 214 Ton 75.70 70.00 72.26

3 Pavement Repair 223 SY 28.05 33.00 25.21

4 Striping (yellow/white) 532 LFT 0.23 0.15 0.27

5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 20.00 20.00 24.91

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3) $23,347.31 $22,978.80 $22,455.55

TASK (4) BOULAN PARK EAST SIDE UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 80 LFT 32.50 6.25 18.78

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T 390 Ton 70.00 66.00 64.82

3 Striping (yellow/white) 2090 LFT 0.23 0.15 0.27

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 5 EA 20.00 20.00 24.91

5 Catch Basin Adjust 1 EA 150.00 150.00 305.86

Traffic Maintenance Control

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4) $30,630.70 $26,803.50 $27,776.91

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $119,544.22 $119,570.20 $122,785.00

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             13.50  $             12.00  $              9.00 

2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             35.00  $             25.00  $             22.00 

3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $             40.00  $             45.00  $             48.00 

4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $             36.00  $             25.00  $             22.00 

5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $             25.00  $               6.25  $             30.00 

6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $           100.00  $             65.00  $             80.00 

7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $           105.00  $             65.00  $             80.00 

8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $           110.00  $             70.00  $             80.00 

Additional Prices Totals $464.50 $313.25 $371.00

T&M Asphalt Paving Nagle Paving Co ABC Paving Company
Inc

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30

Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 8

Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 248.719.1687 248.765.3109 734.676.2020
per specs

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 2/28/2011 2/28/2011 2/28/2011
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Y Y Y
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: One Year Two Years

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK No Exceptions

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached

                       Legal Status Y or N Y Y Y
                       Non-Collusion Y or N Y Y Y

G:ITB-COT 10-30 ParkingLotMtnce.xls

T&M Asphalt Paving Nagle Paving Co ABC Paving Company
Inc

by June 30, 2011

30 days from completion monthly progress payments

One Year w/m

8am - 5pm 7am - 5pm 7am - 7pm

30 days After Completion Net 30 Days monthly payments



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30
Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 8
Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 SL PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 000211717 000293309
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1) FIREFIGHTER FIRST PARK ON NORTH SIDE UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 178 LFT 5.00 9.00
2 3'Pavement Surface Milling by curb 170 LFT 5.50 3.00
3 1 1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 907 Ton 67.25 68.00

4 Striping (Yellow / White) 4,650 LFT 0.20 0.18
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 10.00 18.00
6 Right Arrow (white) 1 EA 15.00 10.00
7 Left Arrow (white) 1 EA 15.00 10.00
8 Stop Bars 12" wide (white) 23 LFT 2.00 15.00
9 Cross Walk 100 LFT 1.00 0.50
10 Catch Basis Adjust 3 EA 250.00 350.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1) $64,736.75 $66,198.00

TASK (2) FIREFIGHTER SECOND PARK UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 4,004 LFT 0.64 0.90

2 Double Seal Coat 9,400 SY 0.45 0.57

3 Striping (Yellow) 3,952 LFT 0.11 0.12

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 6 EA 10.00 18.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2) $7,267.52 $9,543.84

TASK (3) FIRE STATION #6 WEST SIDE UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Point 60 LFT 10.00 9.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T 214 Ton 73.75 78.00

3 Pavement Repair 223 SY 31.50 40.00

4 Striping (yellow/white) 532 LFT 0.40 0.18

5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 4 EA 10.00 18.00

Traffic Maintenance Control N/C N/C

Estimated Total Cost – Task (3) $23,659.80 $26,319.76

TASK (4) BOULAN PARK EAST SIDE UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 80 LFT 7.50 9.00

2 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No 1100T 390 Ton 69.45 67.00

3 Striping (yellow/white) 2090 LFT 0.20 0.18

4 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo 5 EA 10.00 18.00

5 Catch Basin Adjust 1 EA 300.00 350.00

Traffic Maintenance Control

Estimated Total Cost – Task (4) $28,453.50 $27,666.20

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $124,117.57 $129,727.80

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Remove Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $               1.99  $             25.00 

2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             24.50  $             45.00 

3 Sub-grade Undercutting  $             19.00  $             55.00 

4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)  $             24.50  $             45.00 

5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface  $               6.00  $               9.00 

6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C  $             68.00  $             80.00 

7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA  $             70.00  $             80.00 

8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA  $             75.00  $             80.00 

Additional Prices Totals $288.99 $419.00

Midwest Pavement Best Asphalt
Contracting Inc

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included

EST QTY

Included



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-30

Opening Date -- 3/1/2011 BID TABULATION Pg 8 of 8

Date Reviewed -- 3/1/2011 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper

24 Hr Phone # 248.318.6724 734.732.0588

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y or N Y Y
                                Date Visited 2/28/2011 2/28/2011
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet Y Y
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: 30 Days

WARRANTY: One Year

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      SIGNED Y or N Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Attached

                       Legal Status Y or N Y Y
                       Non-Collusion Y or N N Y

G:ITB-COT 10-30 ParkingLotMtnce.xls

Midwest Pavement Best Asphalt
Contracting Inc

by June 30, 2011

30 days

One Year

7am - 5pm 6am - 9pm

30 days 30 Days



bartholotl
Text Box
J-5

















bartholotl
Text Box
J-6





bartholotl
Text Box
J-7









bartholotl
Text Box
J-8







bartholotl
Text Box
J-9











bartholotl
Text Box
J-10





bartholotl
Text Box
J-11

















bartholotl
Text Box
J-12























 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
March 15, 2011 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Service 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement Extension – Troy Community Center Catering Services  
 
Background 
 
Since 2007, Catering Services at the Troy Community Center have been provided by Sankofa 
Housing (aka A&S Catering) of Detroit, Michigan as a result of a best value process at an 18% return 
on gross revenue, which expires March 31, 2011.   
 
On February 24, 2011, proposals were received from prospective providers in a solicitation for a new 
preferred caterer, which will now include alcohol service.  A&S Catering chose not to respond.  
However, in order to ensure a smooth transition to the new provider and no disruption of service for 
the patrons at the Community Center, A&S Catering has agreed to extend their current contract to 
provide catering services as needed during the transitional period under the same terms and 
conditions of the Agreement dated January 13, 2009.   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends extending the current Agreement with Sankofa Housing (aka A&S 
Catering) to provide catering services at the Community Center during the transition to a new caterer.    
 
Financial Considerations 
 
The current agreement stipulates that Sankofa Housing (aka A&S Catering) shall pay the City 18% of 
the gross receipts for the use of the premises from all funds derived from catering services less 
Michigan sales tax.    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
     ______  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-13



















bartholotl
Text Box
K-2a















































































Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 93  
AND ADOPT A NEW CHAPTER 93  

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
 

An Ordinance repealing Chapter 93 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances in its entirety 
and adopting a new Chapter 93 which adopts by reference the 2006 2009 Edition of the 
International Fire Code, and sets out deviations from the International Fire Code, which 
regulates and governs the safeguarding of life and property from fire and explosion 
hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, materials 
and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the occupancy of 
buildings and premises in the City of Troy; providing for the issuance of permits and 
collection of fees therefore; and providing a penalty for the violation thereof. 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1:   
 

Repeal. Chapter 93 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2:  
 

Adoption. A new Chapter 93 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances is hereby 
adopted to read as follows: 

 
93.00 Adoption of the 2006 2009 International Fire Code by Reference. The 
International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition, including its appendices, is hereby 
adopted by reference with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes 
prescribed in Section 93.01 of this Ordinance, as the Fire Prevention Code of the 
City of Troy, regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from 
fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of 
hazardous substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to 
life and property in the occupancy of buildings.  This Ordinance and a copy of the 
International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition, shall be kept on file with the City 
Clerk. A copy of the International Fire Code in its entirety can also be found at: 
http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm) 

 
93.01 Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Changes to the International Fire 
Code, 2006 2009 Edition.  The City of Troy adopts the following additions, 
insertions, deletions and changes from the International Fire Code, 2006 2009 
Edition.  Subsequent section numbers used in this section shall refer to the like 
numbered sections of the International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition. Any 
provisions of Chapter 93, Section 93.01 which are not amended or deleted herein 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
102.6 102.7 Referenced codes and standards. The codes and standards 
referenced in this code shall be those that are listed in Chapter 45 47 and such 
codes and standards shall be considered part of the requirements of this code to 

http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm�
bartholotl
Text Box
K-2b



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

the prescribed extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between 
the provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions which 
establish the higher standard for the promotion of the safety and welfare of the 
public and the protection of the public, or as otherwise determined by State of 
Michigan law, shall apply. References to the International Building Code shall be 
interpreted as the Michigan Building Code as set forth in Chapter 79, Section 8.1 
of the City of Troy Code. 
 
105.4.2 Information on Construction Documents. Construction documents 
shall be drawn to scale upon suitable material. Electronic media documents are 
allowed to shall be submitted when approved as required by the fire code official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, 
nature and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to 
the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations 
as determined by the fire code official. 
 
105.6.13.1 Permit Fee. (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.6.14.2 Permit Fee. (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.6.20.1 Required Amounts for Reporting. Reportable quantities shall be 
considered the maximum amount of hazardous material on site at any given 
time. This amount is required to be reported to the fire department as indicated in 
the Troy Fire Department’s HMIS packet as defined in Chapter 27 Sections 407.5 
and 2701.5.2 of this code.  
 
105.6.21.2 105.6.20.2 Permit Fees.  (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided 
for in Troy City Code Chapter 60. 

 
105.7.1.1 Installations. Before any fire suppression system or component is 
installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be obtained from the 
code official. This shall include any device or relay connected to or controlled by 
the fire suppression system.  All work must be performed by a qualified installer 
who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as determined by 
the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the code official 
prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the permit must 
be posted at the job site in plain view. The fire code official is authorized to 
require installation documents in an approved electronic format. 
 
105.7.1.2 Permit Fees.  (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.7.3.1 105.7.5.1 Installations. Before any fire alarm or detection system or 
component is installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be 
obtained from the code official. This shall include auxiliary devices such as 
magnetic locks, electronic locks, or any device or relay connected to or controlled 
by the fire alarm or detection system.  All work must be performed by a qualified 
installer who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as 

Comment [DJR1]: Addressed in 105.4.2 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

determined by the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the 
code official prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the 
permit must be posted at the job site in plain view. The fire code official is 
authorized to require installation documents in an approved electronic format. 

 
105.7.14  105.7.15 Permit issuance. A permit granted hereunder shall not be 
transferable nor shall any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth 
therein unless approved by the fire official. When work is started without a permit, 
the permit fee shall be doubled. 
 

SECTION 112114 
MISCELLANEOUS HAZARDS 

 
112.1 114.1 Hazardous materials - fire department responsibility. The Troy 
Fire Department shall be responsible for gathering and organizing information, 
identifying risks, and enforcing codes, standards, and laws relating to the 
production, storage and use of hazardous materials within the City of Troy and 
the notification to fire fighting personnel of related hazards. The method and 
frequency shall be determined by the fire official or his duly authorized 
representative. 
 
112.4 114.2 Hazardous conditions. If upon the expiration of the time mentioned 
in a notice of violation, hazardous conditions, including but not limited to, 
obstructions or encroachments inhibiting access to or egress from a space or 
building, are not removed, the code official shall proceed to remove or have 
removed the same. The expense incurred shall be a debt to the City from the 
responsible person and shall be collected as any other debt to the City. 
 
112.5 114.3 False alarms. It shall be unlawful for any person to summon, in any 
way, the fire department unless a valid reason for their response is present. (See 
also the Troy City Code False FireChapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance.) 
 
112.6 114.4 Nonstandard Equipment. Equipment and devices which are not in 
compliance with recognized standards for design and construction may be 
approved upon presentation of satisfactory evidence that they are designed and 
constructed for safe operation. 
 
114.5 Motion Picture & Television Film Production.  Motion picture / television 
film production and similar entertainment or documentary production activities shall 
comply with the requirements of this code and NFPA 140. 

 
307.3.3 307.4.4 Ground Fires. A ground fire shall be the minimum size for the 
intended purpose but not larger than 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in dimension and 
shall be contained in a safe manner. 
 
308.3 Open flame. A person shall not utilize or allow to be utilized, an open 
flame in connection with a public meeting or gathering for purposes of 
deliberation, worship, entertainment, amusement, instruction, education, 
recreation, awaiting transportation or similar purpose in assembly or educational 
occupancies without first obtaining written approval from the fire code official. 

 

Comment [DJR2]: Addressed in 105.4.2 

Comment [DJR3]: Addressed in 308 of the 
IFC 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

404.5.1 404.5.2 Format. Fire safety and evacuation plans, general floor plans, 
seating arrangements, storage configurations, or other specific plans shall be 
furnished to the fire code official in an approved format upon request. 

 
503.6 Security gates. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus 
access road shall be approved shall be approved by the fire code official. Where 
security gates are installed, they shall have an approved means of emergency 
operation. The security gates and the emergency operation shall be maintained 
operational at all times. Electric gate operators, where provided, shall be listed in 
accordance with UL 325. Gates intended for automatic operation shall be 
designed, constructed and installed to comply with the requirements of ASTM F 
2200. 
 
503.7 Emergency Vehicle Access. Emergency vehicle access (EVA) shall be 
determined and approved by the fire code official. Unless otherwise required, 
EVAs shall be of the following specifications:  
 
• minimum of 12 feet (3657.6 mm) wide  
• surface capable of supporting the weight of fire apparatus up to 60,000 

pounds GVW  
• minimum grade changes to accommodate fire apparatus undercarriage 

ground clearances  
• mountable curb at entrance/exit with adequate turning radii to and from the 

EVA  
• standard “No Parking – Fire Lane”fire lane signage posted at entrance/exit to 

EVA  
• EVA signage posted at entrance/exit of EVA, on both sides of surface, every 

50 feet (15240 mm) for length of EVA  
• EVA signage to withstand snow removal/landscape maintenance efforts  
• EVA to be kept clear of snow and vegetation  

 
505.1 Address Numbers Identification. (See Troy City Code Chapter 2.) 
Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 2.  

 
506.1 When  Where Required. Where access to or within a structure or an area 
is restricted because of secured openings or where immediate access is 
necessary for life-saving or fire-fighting purposes, or where an alarm signaling 
system or device is installed that may summon the fire department, the fire code 
official is authorized to require a key box to be installed in an accessible location. 
The key box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys to gain access 
as required by the fire code official. Any appeal that may arise shall be referred to 
the Building Board of Appeals as established in Section 116 of Chapter 79 of the 
Troy City Code.   

 
508.3 507.3 Fire Flow. Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of 
buildings and facilities shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B and in 
accordance with City of Troy Development Standards. An appropriate pressure 
and flow margin of safety shall be provided with each fire sprinkler system as 
required by the code official. 
 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

508.5 507.5 Fire Hydrant Systems. Fire hydrant systems shall comply with 
Sections 508.5.1 through 508.5.6 and shall be in accordance with Appendix C 
and City of Troy Development Standards. 
 
508.5.4.1 507.5.4.1 Removal of Obstructions. If upon the expiration of the time 
mentioned in a notice of violation, obstructions or encroachments to a fire 
hydrant, or to other fire protection equipment, are not removed, the code official 
shall proceed to remove or have removed the same. The expense incurred shall 
be a debt to the City from the responsible person and shall be collected as any 
other debt to the City. 

 
609.1 General. Commercial kitchen exhaust hoods shall comply with the 
requirements of the International  Michigan Mechanical Code and NFPA 96. 
 
903.2.11.1.2 Openings on one side only. Where openings in a story are 
provided on only one side and the opposite wall of such story is more than 75 
feet (22 860 mm)  55 feet (16 764 mm) from such openings, the story shall be 
equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system or openings 
as specified above shall be provided on at least two sides of the story. 
 
903.2.11.1.3 Basements. Where any portion of a basement is located more than 
75 feet (22 860 mm)  55 feet (16 764 mm) from openings required by Section 
903.2.11.1, the basement shall be equipped throughout with an approved 
automatic sprinkler system. 
 
903.2.10.3 903.2.11.3 Buildings Over 30 Feet in Height. An automatic sprinkler 
system shall be installed throughout a building that has a floor level which has an 
occupant load of 30 or more occupants and which is located 30 feet (9144 mm) 
or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.  
 

Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 
905.3.2 Group A. Class I automatic wet standpipes shall be provided in 
nonsprinklered Group A buildings having an occupant load exceeding 1,000 
persons. 
 
Exceptions: 

1. Open-air-seating spaces without enclosed spaces. 
2. Class I automatic dry and semiautomatic dry standpipes or manual 

wet standpipes are allowed in buildings where the highest floor 
surface used for human occupancy is 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 
764 mm) or less above the lowest level of fire department vehicle 
access. 

 
907.2.12 907.2.13 High-Rise Buildings. Buildings having floors used for human 
occupancy located more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire 
department vehicle access shall be provided with an automatic fire alarm system 
and an emergency voice/alarm communication system in accordance with 
Section 907.2.12.2.  



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

 
Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 
907.10.2.1 907.6.2.1.3 Temporal Code-3. Audible alarm notification appliances 
shall sound in temporal Code-3 pattern as approved by the code official. 
 
907.5.1. 907.7.2.1 Required Power. Where required by the code official, 
systems and their components shall be designed to provide adequate power in 
order to accommodate additional devices as a result of anticipated future 
expansion to the system. Unless otherwise approved by the code official, 10 
amps per 10,000 square feet shall be used as a guide. 
 
907.9.2 907.7.3.2 High-Rise Buildings. In buildings that have floors located 
more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle 
access that are occupied for human occupancy, a separate zone by floor shall be 
provided for all of the following types of alarm-initiating devices where provided:  
 

1. Smoke detectors  
2. Sprinkler water-flow devices.  
3. Manual fire alarm boxes.  
4. Other approved types of automatic fire detection devices or 
suppression systems as required by the code official.  

 
907.7.1 907.7.6 Annunciation. Where fire suppression systems exist in multi-
tenant occupancies, i.e., strip malls, separate annunciation, including water flow 
switch and inspector test valve, shall be required for each separately addressed 
tenant space unless otherwise approved by the code official. 
 
1019.1.8 Smokeproof enclosures. 1022.9 Smokeproof Enclosures and 
Pressureized Stairways. In buildings required to comply with Section 403 or 405 
of the code International Building Code, each of the exits of a building which 
serves stories where the floor surface is exit enclosures serving a story with a 
floor surface located more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire 
department vehicle access or more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the level 
finished floor of exit discharge a level of exit discharge serving such floor levels 
stories shall be a smokeproof enclosure smokeproof enclosure or pressurized 
stairway stairway in accordance with Section 909.20 of the International Building 
Code International Building Code. 
 
1023.2 1026.2 Use in a Means of Egress. Exterior exit stairways Exterior Exit 
Stairways shall not be used as an element of a required means of egress means 
of egress for occupancies in Group I-2 occupancies. For occupancies in other 
than Group I-2, exterior exit stairways exterior exit ramps and stairways shall be 
permitted as an element of a required means of egress means of egress for 
buildings not exceeding five stories above grade plane grade plane or having 
occupied floors more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) in height above the lowest level 
of fire department vehicle access. 

 
1024.1 General. Approved luminous egress path markings delineating the exit 
path shall be provided in buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and R-1 having 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

occupied floors located more than 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 764 mm) 
above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access in accordance with 
Sections 1024.1 through 1024.5. 

 
1025.1 General. In addition to the means of egress required by this chapter, 
provisions shall be made for emergency escape and rescue in group R as 
applicable in section 101.2, classrooms greater than 250 feet 2 (23.2 m 2 ) in 
group E, and group I-1 occupancies. Basements and sleeping rooms below the 
fourth story above grade plane shall have at least 1 exterior emergency escape 
and rescue opening in accordance with this section. Where basements contain 1 
or more sleeping rooms, emergency egress and rescue openings shall be 
required in each sleeping room, but shall not be required in adjoining areas of the 
basement. Such opening shall open directly into a public street, public alley, 
yard, or court. 

 
Exceptions: 
1. In other than group R-3 occupancies as applicable in section 101.2, 

buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2. 

2. In other than group R-3 occupancies as applicable in section 101.2, 
sleeping rooms provided with a door to a fire-resistance-rated corridor 
having access to 2 remote exits in opposite directions. 

3. The emergency escape and rescue opening is permitted to open onto 
a balcony within an atrium in accordance with the requirements of 
section 404, provided the balcony provides access to an exit and the 
dwelling unit or sleeping unit has a means of egress that is not open 
to the atrium. 

4. Basements with a ceiling height of less than 80 inches (2032 mm) 
shall not be required to have emergency escape and rescue windows. 

5. High-rise buildings in accordance with section 403. 
6. Emergency escape and rescue openings are not required from 

basements or sleeping rooms which have an exit door or exit access 
door that opens directly into a public street, public alley, yard, egress 
court, or to an exterior exit balcony that opens to a public street, public 
alley, yard, or egress court. 

7. Basements without habitable spaces and having not more than 200 
square feet (18.6 square meters) in floor area shall not be required to 
have emergency escape windows. 

 
2201.1 Scope. Automotive motor fuel-dispensing facilities, marine motor fuel-
dispensing facilities, fleet vehicle motor fuel-dispensing facilities, aircraft motor-
vehicle fuel-dispensing facilities and repair garages shall be in accordance with 
this chapter and the Michigan Building Code, International Fuel Gas Code and 
the Michigan Mechanical Code, and the Michigan Storage and Handling of 
Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as amended, or their equivalent. 
Such operations shall include both operations that are accessible to the public 
and private operations. 

 
2206.1 General. Storage of flammable and combustible liquids shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 34 and Sections 2206.2 through 2206.6.3, and the 

Comment [DJR4]: Addressed in 1028.1 of 
the IFC 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as 
amended, or their equivalent. 
 
3404.2.9 Above-Ground Tanks. Above-ground storage of flammable and 
combustible liquids in tanks shall comply with Section 3404.2 and Sections 
3404.2.9.1 through 3404.2.9.6.10 3404.2.9.7.10, and the Michigan Aboveground 
Storage Tank Rules, or their equivalent. 
 
4604.23 Egress path markings. Existing buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and 
R-1 having occupied floors located more than 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 
764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access shall be 
provided with luminous egress path markings in accordance with Section 
1024. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Chapter 45 47 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

 
State of Michigan Laws, Rules, or Requirements including but not 
necessarily limited to the following with amendments: 
 
Michigan Fire Prevention Code 1941 PA 207 
Michigan Explosives Law 1970 PA 202 
Michigan Fireworks Law 1931 PA 328 
Michigan Model Rocket Law 1965 PA 333 
Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules 
Michigan Underground Storage Tank Rules 1999 

 
 

NFPA    National Fire Protection Association 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Standard           Referenced 
reference          in code 
number    Title        section number 
______________________________________________________________________  

 
96-08  Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection  609.1 

of Commercial Cooking Operations 
 
140-08   Standard on Motion Picture and Television Production  114.5 

Studio Soundstages, Approved Production Facilities,  
and Production Locations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Appendix C 
FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION 

 
TABLE C105.1 

NUMBER AND DISTRIBUTION OF FIRE HYDRANTS 
    

FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENT 
(gpm) 

MINIMUM NO.  
OF HYDRANTS 

AVERAGE SPACING  
 BETWEEN HYDRANTS a,b,c  

MAXIMUM DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE PORTION OF 

  (feet)  BUILDING ACCESSIBLE BY FIRE 
APPARATUS TO A HYDRANT d 

(feet) 
1,750 or less 1 500 250 
2,000-2,250 2 450 225 
2,500 3 450 225 
3,000 3 400 225 
3,500-4,000 4 350 210 
4,500-5,000 5 300 180 
5,500 6 300 180 
6,000 6 250 150 
6,500-7,000 7 250 150 
7,500 or more 8 or more e 200 120 
 
For SI: 1 gallon per minute = 3.785 L/m, 1 foot = 304.8 mm 

a Reduce by 100 feet (30,480 mm) for dead-end streets or roads with dead-end water main. 
b Where streets are provided with median dividers which can  cannot be crossed by firefighters pulling hose 
lines, or where arterial streets are provided with four or more traffic lanes and have a traffic count of more than 
30,000 vehicles per day, hydrant spacing shall average 500 feet (152.4 m) on each side of the street and be 
arranged on an alternating basis up to a fire-flow requirement of 7,000 gallons per minute (26,495 L/min.) and 
400 feet (122 m) for higher fire-flow requirements. 
c Where new water mains are extended along streets where hydrants are not needed for protection of structures 
or similar fire problems, fire hydrants shall be provided at spacing not to exceed 1,000 feet (305 m) to provide 
for transportation hazards. 
d Reduce by 50 feet (15,240 mm) for dead-end streets or roads. 
e One hydrant for each 1,000 gallons per minute (3,785 L/min.) or fraction thereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 
Section 3:  
 

Savings. All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution 
hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or 
amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed 
prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted 
and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under 
and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

 
Section 4. 
 

Severability Clause.  Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of 
            this Ordinance be held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provisions of this 
            Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.   
 

Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date 
hereof or upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 

 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
___ day of ____, 2011. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    

 
 



bartholotl
Text Box
N-1a







Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – DRAFT                                           February 17, 2011 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
February 17, 2011 at the Troy Community Center.  Chairman, Tom Krent called the meeting 
to order at 6:36 pm. 
 
Present: Gary Hauff, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
  Tom Krent, member   JoAnn Thompson, member 
  Stuart Redpath, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
  Orestes Kaltsounis, member Carol K. Anderson, staff 
  Stuart Alderman, staff  Jeff Biegler, staff 
Absent:   Tod Gazetti, Meaghan Kovacs, Kathleen Fejes,   
Visitors:  None 
 
Resolution # PR-2011-02-01 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from September 23, 2010 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: All    7 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion on the ICMA report and how it affects the Parks and Recreation 
Department with service and staff reductions, how decisions were arrived at, and what 
the future is for the department.  Complete ICMA report is available online if board 
members have not seen the full report. 

B. Parks and Recreation Status Report – Discussion regarding the department and what 
will be offered in the future.  Some fine tuning of program and service offerings may 
still take place.  Some comments by board members included – how do state cuts 
announced today by the Governor affect the city; look at any disconnects with how 
decisions were made as to what the department should continue to offer. 

C. Community Center Policy – Alcohol Use – The process is ongoing as city council has 
approved the application, which was then submitted to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission on February 7, 2011.  RFP’s will be received for the new catering contract 
until bids are opened on February 28, 2011. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
A. Milverton Park Update – Progress is continuing with installation of equipment and 

development of the park.  All park improvements are being paid by CDBG money, not 
city money.  Unique equipment, Senior Life Trails, is being installed which Troy will be 
only one of two locations with this type of equipment in southeast Michigan.  There is 
some more money for additional projects, which are now being considered.  Member 
comments: Recommend city promotes the park to public when complete; consider 
looking at option for cell towers in parks to receive additional revenue. 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1b



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – DRAFT                                           February 17, 2011 
 

B. Troy Nature Society – City is in process of working on an agreement with TNS.  
Discussed summer offerings and their role thus far.  A Recognition Ceremony for 
charter members is set for March 24 at the Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center, 6:30 pm.  
This is the revised date from when the initial event was cancelled in early February 
due to snow storm. 

C. Golf Division Update – A six month update was recently submitted and presented to 
City Council.  Financial results were about the same as in previous years.  Billy Casper 
Golf will assume the golf lesson program this year.  Also discussed the Mystery 
Shopper program that BCG conducted. 

 
Member Comments:   
 
Gary Hauff – Inquired about snowmobiles seen at Sylvan Glen golf course.  Carol Anderson 
stated staff grooms cross country ski trails with snowmobiles.  
 
Staff Reports 
 
Directors Report –  

 Discussed staff restricting for the Parks and Recreation Department – Jeff Biegler will 
will become the Superintendent of Streets and Parks as well as Stu Alderman will 
assume the Recreation Director duties during this transition. 

 Carol announced her retirement from the city with her last work day of February 25, 
2011.  Expressed her appreciation to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for 
their support and initiative throughout the years.  Kaltsounis asked about the future of 
this Board.  Anderson stated it is still to be determined. 

 
Recreation Report –  

 Announced that department office manager Mary Williams will be leaving on February 
18, 2011 to the Finance department.  Thanked her for her time in the department. 

 Some seasonal positions are being recruited at this time.  If interested, individuals 
apply as soon as possible. 
 

Parks Report –  
 Jeff Biegler will continue to work closely with the Recreation division, but looks forward 

to his new role in the Streets and Parks division. 
 
 
Next meeting will most likely be in April for review and approval of the department budget. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 pm. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
_________________________________ 
Stu Alderman, Recording Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - DRAFT January 13, 2011 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, January 13, 2011, in 
the Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 
7:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan  
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director  
 
   Phil Jones, Troy resident 
 
Resolution #LB-2011-01-01 
Moved by Duggan 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Kul Gauri be excused.  
 
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2011-01-02 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, 
November 4, 2010, be approved.  
 
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2011-01-03 
Moved by Wheeler  
Seconded by Zembrzuski  
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, January 13, 2011, meeting be approved as 
written. 
  
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—Mr. Phil Jones stated that he has lived in Troy for 6 months and that he has 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1c



 2 

“fallen in love” with the Troy Public Library. He asked if there was anything further that could be done 
to save the Troy Public Library from closure.  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Duggan thanked Mr. Jones for coming to the LAB meeting. She 
suggested that he let the Troy City Council know about his concerns regarding the library. She also 
stated that it is her perception that the public believes that the library is not going to close. Wheeler 
asked for clarification regarding the TPL’s last day for public service. Russ responded that the last 
day that the TPL will be open to the public is Sunday, May 1, 2011. Gregory asked for the schedule of 
upcoming city council meetings, and if City Council will be reviewing the budget. Zembrzuski stated 
that all donations to the library went to pay the pensions of judges. She referenced a part of the 
Michigan Constitution. Russ clarified that the particular statute to which she referred relates to penal 
fine laws. Russ informed the LAB members that donations made to the library go into the city’s 
general fund, from which the library derives its budget.  
 
OLD BUSINESS—None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Closing Dates 2011 
 

Resolution #LB-2011-01-04 
Moved by Wheeler  
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the library’s calendar of closed dates in 2011 be approved.  
 
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. Midyear Statistics—the LAB members reviewed the midyear statistics. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—given by B. Duggan, was received and filed. 
C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report— none available 
D. Gifts—three gifts were noted. 
E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments—for November and December were discussed 

 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 7:36 P.M.  
 
The next meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, February 10, at 7 pm.  
     
 _____________________________________ 

Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
Cathleen Russ  
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on February 8, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 7:38 pm) 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-005 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:38 pm), Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-006 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 25, 2011 Special/Study 
meeting as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:38 pm), Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM APPROVAL (EXTENSION) – Proposed Oak 

Forest South Site Condominium, 25 units/lots, South of Square Lake Road, East 
Side of Willow Grove, Section 11, Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann requested to be recused from discussion and action 
on the item.  Chair Hutson stated he is in partnership with the petitioner on another 
project.  Mr. Ullmann indicated he resides in the near proximity of the proposed 
development.   
 
The petitioner, Dale Garrett of 5877 Livernois, Troy, requested to have the item 
considered after the arrival of Mr. Strat. 
 
 

6. DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE – Discussion with Representatives 
from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the Draft Zoning Ordinance, revised and dated February 4, 
2011.  He indicated revisions made to the Draft were based on comments and 
corrections from the last meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the following items: 
 
 Article 2, Page 3 – Adult Day Care Home and Adult Day Care Centers.   

 
[Tom Strat arrived 7:38 pm] 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To table this item and revisit Agenda item # 5. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM APPROVAL (EXTENSION) – Proposed Oak 
Forest South Site Condominium, 25 units/lots, South of Square Lake Road, East 
Side of Willow Grove, Section 11, Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann recused themselves and exited the meeting. 
 
Vice Chair Maxwell chaired the meeting. 
 
Mr. Edmunds disclosed that he resides in the residential subdivision adjoining the 
proposed development.  He indicated he is comfortable discussing and taking 
action on the item if there are is no objection from the Board. 
 
The Board agreed there is no reason to recuse Mr. Edmunds. 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the history of the application and renewal request.  He 
provided a brief description of the proposed development and explanation of a site 
condominium development.  Mr. Savidant announced that the Planning Department 
received correspondence in opposition of the proposed development from Ann 
Bonnelli of 5612 Willow Grove. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is his intent to forward the same Resolution to City Council that 
it granted on January 25, 2010. 
 
The petitioner, Mr. Garrett, addressed the Board.  He indicated nothing has 
changed on the site plan and offered to answer any questions.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address the neighbor’s concern relating to water 
discharge and flooding.   
 
Mr. Garrett said the correspondence is from the neighbor who backs up to the 
proposed Units 20 through 25, along the northern border stormwater line.  He said 
all the water from the proposed development would be captured for storage in the 
pond next to the drain.  Mr. Garrett said he would work with the City Engineering 
Department during the construction phase to assure all water is discharged 
appropriately with no runoff to adjacent residential.  He indicated construction plans 
would be the next phase for final approval.   
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed that it would be appropriate for the Commission to 
incorporate in the Planning Commission Resolution the conditions stipulated in the 
City Council Resolution approved on January 25, 2010. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

4 
 

Vice Chair Maxwell opened the floor to the public. 
 
There was no one present to speak.   
 
Vice Chair Maxwell closed the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-008 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest South Site Condominium, including 25 
units, located south of Square Lake Road on the east side of Willow Grove, Section 
11, within the R-1C (One Family Residential) zoning district, be granted in 
accordance with Council Resolution #2010-01-024. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
(Note:  Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann recused from meeting.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann returned.  Chair Hutson chaired the meeting. 
 
6. DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE – Discussion with Representatives 

from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Discussion continued on the following items: 
 

 Article 2, page 3 – Adult Day Care Home and Adult Day Care Centers (how 
to permit). 

 
 Article 2, page 4 – Alterations (definition).  

 
 Article 2, page 4-5 – Building Height (definition and graphics).  

 
 Article 2, page 12 – Grade (calculation). 

 
 Article 4, page 49 – Use Table (formatted; revisions to day care facilities). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

5 
 

 Article 5, page 24 – Building Design and Materials (specificity of materials). 
 

 Article 5, page 39 – Use Groups Permitted Table (added labels for easier 
reading). 

 
 Article 6, page 1 – Adult Foster Care Facilities (large group homes). 

 
 Article 6, page 24 – Paragraph C.1.e. (note from Mr. Edmunds). 

 
 Article 7, page 2 – General Requirements (Paragraph A.3 re necessity of 

paragraph) 
 

 Article 7, page 8 – Storage of Recreational Vehicles and Equipment 
(Paragraph A. 1, solution to 3 feet distance to any side or rear lot line). 

 
 Article 8, page 2 – Site Plan Procedure (Pre-application meetings). 

 
 Article 8, page 7 – Submittal Requirements (sealed drawings and lighting 

plan). 
 

 Article 12, page 5 – Wind Energy Conversion Systems (Paragraph 3. b., 
adjacent property buildings). 

 
 Article 13, page 4 – Screening Between Land Uses (Paragraph 2. a., 

calculation). 
 

 Article 13, page 8 – Screening Requirements (construction materials). 
 

 Article 13, page 29 – Off Street Parking Lot Design Standards and 
Requirements (Paragraph 2, bumper blocks). 

 
 Article 15, page 9 – Rules and Procedures for Use Variances (Pre-hearing 

conference waiver). 
 
A brief discussion followed on use and dimensional variances: 
 Rescission of variances, based on false statements by applicant. 
o No provision to rescind. 
o Remedy potential through court action. 
o Stronger language in application to advise petitioner is under oath and 

subject to perjury. 
 Permanence of variances. 
 Time limit on variances. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Branigan thanked the members for their input in the Draft Zoning Ordinance.  
He recommended that the Commission set a public hearing at the regular March 
meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-009 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To set a Public Hearing for the Draft Zoning Ordinance at the March 8, 
2011 Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would incorporate the revisions discussed this evening and 
prepare a Public Hearing hard copy draft. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
None. 
 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Sanzica asked the status of the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center. 
 
Mr. Savidant requested time to gather information and provide a report to the Board 
at a later date.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:22 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\02-08-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on February 8, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 7:38 pm) 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-005 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:38 pm), Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-006 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 25, 2011 Special/Study 
meeting as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:38 pm), Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM APPROVAL (EXTENSION) – Proposed Oak 

Forest South Site Condominium, 25 units/lots, South of Square Lake Road, East 
Side of Willow Grove, Section 11, Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann requested to be recused from discussion and action 
on the item.  Chair Hutson stated he is in partnership with the petitioner on another 
project.  Mr. Ullmann indicated he resides in the near proximity of the proposed 
development.   
 
The petitioner, Dale Garrett of 5877 Livernois, Troy, requested to have the item 
considered after the arrival of Mr. Strat. 
 
 

6. DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE – Discussion with Representatives 
from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the Draft Zoning Ordinance, revised and dated February 4, 
2011.  He indicated revisions made to the Draft were based on comments and 
corrections from the last meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the following items: 
 
 Article 2, Page 3 – Adult Day Care Home and Adult Day Care Centers.   

 
[Tom Strat arrived 7:38 pm] 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To table this item and revisit Agenda item # 5. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM APPROVAL (EXTENSION) – Proposed Oak 
Forest South Site Condominium, 25 units/lots, South of Square Lake Road, East 
Side of Willow Grove, Section 11, Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann recused themselves and exited the meeting. 
 
Vice Chair Maxwell chaired the meeting. 
 
Mr. Edmunds disclosed that he resides in the residential subdivision adjoining the 
proposed development.  He indicated he is comfortable discussing and taking 
action on the item if there are is no objection from the Board. 
 
The Board agreed there is no reason to recuse Mr. Edmunds. 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the history of the application and renewal request.  He 
provided a brief description of the proposed development and explanation of a site 
condominium development.  Mr. Savidant announced that the Planning Department 
received correspondence in opposition of the proposed development from Ann 
Bonnelli of 5612 Willow Grove. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it is his intent to forward the same Resolution to City Council that 
it granted on January 25, 2010. 
 
The petitioner, Mr. Garrett, addressed the Board.  He indicated nothing has 
changed on the site plan and offered to answer any questions.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address the neighbor’s concern relating to water 
discharge and flooding.   
 
Mr. Garrett said the correspondence is from the neighbor who backs up to the 
proposed Units 20 through 25, along the northern border stormwater line.  He said 
all the water from the proposed development would be captured for storage in the 
pond next to the drain.  Mr. Garrett said he would work with the City Engineering 
Department during the construction phase to assure all water is discharged 
appropriately with no runoff to adjacent residential.  He indicated construction plans 
would be the next phase for final approval.   
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed that it would be appropriate for the Commission to 
incorporate in the Planning Commission Resolution the conditions stipulated in the 
City Council Resolution approved on January 25, 2010. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

4 
 

Vice Chair Maxwell opened the floor to the public. 
 
There was no one present to speak.   
 
Vice Chair Maxwell closed the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-02-008 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest South Site Condominium, including 25 
units, located south of Square Lake Road on the east side of Willow Grove, Section 
11, within the R-1C (One Family Residential) zoning district, be granted in 
accordance with Council Resolution #2010-01-024. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
(Note:  Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann recused from meeting.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chair Hutson and Mr. Ullmann returned.  Chair Hutson chaired the meeting. 
 
6. DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE – Discussion with Representatives 

from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Discussion continued on the following items: 
 

 Article 2, page 3 – Adult Day Care Home and Adult Day Care Centers (how 
to permit). 

 
 Article 2, page 4 – Alterations (definition).  

 
 Article 2, page 4-5 – Building Height (definition and graphics).  

 
 Article 2, page 12 – Grade (calculation). 

 
 Article 4, page 49 – Use Table (formatted; revisions to day care facilities). 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2011 
  
 
 

5 
 

 Article 5, page 24 – Building Design and Materials (specificity of materials). 
 

 Article 5, page 39 – Use Groups Permitted Table (added labels for easier 
reading). 

 
 Article 6, page 1 – Adult Foster Care Facilities (large group homes). 

 
 Article 6, page 24 – Paragraph C.1.e. (note from Mr. Edmunds). 

 
 Article 7, page 2 – General Requirements (Paragraph A.3 re necessity of 

paragraph) 
 

 Article 7, page 8 – Storage of Recreational Vehicles and Equipment 
(Paragraph A. 1, solution to 3 feet distance to any side or rear lot line). 

 
 Article 8, page 2 – Site Plan Procedure (Pre-application meetings). 

 
 Article 8, page 7 – Submittal Requirements (sealed drawings and lighting 

plan). 
 

 Article 12, page 5 – Wind Energy Conversion Systems (Paragraph 3. b., 
adjacent property buildings). 

 
 Article 13, page 4 – Screening Between Land Uses (Paragraph 2. a., 

calculation). 
 

 Article 13, page 8 – Screening Requirements (construction materials). 
 

 Article 13, page 29 – Off Street Parking Lot Design Standards and 
Requirements (Paragraph 2, bumper blocks). 

 
 Article 15, page 9 – Rules and Procedures for Use Variances (Pre-hearing 

conference waiver). 
 
A brief discussion followed on use and dimensional variances: 
 Rescission of variances, based on false statements by applicant. 
o No provision to rescind. 
o Remedy potential through court action. 
o Stronger language in application to advise petitioner is under oath and 

subject to perjury. 
 Permanence of variances. 
 Time limit on variances. 





BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
February 15, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-007 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To approve the January 18, 2011 Regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert 
Abstain: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. POSTPONED ITEMS 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CAMELIA SANDULACHE, 405 E. MAPLE – In order to 

enlarge the existing building proposed to be used as a dental office:  1) A 16 foot 
variance from the required 20 foot side yard (east yard) setback, 2) An 11 foot 
variance from the required 30 foot yard front yard (west yard) setback, and 3) A 10 
foot variance from the requirement that the proposed handicapped ramp be set back 
20 feet from the west property line. 
 
ORDINANCE SECTIONS:  1) and 2)  30.20.01,  3)  41.45.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location and surrounding zoning.  He reviewed the actions 
taken to date by both the Planning Commission and Board of Appeals.  Mr. Evans 
individually addressed the three variances requested.  He stated the revised plan 
now lines up the proposed addition with the existing building, which results in a 14 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

2 
 

foot setback from the east property line, not the originally requested 16 foot setback.  
In response to a Board member question, Mr. Evans indicated it appears the width 
of the parcel on Maple Road is 60 feet, noting that the petitioner could confirm that. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said it appears that the request is for 50 feet worth of setbacks on a 60 
foot lot, given that the Zoning Ordinance requires a 20 foot setback on the east side 
as well as a 30 foot setback on the west side.   
 
Mr. Evans replied that appears to be a correct assessment. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if staff has met with or been in contact with the petitioner and the 
neighbor to the north who voiced opposition to the variance requests.   
 
Mr. Evans replied that he spoke on the telephone with both the applicant and the 
neighbor to the north.  He said there was no indication from either party whether an 
agreement has been reached. 
 
Paul Sugameli of Sugameli & Sugameli, P.L.C., 2833 Crooks Road, Troy, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Sugameli stated there was email dialogue 
among the parties.  Mr. Sugameli addressed six conditions that the neighbor to the 
north, Dr. Robert Sklar, requested in a written communication dated December 22, 
2010.  He indicated that the applicant has accommodated four out of the six 
requests. 
 
Mr. Sugameli individually addressed the neighbor’s requests to which the applicant 
has agreed to accommodate: 
 The addition will be in line with the current structure on the eastern side. 
 The air conditioning units will be surrounded by shrubs. 
 There will be no other structures located in the east greenbelt area, including but 

not limited to garbage collection units and power transformers. 
 There shall be a trash enclosure located on the Western side of the building. 

 
Mr. Sugameli stated that lining up the proposed addition on the eastern side results 
in a net loss of actual building and an additional $10,000-plus cost to the applicant.  
He briefly addressed the proposed screening around the air conditioning units.  Mr. 
Sugameli said the applicant is offering these concessions as a means of good faith 
and compromise.   
 
Mr. Sugameli next addressed the neighbor’s requests to which the applicant is not in 
agreement with, nor wishes to accommodate: 
 The parking spaces need to be reduced one foot in length, adding two feet to the 

North greenbelt area.  With this added space, we would ask that tall shrubs or 
small shade trees be planted. 

 The total number of treatment rooms must be reduced to three.  With the 
additional space made available by eliminating one treatment room, a staff 
lounge or doctor’s private office should be incorporated.  There cannot be space 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

3 
 

made for a future fourth patient/treatment room.  We want an assurance that 
there will be no more than three treatment/patients rooms.   

 
Mr. Sugameli stated the proposed parking meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
He referenced the Planning Consultant report dated January 17, 2011 which states 
that the applicant meets minimum parking requirements and has provided an extra 
parking space. 
 
Mr. Sugameli addressed the request to limit the number of treatment rooms to three.  
He said the number of treatment rooms has no relation to setbacks or dimensions 
and is not within the purview of the Board of Zoning Appeals review. 
 
Mr. Sugameli said that any use on that parcel as zoned would be before this Board 
for variances. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the requested elimination of the extra parking space would 
provide space for additional landscaping and/or greenbelt. 
 
Mr. Sugameli replied in the negative. 
 
Arthur Kalajian, project architect, of 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Kalajian said that technically a 20’x19’ parking space could be eliminated and 
possibly one tree planted, but he believes that would not satisfy the intent of the 
neighbor to screen the parking lot.  Mr. Kalajian said discussion with the neighbor 
leads him to believe the neighbor would prefer an extra parking space to alleviate his 
concern of a shortage of parking.  Mr. Kalajian addressed the additional 10 inches of 
greenbelt he added to the plan with 14”-16” low landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kalajian said the revised site plan design has a tucked-in entrance that creates a 
more congested area and a smaller waiting area.  Mr. Kalajian noted that 
architecturally speaking he prefers the original plan.  He said the revised plan works 
and is more costly; it is compromised and more complex solution.  Mr. Kalajian said 
that everything possible and practical was done with the revised configuration. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what changes, if any, were required to the wheelchair ramp with 
the new entrance. 
 
Mr. Kalajian replied the planter next to the ramp was reconfigured but not the ramp 
itself, and the entrance became more of a diagonal configuration rather than a 
straight configuration.  He confirmed that the wheelchair ramp is in the same location 
and has the same dimensions and slope as originally planned.  Mr. Kalajian 
confirmed the width of the property along Maple Road is 60 feet. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

4 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Richard Taubman of 32255 Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, was present 
on behalf of Dr. Robert Sklar, the neighbor to the north at 415 E. Maple.  Mr. 
Taubman said a request for a dimensional non-use variance is available to relieve 
property owners of the burden of practical difficulties caused by the property itself 
and not by how the property owners propose to use the property.  Mr. Taubman said 
the subject property is a flat rectangle, and there is nothing unusual about the shape 
or elevation that creates a practical difficulty.  He stated it is a self-created problem 
because the applicant is attempting to shoehorn a development on a parcel not big 
enough for the proposed use. 
 
Mr. Taubman disagreed with the applicant’s claim that a variance or variances would 
be required for any use on the site.  He said appropriate uses for the property would 
be a therapist, certified public accountant or any office that could simply house a 
computer and desk. 
 
Mr. Taubman said granting of the variances requested would allow the expansion of 
a nonconforming structure, when nonconforming structures are intended to be 
extinguished with time.  Mr. Taubman apprised the Board that his client purchased 
and invested in the difficult t-shaped lot for the development of his practice with the 
belief that he could rely on the Zoning Ordinance being fairly and evenly applied to 
all property owners. 
 
Mr. Taubman shared that one of the suggestions the applicant approached his client 
with was to place the shrubbery and trees on his client’s property.  Mr. Taubman 
said this highlights the situation that the applicant does not have the space to buffer 
on their property and would like to use his client’s property to solve their problems.  
Mr. Taubman urged the Board to deny the variance application, or to limit any 
variance the Board might be inclined to grant. 
 
Mr. Kneale asked Mr. Taubman to expand upon his statement that granting a 
variance would be an expansion of the nonconforming structure. 
 
Mr. Taubman said the existing structure is dimensionally nonconforming and a new 
structure could not be constructed as it is now because of its proximity to Maple 
Road.  The variances, if granted, would expand the nonconforming structure. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the application before the Board is for a variance or an 
expansion of a nonconforming use. 
 
Mr. Forsyth replied that the Board should apply  both the variance standards and the 
expansion to nonconforming standards.  Mr. Forsyth asked that the record fairly 
reflect that the use is not a nonconforming use.  He stated the use complies with the 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

5 
 

Zoning Ordinance, and the existing structure as built does not meet the setback 
requirements.   
 
Chair Lambert noted that the Board is in receipt of one communication from the 
neighbor at 1923 Kirkton in support of the application. 
 
Mr. Strat said it appears that construction of a new office building on the subject 
parcel would be highly improbable given the property dimensions and configuration 
of the subject parcel.  He indicated he would vote in favor of the variances based on 
the fact that the property configuration presents a hardship and development is 
needed in the City. 
 
Mr. Courtney said the proposed use appears to be excessive for the parcel size.  He 
said a smaller office along the lines of accounting and insurance would be more 
appropriate.  Mr. Courtney does not agree that another use could not go on the 
parcel without the requirement of any variances. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-008 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To amend the prior motion (Resolution # BZA 2010-12-057) to grant the 
requested variances and to the extent that it is calling for an expansion of a 
nonconforming structure, to grant the petition. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the expansion or variances, as the case may be, are not contrary to the 

public interest. 
 That the variances or expansion do not permit the establishment of a prohibited 

use within the zoning district. 
 That the expansion does not cause, or the variances do not cause, an adverse 

effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or within that zoning district. 
 That the petition relates only to this piece of property described.   

 
Special Findings: 
 That the expansion is necessary to implement the spirit of the ordinance or to 

accomplish substantial justice, including on the grounds that conforming is 
unnecessarily burdensome. 

 That the variances that have been requested are not excessive especially the 
ones that have been amended and are before us today. 

 That the practical difficulties result from the unusual characteristics of the 
property including the size, the location and the configuration.  The 60’x122’ 
corner lot of the standard rectangular configuration is difficult or impossible for 
the petitioner to make a reasonable use of the premises with regard to this 
structure or another structure and be in full compliance of the ordinance.   

 That this motion is inclusive of the drawings and presentations made this 
evening. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

6 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Discussion on the original motion (Resolution # BZA 2010-12-057), as amended. 
 
Chair Lambert thanked the applicant for the efforts made to accommodate the 
neighbors to the east and north.  He indicated he would vote favorably on the 
motion.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated the proposed use is excessive for the size of the parcel.  He 
indicated he would vote against the motion.   
 
Vote on the original motion as amended. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert, Strat 
No: Courtney 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAN IVANOVIC CONSTRUCTION, 5188 SERENA – In 
order to enlarge the attached garage, a 5 foot variance to the required 40 foot front 
yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  30.10.01 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested front yard 
setback variance.  He indicated the applicant’s intent is to keep the existing 
matching elevation. 
 
Dan Ivanovic of Ivanovic Construction Inc., 54245 Queensborough Drive, Shelby 
Township, was present to represent the property owner.  Mr. Ivanovic said his client, 
Dr. Evan Black, conducts training for ophthalmic surgical procedures.  The doctor 
offers his home to guests who are in town for the training and would like a garage 
big enough to accommodate the additional vehicles during those stays.  Mr. Ivanovic 
said he spoke with surrounding neighbors and there appears to be no objections to 
the proposed garage.  Mr. Ivanovic said the garage expansion would not change the 
look of the house elevation; the only difference would be that the garage is 7 feet 
longer on the street side.   
 
Dr. Evan Black of 5188 Serena Drive, Troy, was present.  Dr. Black, an ophthalmic 
plastic and reconstructive surgeon, said there is usually only one guest at a time, 
and the visits are infrequent.  He said it is an offer of goodwill on his part and sister 
hospitals to accommodate the guests attending the surgical training.  Dr. Black said 
a guest could stay anywhere from one to two weeks.  Dr. Black said parking of 
vehicles is especially difficult during the winter months with the clearing of snow.  He 
would like a garage big enough to accommodate guest vehicles as well as use the 
space efficiently for typical garage items. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

7 
 

Mr. Bartnik asked for dimensions of the existing driveway and the number of cars 
that can park in the driveway without obstructing access to the garage. 
 
Dr. Black replied that three to four cars can easily park in the circular driveway.  He 
distributed photographs to the Board members. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted there is no correspondence on 
file from neighbors. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-009 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity. 
 That the variance relates only to the petitioner’s property.   

 
Special Findings: 

 The petitioner has the following practical difficulties that flows with the 
configuration of this house, in particular with regard to the shape of the lot, the 
location of the driveway and the turn into the garage. 

 Conforming is unnecessarily burdensome.  Variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties result from the size, location and configuration. 

 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Lambert, Strat 
No: Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, LOUIS PAULL, 1396 COUNTRY – In order to construct an 

uncovered patio structure, an 8 foot variance from the required 30 foot setback 
adjacent to Pine Way Road. 
 
SECTIONS:  30.10.02 and 41.45.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested setback 
variance.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

8 
 

The petitioner, Louis Paull of 1396 Country, Troy, was present.  Mr. Paull addressed 
the proposed deck with alternative locations and sizes.  He indicated that a deck 
with zero encroachments would basically be unusable.  He said placing the deck at 
the rear of the house would necessitate the removing existing trees, redirecting 
sprinkler valves, and relocating the air conditioner, downspouts and gutters.  Mr. 
Paull addressed several deck options, elevations and photographs. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the photograph displaying the deck with orange tape is the same 
deck configuration that he viewed during his site visit. 
 
Mr. Paull replied in the affirmative.  Mr. Paull confirmed the drawing labeled A02a is 
the deck displayed in the photograph with orange tape, and the deck most 
reasonably situated, usable and aesthetically pleasing.  Mr. Paull said he thoroughly 
researched possible variations. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Paull how much usable area would remain if the distance 
was taken off between the two stakes. 
 
Mr. Paull replied that would cut down the usable area quite a bit.  He said from the 
original plan, he reduced the size of the encroachment area about 45% and reduced 
the internal dimensions of the patio by 32%. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he thinks the applicant could reduce the size more, but most likely 
could not reduce it enough to avoid seeking a variance. 
 
Mr. Paull said his research proved constructing a deck with zero encroachments 
impractical.  He confirmed situating the deck in the rear would involve removing 
existing trees, redirecting sprinkler valves, and relocating the air conditioner, 
downspouts and gutters. 
 
Mr. Strat said it appears to him that from the functionality of the applicant’s home, 
the most logical location is at the side of house near the nook sliding door.  Mr. Strat 
said it appears not to be practical for the applicant to situate the deck in the rear, not 
to mention incurred costs.  He said it appears the applicant has no other options with 
respect to the deck location. 
 
Mr. Paull agreed that from a functionality standpoint, the side yard is the only logical 
location. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted one correspondence is on file 
from the homeowners association giving approval to construct a deck. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

9 
 

Resolution # BZA 2011-02-010 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 That the variance relates only to property described in the application for 

variance. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. TEMPORARY PARKING REQUEST, LARY LLEWELLYN, 475 E. LOVELL – A 

request to allow the temporary outdoor parking of a commercial vehicle in a one 
family residential district. 
 
SECTION:  43.74.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location and surrounding zoning.  He said the one-year 
renewal granted in 2010 expired and the applicant is seeking a two-year renewal.  
Mr. Evans said the City has received no complaints to date on this matter.   
 
The petitioner, Lary Llewellyn of 475 E. Lovell, Troy, was present.  Mr. Llewellyn said 
the circumstances are the same as they were when the City granted the temporary 
outdoor parking in 2010.  He indicated his employer, Comcast, requires employees 
who are on call to keep the company vehicle within easy access for dispatch.  Mr. 
Llewellyn said he is on call once a month for seven days.  He is also classified as a 
home garage technician and in that capacity, he must be available for dispatch 24/7, 
365 days a year to service Oakland or Macomb Counties. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn addressed the cost estimate to expand the existing garage to 
accommodate a third vehicle.  He indicated the estimate is approximately $20,000, 
and further explained the garage would be oversized because of the required 
clearance to accommodate the vehicle. 
 
Mr. Courtney expressed that an oversized garage might be more of an eyesore than 
a well-hidden truck on the premises. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

10 
 

Mr. Clark stated it appears that existing mature landscaping obscures the truck from 
view of most passers-by.  Mr. Clark asked the size of the applicant’s lot. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn replied that his lot is almost one acre in size. 
 
Mr. Kneale asked if the applicant has a vehicle on the premises only when he is on 
call. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn replied in the negative.  He said the only time there is no commercial 
vehicle on the premises is when he is on vacation.  Mr. Llewellyn explained that he 
is required to be on call 7 days out of each month; and further, in the capacity of a 
home garage technician, he is on call 24/7, 365 days. 
 
Mr. Forsyth reminded the Board the matter before them is a temporary parking 
request for a commercial vehicle, and to apply standards in Section 43.74.00 to 
reach their determination. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dean Cox of 425 E. Lovell, Troy, was present to speak in favor of the request.  Mr. 
Cox said he also submitted a written communication stating he had no objections to 
the request.  Mr. Cox said the truck is barely visible to adjacent homeowners and 
causes no problems to the neighborhood. 
 
Chair Lambert stated there are two communications on file from neighbors indicating 
they have no objections to the request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-011 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To approve the request for two years. 
 
 The applicant meets Standards B and C of Section 43.74.01. 
o Standard C – The commercial vehicle does not negatively impact adjacent 

residential properties; nor does it negatively impact pedestrian and vehicular 
movement. 

o Standard B – A garage addition would be unsightly because of the necessity 
to make the clearance higher. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated it is evident the petitioner keeps a very well maintained home and 
configures the commercial vehicle to be nearly invisible to adjacent homeowners 
and passers-by.  Mr. Bartnik said it is his opinion that the employer should be in front 
of the Board with commercial vehicle requests.  He said it appears that Comcast 
requires their employees and independent contractors to keep commercial vehicles 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

11 
 

at their residences and, in doing so, imposes the violation of local zoning ordinances 
upon their employees and independent contractors. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAN SIMIONESCU, 691 OTTAWA – In order to continue 
the presence of previously constructed accessory buildings, 1) a 1255 square foot 
variance to the requirement that the combined ground floor area of all detached 
accessory buildings not exceed 450 square feet plus 2% of the total lot area, 2) a 1.5 
foot variance to the requirement that a detached accessory building be at least 6 feet 
from a side lot line, and 3) approval to use some of the buildings as barns. 
 
SECTIONS:  40.56.03 (C), (D), (F) 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested variances.  Mr. 
Evans gave a brief history of the property and identified that there are six detached 
accessory buildings, of which the City currently has construction permits for the 
second garage and barn.  He said the remaining detached structures are a small 
manure cover, an element shelter, and several coops for fowl and other types of 
animals.   
 
Mr. Evans explained the two formulas in the same Section of the Zoning Ordinance 
that regulate the aggregate total amount of square footage for detached accessory 
buildings.  He noted that the Public Hearing notice advertised that the combined 
floor area of all detached accessory buildings shall not exceed 450 square feet, plus 
2% of total lot area, requiring a 1,255 square foot variance.  Mr. Evans stated the 
second formula allows the applicant 2,336 square feet of accessory floor area, 
requiring a 1,146 square foot variance.  He said the calculations differ somewhat 
from previously approved variances because the barn under consideration at the 
time was actually constructed a little bit smaller. 
 
Mr. Evans briefly addressed the 1.5 foot setback variance required for the existing 
chicken coop and the applicant’s request to keep the existing barns. 
 
Brian Carrier, attorney, of 45670 Village Blvd., Shelby Township, was present to 
represent the property owner.  Mr. Carrier addressed the previously granted 
variance for the construction of the barn.  He noted that since that approval, there 
have been no additional buildings constructed.  He stated further that there is a 
reduction in the square footage of accessory floor area because the goat shelter is 
removed and the barn was constructed smaller than originally approved. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

12 
 

Mr. Carrier said the property owner is in front of the Board this evening to allow a 
variance for the detached accessory buildings that have already been in existence; 
i.e., element shelter, chicken coop, pigeon coop, additional coop and manure cover.  
He noted that the property owner has already obtained permits and variances for the 
house, the garages and the barn.   
 
Mr. Carrier cited the square footage of the following detached accessory buildings: 
 element shelter, 370 square feet 
 chicken coop, 120 square feet 
 pigeon coop, 28 square feet 
 coop, 20 square feet 
 manure cover, 64 square feet 

 
He indicated that a 542 square foot variance is requested this evening; 602 square 
feet, less the 60 square feet for the barn that was constructed smaller than originally 
planned. 
 
Mr. Carrier referenced a petition signed by surrounding property owners stating they 
have no objections and are in agreement with the requested variances.  He said the 
only objection to the requests is the neighbor residing at 761 Ottawa.  Mr. Carrier 
stated the detached accessory buildings are not visible to the adjacent homeowners.  
He referenced a photograph of the element shelter and briefly addressed its 
purpose.  The shelter would provide dry ground for the animals during inclement 
weather and cleaning of stalls. 
 
Chair Lambert asked the applicant if he had contact with the neighbor to the west. 
 
The property owner, Dan Simionescu, was present and said the neighbor to the west 
is elderly, never comes out of her home and he did not want to trouble her. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the applicant if he would have any objection to a Resolution that 
covers all the detached accessory buildings. 
 
Mr. Carrier replied that would be his preference.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  
 
Chair Lambert acknowledged receipt of a petition signed by approximately fifteen 
neighbors in favor of the request, and one written objection from a neighbor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Evans advised the Board the Planning Department became aware of the matter 
as a result of a resident bringing the matter to the attention of City Council at one of 
their Regular meetings.  Mr. Evans said research found no minutes or plans on 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

13 
 

record that grant approval of all the existing detached accessory buildings on this 
property.  He indicated if the applicant is successful this evening, it would validate all 
the structures on site. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked that the record reflect he visited the subject property today and 
spoke with the petitioner, at which time the property owner stated the buildings were 
present as of 2001.  Mr. Bartnik said the structures appear to be long standing 
structures and the property can support the structures.  He sees no problem with the 
existing state of affairs and is in favor of granting the petition. 
 
Mr. Kneale suggested to view aerial photography to see what structures existed.   
 
Mr. Evans displayed 1990 and 2002 aerial photographs.  It was difficult to determine 
from the aerial photography which structures existed at that time.   
 
Mr. Strat said he likes the existing environment and is in favor of the request.  He 
addressed legislation of every parcel in the City. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-012 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance, as written. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the property is large enough to support all the buildings. 
 The variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding properties. 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 

Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, JEFF GLASER, OUR CREDIT UNION, 6693 ROCHESTER 
– A variance from the requirement that a 6 foot high obscuring wall be provided to 
the residentially zoned properties north and west of the subject location. 
 
SECTION:  39.10.01 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning, history of the property and 
the applicant’s request for a permanent variance. 
 
Chair Lambert referenced an email communication from a neighbor residing at 947 
Hannah, requesting pine trees to obscure vehicular headlights of bank customers 
during evening hours. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

14 
 

It was noted that 947 Hannah is south of the credit union.  Mr. Evans stated there is 
no requirement to provide a screen wall to the south because of the street 
separation between the properties. 
 
Mr. Kneale acknowledged a past business relationship with the applicant.  He said 
he has not seen the applicant for years and is comfortable hearing and acting on the 
agenda item. 
 
The Board members agreed there was no reason for Mr. Kneale to recuse himself.   
 
Jeff Glaser from Our Credit Union, 6693 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Glaser briefly addressed the working relationship with the Planning Commission and 
the Board of Zoning Appeals with respect to providing a landscaped buffer for 
residential.  Mr. Glaser said they want to be a good neighbor.  He addressed various 
lighting of the building and premises, hours of operation, existing landscape and 
vegetation.  He believes building a wall to the north and west would take away from 
the beauty of the area.  Mr. Glaser addressed the existing vegetation with the 
changes of seasons. 
 
Mr. Glaser addressed the communication from the resident at 947 Hannah.  He 
indicated that he personally has driven around the drive-through area during evening 
hours and does not see how headlights could possibly reach residents on Hannah.  
Mr. Glaser indicated the resident on Hannah approached the construction supervisor 
during the construction phase with similar concerns.  The credit union offered to 
plant trees on his property and/or along the lot line.  Mr. Glaser said he assumed 
everything was resolved but the resident did not respond to that offer. 
 
Doug Clark, project developer, from The Case Group, 28175 Haggerty, Novi, was 
present.  Mr. Clark addressed the buffer to the west in relation to the building angle 
and drive-through.  He noted the buffer is over six lots wide and vegetation is not yet 
at full maturity.  Mr. Clark addressed the various stages of vegetation with the 
seasons. 
 
Mr. Glaser stated the credit union has been in operation since December 6, 2010. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested consideration of a permanent variance would be more 
appropriate after the credit union has been in operation for three years. 
 
Mr. Forsyth requested a time to research the Zoning Ordinance with respect to the 
number of years of operation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Marc Himelstein of 754 Sandalwood Drive, Troy, was present to represent the 
Sandalwood Condominium Association.  Mr. Himelstein asked for consideration to 
construct a six-foot wall as a buffer to the north for at least three years while the 
business develops.  He addressed concerns of Sandalwood homeowners with 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

15 
 

respect to noise and safety.  Mr. Himelstein said the homeowners have no 
objections to waiving the wall to the west. 
 
Mr. Courtney informed Mr. Himelstein that the Board would not require the applicant 
to put up a wall on the pretense of taking it down three years later.  He asked if the 
noise might be coming from Rochester Road instead, and indicated a wall is not a 
good deterrent for noise. 
 
Mr. Himelstein said the noise complaints are from those residents living in the front 
of the building, and they fully understand that a wall is not a perfect solution but at 
least it would provide another barrier for safety. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Location of condominium units in relation to credit union. 
 Detention pond in relation to credit union and condominiums. 
 Discussion/communication between condominium association and credit union. 
 Safety of children; near Rochester Road, detention pond, credit union parking lot. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Forsyth said it is at the Board’s discretion to waive the wall.  He cited Section 
39.10.04 uses the word “may”; the wall could be permanent or more of a temporary 
nature as proposed by Mr. Courtney. 
 
Mr. Courtney said the section refers to “after a three year period”, and in this 
instance the variance has been granted for three years even though the variance 
was granted under different ownership.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02- 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance for one year, to allow more time to determine 
whether a wall should be constructed.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The conditions remain the same.  
 Allow sufficient time for residents to the north to determine whether a wall is 

necessary or not. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik expressed concern for residents to the north.  He said the building looks 
completely different from when it was originally reviewed.  
 
Mr. Courtney agreed the building is different from what was originally reviewed. 
 
Mr. Clark said he agrees with a one year renewal.  He addressed the concerns of 
the residents to the north, 24-hour ATM window, vehicular headlights and litter.  Mr. 
Clark suggested in the future that the condominium association forward a formal 
resolution to the Board stating their concerns. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

16 
 

Mr. Evans suggested postponing the item to a date certain as an alternative solution 
to granting a variance for one year.  
 
A short discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would like to withdraw the west wall from the Resolution on the 
floor.  His intent is to offer a following Resolution to grant a permanent variance for 
the required wall on the west.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02- 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant a variance for one year for the required wall to the north. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Glaser addressed potential for litter on the property.  He said the credit union 
produces as little paper as possible for security and cost reasons.  Mr. Glaser 
addressed the wall to the north in relation to the elevation of the condominium units, 
noise, safety and traffic.   
 
Chair Lambert asked if the applicant would prefer to postpone the item to allow time 
to address the condominium association concerns. 
 
Mr. Glaser said he is amenable to the wishes of the Board.  He said he is not sure 
anything short of a wall would be satisfactory to the residents. 
 
Mr. Himelstein offered an invitation to the applicant to attend their annual board 
meeting held in the summer. 
 
There was a brief discussion on granting a six month variance or postponing the 
item for six months. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-013 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To postpone action on the required wall to the north to the August 16, 2011 
Regular meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Evans announced with a postponement that notification to the public is not 
required.  
 
Chair Lambert stated the motion to postpone takes precedence over the other 
motions on the floor. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

17 
 

 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-014 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To grant a permanent variance on the west wall. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kneale asked if it is appropriate to address the communication received from the 
neighbor to the south. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said it would not be proper to address the communication, the reason 
being that the variance before the Board this evening dealt strictly with the north and 
west sides of the property. 
 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mr. Evans announced that a Public Hearing is scheduled on the March 8, 2011 
Planning Commission Regular meeting for the newly drafted Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
Chair Lambert welcomed Mr. Strat to the Board. 
 
Mr. Bartnik encouraged members to take an active interest in the newly drafted Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:57 p.m. 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David Lambert, Chair 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

18 
 

 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2011\Draft\02-15-11 BZA Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
February 15, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-007 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To approve the January 18, 2011 Regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert 
Abstain: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. POSTPONED ITEMS 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CAMELIA SANDULACHE, 405 E. MAPLE – In order to 

enlarge the existing building proposed to be used as a dental office:  1) A 16 foot 
variance from the required 20 foot side yard (east yard) setback, 2) An 11 foot 
variance from the required 30 foot yard front yard (west yard) setback, and 3) A 10 
foot variance from the requirement that the proposed handicapped ramp be set back 
20 feet from the west property line. 
 
ORDINANCE SECTIONS:  1) and 2)  30.20.01,  3)  41.45.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location and surrounding zoning.  He reviewed the actions 
taken to date by both the Planning Commission and Board of Appeals.  Mr. Evans 
individually addressed the three variances requested.  He stated the revised plan 
now lines up the proposed addition with the existing building, which results in a 14 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

2 
 

foot setback from the east property line, not the originally requested 16 foot setback.  
In response to a Board member question, Mr. Evans indicated it appears the width 
of the parcel on Maple Road is 60 feet, noting that the petitioner could confirm that. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said it appears that the request is for 50 feet worth of setbacks on a 60 
foot lot, given that the Zoning Ordinance requires a 20 foot setback on the east side 
as well as a 30 foot setback on the west side.   
 
Mr. Evans replied that appears to be a correct assessment. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if staff has met with or been in contact with the petitioner and the 
neighbor to the north who voiced opposition to the variance requests.   
 
Mr. Evans replied that he spoke on the telephone with both the applicant and the 
neighbor to the north.  He said there was no indication from either party whether an 
agreement has been reached. 
 
Paul Sugameli of Sugameli & Sugameli, P.L.C., 2833 Crooks Road, Troy, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Sugameli stated there was email dialogue 
among the parties.  Mr. Sugameli addressed six conditions that the neighbor to the 
north, Dr. Robert Sklar, requested in a written communication dated December 22, 
2010.  He indicated that the applicant has accommodated four out of the six 
requests. 
 
Mr. Sugameli individually addressed the neighbor’s requests to which the applicant 
has agreed to accommodate: 
 The addition will be in line with the current structure on the eastern side. 
 The air conditioning units will be surrounded by shrubs. 
 There will be no other structures located in the east greenbelt area, including but 

not limited to garbage collection units and power transformers. 
 There shall be a trash enclosure located on the Western side of the building. 

 
Mr. Sugameli stated that lining up the proposed addition on the eastern side results 
in a net loss of actual building and an additional $10,000-plus cost to the applicant.  
He briefly addressed the proposed screening around the air conditioning units.  Mr. 
Sugameli said the applicant is offering these concessions as a means of good faith 
and compromise.   
 
Mr. Sugameli next addressed the neighbor’s requests to which the applicant is not in 
agreement with, nor wishes to accommodate: 
 The parking spaces need to be reduced one foot in length, adding two feet to the 

North greenbelt area.  With this added space, we would ask that tall shrubs or 
small shade trees be planted. 

 The total number of treatment rooms must be reduced to three.  With the 
additional space made available by eliminating one treatment room, a staff 
lounge or doctor’s private office should be incorporated.  There cannot be space 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

3 
 

made for a future fourth patient/treatment room.  We want an assurance that 
there will be no more than three treatment/patients rooms.   

 
Mr. Sugameli stated the proposed parking meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
He referenced the Planning Consultant report dated January 17, 2011 which states 
that the applicant meets minimum parking requirements and has provided an extra 
parking space. 
 
Mr. Sugameli addressed the request to limit the number of treatment rooms to three.  
He said the number of treatment rooms has no relation to setbacks or dimensions 
and is not within the purview of the Board of Zoning Appeals review. 
 
Mr. Sugameli said that any use on that parcel as zoned would be before this Board 
for variances. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the requested elimination of the extra parking space would 
provide space for additional landscaping and/or greenbelt. 
 
Mr. Sugameli replied in the negative. 
 
Arthur Kalajian, project architect, of 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Kalajian said that technically a 20’x19’ parking space could be eliminated and 
possibly one tree planted, but he believes that would not satisfy the intent of the 
neighbor to screen the parking lot.  Mr. Kalajian said discussion with the neighbor 
leads him to believe the neighbor would prefer an extra parking space to alleviate his 
concern of a shortage of parking.  Mr. Kalajian addressed the additional 10 inches of 
greenbelt he added to the plan with 14”-16” low landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kalajian said the revised site plan design has a tucked-in entrance that creates a 
more congested area and a smaller waiting area.  Mr. Kalajian noted that 
architecturally speaking he prefers the original plan.  He said the revised plan works 
and is more costly; it is compromised and more complex solution.  Mr. Kalajian said 
that everything possible and practical was done with the revised configuration. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what changes, if any, were required to the wheelchair ramp with 
the new entrance. 
 
Mr. Kalajian replied the planter next to the ramp was reconfigured but not the ramp 
itself, and the entrance became more of a diagonal configuration rather than a 
straight configuration.  He confirmed that the wheelchair ramp is in the same location 
and has the same dimensions and slope as originally planned.  Mr. Kalajian 
confirmed the width of the property along Maple Road is 60 feet. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

4 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Richard Taubman of 32255 Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, was present 
on behalf of Dr. Robert Sklar, the neighbor to the north at 415 E. Maple.  Mr. 
Taubman said a request for a dimensional non-use variance is available to relieve 
property owners of the burden of practical difficulties caused by the property itself 
and not by how the property owners propose to use the property.  Mr. Taubman said 
the subject property is a flat rectangle, and there is nothing unusual about the shape 
or elevation that creates a practical difficulty.  He stated it is a self-created problem 
because the applicant is attempting to shoehorn a development on a parcel not big 
enough for the proposed use. 
 
Mr. Taubman disagreed with the applicant’s claim that a variance or variances would 
be required for any use on the site.  He said appropriate uses for the property would 
be a therapist, certified public accountant or any office that could simply house a 
computer and desk. 
 
Mr. Taubman said granting of the variances requested would allow the expansion of 
a nonconforming structure, when nonconforming structures are intended to be 
extinguished with time.  Mr. Taubman apprised the Board that his client purchased 
and invested in the difficult t-shaped lot for the development of his practice with the 
belief that he could rely on the Zoning Ordinance being fairly and evenly applied to 
all property owners. 
 
Mr. Taubman shared that one of the suggestions the applicant approached his client 
with was to place the shrubbery and trees on his client’s property.  Mr. Taubman 
said this highlights the situation that the applicant does not have the space to buffer 
on their property and would like to use his client’s property to solve their problems.  
Mr. Taubman urged the Board to deny the variance application, or to limit any 
variance the Board might be inclined to grant. 
 
Mr. Kneale asked Mr. Taubman to expand upon his statement that granting a 
variance would be an expansion of the nonconforming structure. 
 
Mr. Taubman said the existing structure is dimensionally nonconforming and a new 
structure could not be constructed as it is now because of its proximity to Maple 
Road.  The variances, if granted, would expand the nonconforming structure. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the application before the Board is for a variance or an 
expansion of a nonconforming use. 
 
Mr. Forsyth replied that the Board should apply  both the variance standards and the 
expansion to nonconforming standards.  Mr. Forsyth asked that the record fairly 
reflect that the use is not a nonconforming use.  He stated the use complies with the 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

5 
 

Zoning Ordinance, and the existing structure as built does not meet the setback 
requirements.   
 
Chair Lambert noted that the Board is in receipt of one communication from the 
neighbor at 1923 Kirkton in support of the application. 
 
Mr. Strat said it appears that construction of a new office building on the subject 
parcel would be highly improbable given the property dimensions and configuration 
of the subject parcel.  He indicated he would vote in favor of the variances based on 
the fact that the property configuration presents a hardship and development is 
needed in the City. 
 
Mr. Courtney said the proposed use appears to be excessive for the parcel size.  He 
said a smaller office along the lines of accounting and insurance would be more 
appropriate.  Mr. Courtney does not agree that another use could not go on the 
parcel without the requirement of any variances. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-008 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To amend the prior motion (Resolution # BZA 2010-12-057) to grant the 
requested variances and to the extent that it is calling for an expansion of a 
nonconforming structure, to grant the petition. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the expansion or variances, as the case may be, are not contrary to the 

public interest. 
 That the variances or expansion do not permit the establishment of a prohibited 

use within the zoning district. 
 That the expansion does not cause, or the variances do not cause, an adverse 

effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or within that zoning district. 
 That the petition relates only to this piece of property described.   

 
Special Findings: 
 That the expansion is necessary to implement the spirit of the ordinance or to 

accomplish substantial justice, including on the grounds that conforming is 
unnecessarily burdensome. 

 That the variances that have been requested are not excessive especially the 
ones that have been amended and are before us today. 

 That the practical difficulties result from the unusual characteristics of the 
property including the size, the location and the configuration.  The 60’x122’ 
corner lot of the standard rectangular configuration is difficult or impossible for 
the petitioner to make a reasonable use of the premises with regard to this 
structure or another structure and be in full compliance of the ordinance.   

 That this motion is inclusive of the drawings and presentations made this 
evening. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

6 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Discussion on the original motion (Resolution # BZA 2010-12-057), as amended. 
 
Chair Lambert thanked the applicant for the efforts made to accommodate the 
neighbors to the east and north.  He indicated he would vote favorably on the 
motion.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated the proposed use is excessive for the size of the parcel.  He 
indicated he would vote against the motion.   
 
Vote on the original motion as amended. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert, Strat 
No: Courtney 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAN IVANOVIC CONSTRUCTION, 5188 SERENA – In 
order to enlarge the attached garage, a 5 foot variance to the required 40 foot front 
yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  30.10.01 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested front yard 
setback variance.  He indicated the applicant’s intent is to keep the existing 
matching elevation. 
 
Dan Ivanovic of Ivanovic Construction Inc., 54245 Queensborough Drive, Shelby 
Township, was present to represent the property owner.  Mr. Ivanovic said his client, 
Dr. Evan Black, conducts training for ophthalmic surgical procedures.  The doctor 
offers his home to guests who are in town for the training and would like a garage 
big enough to accommodate the additional vehicles during those stays.  Mr. Ivanovic 
said he spoke with surrounding neighbors and there appears to be no objections to 
the proposed garage.  Mr. Ivanovic said the garage expansion would not change the 
look of the house elevation; the only difference would be that the garage is 7 feet 
longer on the street side.   
 
Dr. Evan Black of 5188 Serena Drive, Troy, was present.  Dr. Black, an ophthalmic 
plastic and reconstructive surgeon, said there is usually only one guest at a time, 
and the visits are infrequent.  He said it is an offer of goodwill on his part and sister 
hospitals to accommodate the guests attending the surgical training.  Dr. Black said 
a guest could stay anywhere from one to two weeks.  Dr. Black said parking of 
vehicles is especially difficult during the winter months with the clearing of snow.  He 
would like a garage big enough to accommodate guest vehicles as well as use the 
space efficiently for typical garage items. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

7 
 

Mr. Bartnik asked for dimensions of the existing driveway and the number of cars 
that can park in the driveway without obstructing access to the garage. 
 
Dr. Black replied that three to four cars can easily park in the circular driveway.  He 
distributed photographs to the Board members. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted there is no correspondence on 
file from neighbors. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-009 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity. 
 That the variance relates only to the petitioner’s property.   

 
Special Findings: 

 The petitioner has the following practical difficulties that flows with the 
configuration of this house, in particular with regard to the shape of the lot, the 
location of the driveway and the turn into the garage. 

 Conforming is unnecessarily burdensome.  Variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties result from the size, location and configuration. 

 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Lambert, Strat 
No: Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, LOUIS PAULL, 1396 COUNTRY – In order to construct an 

uncovered patio structure, an 8 foot variance from the required 30 foot setback 
adjacent to Pine Way Road. 
 
SECTIONS:  30.10.02 and 41.45.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested setback 
variance.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

8 
 

The petitioner, Louis Paull of 1396 Country, Troy, was present.  Mr. Paull addressed 
the proposed deck with alternative locations and sizes.  He indicated that a deck 
with zero encroachments would basically be unusable.  He said placing the deck at 
the rear of the house would necessitate the removing existing trees, redirecting 
sprinkler valves, and relocating the air conditioner, downspouts and gutters.  Mr. 
Paull addressed several deck options, elevations and photographs. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the photograph displaying the deck with orange tape is the same 
deck configuration that he viewed during his site visit. 
 
Mr. Paull replied in the affirmative.  Mr. Paull confirmed the drawing labeled A02a is 
the deck displayed in the photograph with orange tape, and the deck most 
reasonably situated, usable and aesthetically pleasing.  Mr. Paull said he thoroughly 
researched possible variations. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Paull how much usable area would remain if the distance 
was taken off between the two stakes. 
 
Mr. Paull replied that would cut down the usable area quite a bit.  He said from the 
original plan, he reduced the size of the encroachment area about 45% and reduced 
the internal dimensions of the patio by 32%. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he thinks the applicant could reduce the size more, but most likely 
could not reduce it enough to avoid seeking a variance. 
 
Mr. Paull said his research proved constructing a deck with zero encroachments 
impractical.  He confirmed situating the deck in the rear would involve removing 
existing trees, redirecting sprinkler valves, and relocating the air conditioner, 
downspouts and gutters. 
 
Mr. Strat said it appears to him that from the functionality of the applicant’s home, 
the most logical location is at the side of house near the nook sliding door.  Mr. Strat 
said it appears not to be practical for the applicant to situate the deck in the rear, not 
to mention incurred costs.  He said it appears the applicant has no other options with 
respect to the deck location. 
 
Mr. Paull agreed that from a functionality standpoint, the side yard is the only logical 
location. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted one correspondence is on file 
from the homeowners association giving approval to construct a deck. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

9 
 

Resolution # BZA 2011-02-010 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 That the variance relates only to property described in the application for 

variance. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. TEMPORARY PARKING REQUEST, LARY LLEWELLYN, 475 E. LOVELL – A 

request to allow the temporary outdoor parking of a commercial vehicle in a one 
family residential district. 
 
SECTION:  43.74.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location and surrounding zoning.  He said the one-year 
renewal granted in 2010 expired and the applicant is seeking a two-year renewal.  
Mr. Evans said the City has received no complaints to date on this matter.   
 
The petitioner, Lary Llewellyn of 475 E. Lovell, Troy, was present.  Mr. Llewellyn said 
the circumstances are the same as they were when the City granted the temporary 
outdoor parking in 2010.  He indicated his employer, Comcast, requires employees 
who are on call to keep the company vehicle within easy access for dispatch.  Mr. 
Llewellyn said he is on call once a month for seven days.  He is also classified as a 
home garage technician and in that capacity, he must be available for dispatch 24/7, 
365 days a year to service Oakland or Macomb Counties. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn addressed the cost estimate to expand the existing garage to 
accommodate a third vehicle.  He indicated the estimate is approximately $20,000, 
and further explained the garage would be oversized because of the required 
clearance to accommodate the vehicle. 
 
Mr. Courtney expressed that an oversized garage might be more of an eyesore than 
a well-hidden truck on the premises. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

10 
 

Mr. Clark stated it appears that existing mature landscaping obscures the truck from 
view of most passers-by.  Mr. Clark asked the size of the applicant’s lot. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn replied that his lot is almost one acre in size. 
 
Mr. Kneale asked if the applicant has a vehicle on the premises only when he is on 
call. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn replied in the negative.  He said the only time there is no commercial 
vehicle on the premises is when he is on vacation.  Mr. Llewellyn explained that he 
is required to be on call 7 days out of each month; and further, in the capacity of a 
home garage technician, he is on call 24/7, 365 days. 
 
Mr. Forsyth reminded the Board the matter before them is a temporary parking 
request for a commercial vehicle, and to apply standards in Section 43.74.00 to 
reach their determination. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dean Cox of 425 E. Lovell, Troy, was present to speak in favor of the request.  Mr. 
Cox said he also submitted a written communication stating he had no objections to 
the request.  Mr. Cox said the truck is barely visible to adjacent homeowners and 
causes no problems to the neighborhood. 
 
Chair Lambert stated there are two communications on file from neighbors indicating 
they have no objections to the request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-011 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To approve the request for two years. 
 
 The applicant meets Standards B and C of Section 43.74.01. 
o Standard C – The commercial vehicle does not negatively impact adjacent 

residential properties; nor does it negatively impact pedestrian and vehicular 
movement. 

o Standard B – A garage addition would be unsightly because of the necessity 
to make the clearance higher. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated it is evident the petitioner keeps a very well maintained home and 
configures the commercial vehicle to be nearly invisible to adjacent homeowners 
and passers-by.  Mr. Bartnik said it is his opinion that the employer should be in front 
of the Board with commercial vehicle requests.  He said it appears that Comcast 
requires their employees and independent contractors to keep commercial vehicles 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

11 
 

at their residences and, in doing so, imposes the violation of local zoning ordinances 
upon their employees and independent contractors. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAN SIMIONESCU, 691 OTTAWA – In order to continue 
the presence of previously constructed accessory buildings, 1) a 1255 square foot 
variance to the requirement that the combined ground floor area of all detached 
accessory buildings not exceed 450 square feet plus 2% of the total lot area, 2) a 1.5 
foot variance to the requirement that a detached accessory building be at least 6 feet 
from a side lot line, and 3) approval to use some of the buildings as barns. 
 
SECTIONS:  40.56.03 (C), (D), (F) 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning and requested variances.  Mr. 
Evans gave a brief history of the property and identified that there are six detached 
accessory buildings, of which the City currently has construction permits for the 
second garage and barn.  He said the remaining detached structures are a small 
manure cover, an element shelter, and several coops for fowl and other types of 
animals.   
 
Mr. Evans explained the two formulas in the same Section of the Zoning Ordinance 
that regulate the aggregate total amount of square footage for detached accessory 
buildings.  He noted that the Public Hearing notice advertised that the combined 
floor area of all detached accessory buildings shall not exceed 450 square feet, plus 
2% of total lot area, requiring a 1,255 square foot variance.  Mr. Evans stated the 
second formula allows the applicant 2,336 square feet of accessory floor area, 
requiring a 1,146 square foot variance.  He said the calculations differ somewhat 
from previously approved variances because the barn under consideration at the 
time was actually constructed a little bit smaller. 
 
Mr. Evans briefly addressed the 1.5 foot setback variance required for the existing 
chicken coop and the applicant’s request to keep the existing barns. 
 
Brian Carrier, attorney, of 45670 Village Blvd., Shelby Township, was present to 
represent the property owner.  Mr. Carrier addressed the previously granted 
variance for the construction of the barn.  He noted that since that approval, there 
have been no additional buildings constructed.  He stated further that there is a 
reduction in the square footage of accessory floor area because the goat shelter is 
removed and the barn was constructed smaller than originally approved. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

12 
 

Mr. Carrier said the property owner is in front of the Board this evening to allow a 
variance for the detached accessory buildings that have already been in existence; 
i.e., element shelter, chicken coop, pigeon coop, additional coop and manure cover.  
He noted that the property owner has already obtained permits and variances for the 
house, the garages and the barn.   
 
Mr. Carrier cited the square footage of the following detached accessory buildings: 
 element shelter, 370 square feet 
 chicken coop, 120 square feet 
 pigeon coop, 28 square feet 
 coop, 20 square feet 
 manure cover, 64 square feet 

 
He indicated that a 542 square foot variance is requested this evening; 602 square 
feet, less the 60 square feet for the barn that was constructed smaller than originally 
planned. 
 
Mr. Carrier referenced a petition signed by surrounding property owners stating they 
have no objections and are in agreement with the requested variances.  He said the 
only objection to the requests is the neighbor residing at 761 Ottawa.  Mr. Carrier 
stated the detached accessory buildings are not visible to the adjacent homeowners.  
He referenced a photograph of the element shelter and briefly addressed its 
purpose.  The shelter would provide dry ground for the animals during inclement 
weather and cleaning of stalls. 
 
Chair Lambert asked the applicant if he had contact with the neighbor to the west. 
 
The property owner, Dan Simionescu, was present and said the neighbor to the west 
is elderly, never comes out of her home and he did not want to trouble her. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the applicant if he would have any objection to a Resolution that 
covers all the detached accessory buildings. 
 
Mr. Carrier replied that would be his preference.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  
 
Chair Lambert acknowledged receipt of a petition signed by approximately fifteen 
neighbors in favor of the request, and one written objection from a neighbor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Evans advised the Board the Planning Department became aware of the matter 
as a result of a resident bringing the matter to the attention of City Council at one of 
their Regular meetings.  Mr. Evans said research found no minutes or plans on 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

13 
 

record that grant approval of all the existing detached accessory buildings on this 
property.  He indicated if the applicant is successful this evening, it would validate all 
the structures on site. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked that the record reflect he visited the subject property today and 
spoke with the petitioner, at which time the property owner stated the buildings were 
present as of 2001.  Mr. Bartnik said the structures appear to be long standing 
structures and the property can support the structures.  He sees no problem with the 
existing state of affairs and is in favor of granting the petition. 
 
Mr. Kneale suggested to view aerial photography to see what structures existed.   
 
Mr. Evans displayed 1990 and 2002 aerial photographs.  It was difficult to determine 
from the aerial photography which structures existed at that time.   
 
Mr. Strat said he likes the existing environment and is in favor of the request.  He 
addressed legislation of every parcel in the City. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-012 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To approve this variance, as written. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the property is large enough to support all the buildings. 
 The variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding properties. 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 

Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, JEFF GLASER, OUR CREDIT UNION, 6693 ROCHESTER 
– A variance from the requirement that a 6 foot high obscuring wall be provided to 
the residentially zoned properties north and west of the subject location. 
 
SECTION:  39.10.01 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the location, surrounding zoning, history of the property and 
the applicant’s request for a permanent variance. 
 
Chair Lambert referenced an email communication from a neighbor residing at 947 
Hannah, requesting pine trees to obscure vehicular headlights of bank customers 
during evening hours. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

14 
 

It was noted that 947 Hannah is south of the credit union.  Mr. Evans stated there is 
no requirement to provide a screen wall to the south because of the street 
separation between the properties. 
 
Mr. Kneale acknowledged a past business relationship with the applicant.  He said 
he has not seen the applicant for years and is comfortable hearing and acting on the 
agenda item. 
 
The Board members agreed there was no reason for Mr. Kneale to recuse himself.   
 
Jeff Glaser from Our Credit Union, 6693 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Glaser briefly addressed the working relationship with the Planning Commission and 
the Board of Zoning Appeals with respect to providing a landscaped buffer for 
residential.  Mr. Glaser said they want to be a good neighbor.  He addressed various 
lighting of the building and premises, hours of operation, existing landscape and 
vegetation.  He believes building a wall to the north and west would take away from 
the beauty of the area.  Mr. Glaser addressed the existing vegetation with the 
changes of seasons. 
 
Mr. Glaser addressed the communication from the resident at 947 Hannah.  He 
indicated that he personally has driven around the drive-through area during evening 
hours and does not see how headlights could possibly reach residents on Hannah.  
Mr. Glaser indicated the resident on Hannah approached the construction supervisor 
during the construction phase with similar concerns.  The credit union offered to 
plant trees on his property and/or along the lot line.  Mr. Glaser said he assumed 
everything was resolved but the resident did not respond to that offer. 
 
Doug Clark, project developer, from The Case Group, 28175 Haggerty, Novi, was 
present.  Mr. Clark addressed the buffer to the west in relation to the building angle 
and drive-through.  He noted the buffer is over six lots wide and vegetation is not yet 
at full maturity.  Mr. Clark addressed the various stages of vegetation with the 
seasons. 
 
Mr. Glaser stated the credit union has been in operation since December 6, 2010. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested consideration of a permanent variance would be more 
appropriate after the credit union has been in operation for three years. 
 
Mr. Forsyth requested a time to research the Zoning Ordinance with respect to the 
number of years of operation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Marc Himelstein of 754 Sandalwood Drive, Troy, was present to represent the 
Sandalwood Condominium Association.  Mr. Himelstein asked for consideration to 
construct a six-foot wall as a buffer to the north for at least three years while the 
business develops.  He addressed concerns of Sandalwood homeowners with 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

15 
 

respect to noise and safety.  Mr. Himelstein said the homeowners have no 
objections to waiving the wall to the west. 
 
Mr. Courtney informed Mr. Himelstein that the Board would not require the applicant 
to put up a wall on the pretense of taking it down three years later.  He asked if the 
noise might be coming from Rochester Road instead, and indicated a wall is not a 
good deterrent for noise. 
 
Mr. Himelstein said the noise complaints are from those residents living in the front 
of the building, and they fully understand that a wall is not a perfect solution but at 
least it would provide another barrier for safety. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Location of condominium units in relation to credit union. 
 Detention pond in relation to credit union and condominiums. 
 Discussion/communication between condominium association and credit union. 
 Safety of children; near Rochester Road, detention pond, credit union parking lot. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Forsyth said it is at the Board’s discretion to waive the wall.  He cited Section 
39.10.04 uses the word “may”; the wall could be permanent or more of a temporary 
nature as proposed by Mr. Courtney. 
 
Mr. Courtney said the section refers to “after a three year period”, and in this 
instance the variance has been granted for three years even though the variance 
was granted under different ownership.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02- 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance for one year, to allow more time to determine 
whether a wall should be constructed.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The conditions remain the same.  
 Allow sufficient time for residents to the north to determine whether a wall is 

necessary or not. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik expressed concern for residents to the north.  He said the building looks 
completely different from when it was originally reviewed.  
 
Mr. Courtney agreed the building is different from what was originally reviewed. 
 
Mr. Clark said he agrees with a one year renewal.  He addressed the concerns of 
the residents to the north, 24-hour ATM window, vehicular headlights and litter.  Mr. 
Clark suggested in the future that the condominium association forward a formal 
resolution to the Board stating their concerns. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

16 
 

Mr. Evans suggested postponing the item to a date certain as an alternative solution 
to granting a variance for one year.  
 
A short discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would like to withdraw the west wall from the Resolution on the 
floor.  His intent is to offer a following Resolution to grant a permanent variance for 
the required wall on the west.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02- 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant a variance for one year for the required wall to the north. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Glaser addressed potential for litter on the property.  He said the credit union 
produces as little paper as possible for security and cost reasons.  Mr. Glaser 
addressed the wall to the north in relation to the elevation of the condominium units, 
noise, safety and traffic.   
 
Chair Lambert asked if the applicant would prefer to postpone the item to allow time 
to address the condominium association concerns. 
 
Mr. Glaser said he is amenable to the wishes of the Board.  He said he is not sure 
anything short of a wall would be satisfactory to the residents. 
 
Mr. Himelstein offered an invitation to the applicant to attend their annual board 
meeting held in the summer. 
 
There was a brief discussion on granting a six month variance or postponing the 
item for six months. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2011-02-013 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To postpone action on the required wall to the north to the August 16, 2011 
Regular meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Evans announced with a postponement that notification to the public is not 
required.  
 
Chair Lambert stated the motion to postpone takes precedence over the other 
motions on the floor. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on March 8, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-010 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-011 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 8, 2011 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 965) – Proposed Alpha 

Dental Center, 405 E. Maple Road, Northeast Corner of Maple and Kirkton, Section 
27, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a brief review of the application.  He addressed the surrounding 
zoning, parking, site access and landscaping.  Mr. Branigan also addressed three 
variances sought by the applicant and granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. 
Branigan said the proposed project fully complies with all applicable requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance and recommended approval of the Preliminary Site Plan. 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:35 p.m.] 
 
Arthur Kalajian, project architect, of 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Kalajian stated a revised site plan and photometric plan were submitted to the 
Planning Department.  He displayed a colored rendering of the proposed 
development.  Mr. Kalajian addressed revisions to the site plan as a compromise to 
accommodate requests from the neighbor to the north.  He indicated everything 
practical was done to accommodate the neighbor.  Mr. Kalajian believes the 
development would be an asset to the City and requested a favorable decision by 
the Board. 
 
There was a brief conversation on the photometric plan with respect to minor light 
spillage to the east.  Mr. Kalajian assured the members that appropriate 
modifications would be made.  Mr. Branigan noted a photometric plan is not 
required at preliminary review. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the Planning Department received appropriately sealed site 
plans with the initial submission. 
 
Messrs. Savidant and Branigan confirmed the Preliminary Site Plan application 
meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Chair Hutson opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Richard Taubman of 32255 Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, was present 
on behalf of Dr. Robert Sklar, the neighbor to the north at 415 E. Maple.  Mr. 
Taubman announced an appeal to the variances granted by the Board of Zoning 
Appeals was filed with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  He asked Board 
members to consider a postponement of the matter until a decision by the Circuit 
Court, or to consider approval contingent upon the Court decision. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

Chair Hutson stated the City has not been notified to date of any Court injunction of 
the matter.  He said the Planning Commission has an obligation to proceed with the 
matter and is prepared to approve the Preliminary Site Plan application as 
submitted. 
 
Mr. Taubman further asked the Planning Commission’s consideration of the 
potential for overflow parking to his client’s parking lot.  He said the site plan might 
technically meet all code requirements, but the potential for overflow parking is 
imminent based on the number of examining rooms proposed. 
 
Chair Hutson replied the Board would take that into consideration. 
 
Mr. Motzny said there is no reason for the Planning Commission not to proceed and 
take action on the matter.  He clarified a postponement could be considered only if 
the request to postpone was from the applicant. 
 
Chair Hutson closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-012 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Alpha Dental Center, located 
on the Northeast corner of Maple and Kirkton (405 E. Maple), in Section 27, within 
the O-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Maxwell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT  (File Number 
ZOTA 236) – Proposed Draft Zoning Ordinance and Map Regulating the 
Development and Use of Land, which Ordinance, if Adopted, will Repeal and 
Replace the Existing Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
 
Mr. Savidant voiced his appreciation to all involved in the comprehensive rewrite of 
the Zoning Ordinance.  He said attendance at the March 2nd Zoning Ordinance 
Workshop was an interesting cross section of guests whose comments and insight 
were welcomed. 
 
Mr. Savidant’s PowerPoint presentation highlighted the following features of the 
Zoning Ordinance rewrite: 
 Changes to make document easier to use. 
 Changes to expedite review and approval for development applications. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2011 
  
 
 

4 
 

 Changes advanced by the Master Plan. 
 Changes advanced by Planning Commission. 
 Changes advanced by Staff or CWA. 
 Changes required to comply with the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act and other 

laws. 
 
Mr. Savidant noted that in summary, the proposed new Zoning Ordinance:  
 Implements the Master Plan. 
 Is easier to use. 
 Protects single family residential. 
 Offers a wider range of uses permitted in many districts. 
 Increases potential and marketability. 
 Creates three Form Based Districts. 
 Initiates faster approvals for many applications. 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a hands-on demonstration of the web-based Zoning Ordinance. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dennis Cowan of Plunkett Cooney, 38505 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was 
present as a representative for White Chapel Cemetery.  He posed questions with 
reference to White Chapel Cemetery in relation to its zoning under the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance and potential future expansion in the newly proposed 
neighborhood node. 
 
Mr. Carlisle indicated the proposed Zoning Ordinance provides a mechanism for 
interpretation of cemetery and similar uses, and stated a rezoning request would be 
the procedure to follow for potential expansion of the use. 
 
Mr. Cowan asked the timetable of the approval process to adopt the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Chair Hutson replied the intent is to have a final draft and Public Hearing copy 
complete within the next two weeks, at which time a Public Hearing date would be 
scheduled for City Council action. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Messrs. Branigan and Savidant discussed the Zoning Ordinance “roll-out” upon its 
adoption by City Council.  Mr. Savidant said tutorial sessions would be offered for 
various Boards and Committees. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2011 
  
 
 

5 
 

There was discussion on creating a use group specifically for cemeteries and 
similar uses.  It was determined to make no changes at this time to the draft Zoning 
Ordinance in this respect. 
 
Mr. Savidant led discussion on the following:   
 
 Modification of provisions related to solar and wind energy equipment. 
o It was determined to remove paragraph “C” Lot Coverage, under Section 

12.05, Solar Structures and Easements. 
 Parking of recreational vehicles in front yards. 
o There was a consensus not to revise the proposed language. 

 Future zoning of a parcel north of Big Beaver, west side of John R, from MR 
Multi-Family Residential (proposed) to CB Community Business. 
o Property owner should apply for a rezoning request. 
o Planning Department to research correlation of R-EC zoning district to MR 

zoning district. 
 Section 5.02.A.2 – Add “e”, “An addition to or expansion of an existing building, 

that does not increase its non-conformity.” 
o There was a consensus to add “e”. 

 Section 8.03.C, 9, – To eliminate the words “associated with a residential 
development”. 
o It was a consensus to leave the wording as is:  Construction of an entrance 

feature associated with a residential development. 
 Section 8.03.C – Add “16”, “Any building, structure or use permitted by right in a 

non Form-Based Code District that meets all requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.” 
o It was determined not to add “16”. 

 Section 4.15.D.4 – Parking in front of buildings in IB. 
o It was determined to allow parking with a caveat (to be specified). 

 
There was discussion on which applications would go through administrative 
approval or Planning Commission approval.  Mr. Carlisle stated that any changes 
affecting the role of the Planning Commission at this juncture in the approval 
process of the proposed draft Zoning Ordinance would require another Public 
Hearing. 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 





 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - DRAFT March 10, 2011 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, March 10, 2011, in the 
Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 7:05 
P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan  
   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Wheeler (arrived at 7:15 pm) 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director  
   
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2011-03-01 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, 
January 13, 2011, be approved with one change.  
 
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2011-03-02 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Zembrzuski  
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, March 10, 2011, meeting be approved as 
written. 
  
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—none.  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Zembrzuski stated that Mr. Jones, who had attended the January 
LAB meeting and asked what could be done to save the library, did not attend the next city council 
meeting that occurred on January 17, as she had recommended. Duggan suggested that perhaps he 
had attended another meeting, or had contacted city council members via phone or email. 
 
OLD BUSINESS—None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Schedule of future LAB meetings—Russ informed the LAB that the May and June LAB 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1i



 2 

meetings would take place at the Community Center. The library will be closed to the public by 
that time, and per the Open Meetings Act, the LAB meetings need to be accessible to the 
public. She will inform the LAB members at to the exact location in the Community Center as 
soon as it is determined.  Members of the LAB discussed the need for an April meeting.  
 

Resolution #LB-2011-03-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski  
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board meeting, scheduled for Thursday, April 12, be 
cancelled.  
 
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—given by B. Duggan, was received and filed. 
C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report— none available 
D. Gifts—none. 
E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments—for January and February were discussed 

 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M.  
 
The next meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, May 12, at 7 pm.  
     
 _____________________________________ 

Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
Cathleen Russ  
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                      MARCH 14, 2011  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 
14, 2011 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to order at 
7:10 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
     
 ABSENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 

Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert, Godlewski, Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2011-03-005  
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Ehlert, Godlewski, and 
Ukrainec at the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of March 14, 2011 be 
EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, Ukrainec 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 7, 2011 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2011-03-006 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Payne 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-1j



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                      MARCH 14, 2011  

 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the February 7, 2011 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, Ukrainec 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Mr. Pizza, Inc. requests to Transfer All Stock Interest in 2010 SDD and 

SDM Licensed Business, located at 4973 Livernois, Troy, MI  48098, 
Oakland County, wherein Amira Shemami transfers 10,000 shares of stock 
to new stockholder, Najib Jr. Najib Shemami  {MLCC Req. #572153}. Mr. 
Pizza is on the southwest corner of Long Lake and Livernois. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Najib Shemani, Jr. 
 
Mr. Shemani informed the Committee that this is a family business.  He has been 
involved in the business for approximately 12 years and is purchasing it from his 
mother whose health has declined. 
 
Officer Feld reported that the Police Department’s investigation of Mr. Shemani 
resulted in various items.  There were several fines from the MLCC for non-
sufficient fund checks.  Mr. Shemani explained that these were the result of poor 
bookkeeping practices when his mother became ill.  The investigation also showed 
that Mr. Shemani was arrested a few times, but there were no convictions on any 
of the charges.  Officer Feld also stated that in August of 2010 the MLCC issued a 
violation which could have resulted in a suspension of the liquor license.  The 
business resolved the matter in a timely fashion and no action was taken against 
the license.   
 
Officer Feld also reported that there have been two sales-to-minors violations 
since 1996 when the current owners purchased the business. 
 
Resolution #LC2011-03-007 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Mr. Pizza, Inc. to Transfer All Stock Interest in 2010 SDD and SDM Licensed 
Business, located at 4973 Livernois, Troy, MI  48098, Oakland County, wherein 
Amira Shemami transfers 10,000 shares of stock to new stockholder, Najib Jr. 
Najib Shemami be APPROVED. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                      MARCH 14, 2011  

 Page 3 of 3 

Yes:  4 
No:  0  
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski, Ukrainec 
 
 
Officer Feld advised the Committee on the following: 
 
Simbad, Inc. 
This request for new permit will likely be withdrawn. 
 
Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. 
This outdoor service area should appear on next month’s Agenda. 
 
Billy Casper Golf – Sanctuary Lake 
This is a license transfer and should appear on next month’s Agenda. 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised the Committee that City Council elected 
to not hold liquor violation hearings this year.  The City Attorney’s office sent 
letters to each of the businesses that had received violations.  They are required to 
re-train their employees in either TIPS or TAMS, and forward verification of that 
training to Officer Feld. 
 
Ms. Lancaster also stated that Crank’s Catering was apparently the low, qualified 
bidder for the City Caterer bid, and the proposed bid and agreement are 
scheduled to go to City Council for approval at either the March 28, 2011 meeting 
or shortly thereafter.  It is her understanding that an Open House will be held for 
the community. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 16, 2011 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – February 2011  

 
 
Background 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use BidCorp with the 
provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and 
implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network), which can be accessed through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement 
website used by the City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. Farmington Hills, 
Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line auction website.  It was a Purchasing goal to 
have one e-procurement website operational for all functions. 
 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, one (1) Epson scanner; one 
(1) microform reader; one (1) video selector; one (1) Sony video monitor; one (1) Pitney Bowes mail machine; 
one (1) ladder; one (1) wheel chair; one (1) lot lawn ornaments; three (3) hydraulic floor jacks; three (3) fishing 
poles and casters; one (1) lot iPod Touch and iTunes gift cards; one (1) king size comforter set; four (4) lots 
Playstation 3 games; two (2) lots XBox 360 games; three (3) lots Sony memory sticks; one (1) lot chainsaw bars 
and chains; one (1) electric griddle; two (2) lots Boy’s clothing; one (1) lot women’s jeans; one (1) lot girls and 
women’s coats; one (1) lot men’s jeans; two (2) lots women’s dresses; four (4) lots women’s shirts; one (1) lot 
women’s skirts; one (1) HP laserjet printer and cartridge; one (1) lot CCTV Video cameras; five (5) Dell 
computers; one (1) Dell laptop; two (2) TV / VCR combination; and one (1) lot Packard Bell speakers all 
auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from February 8, 2011 and closed by, 
February 16, 2011.   
 
The sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. (Chapter 7, Sec 8)   
 
Recommendation 
This agenda item reports final results of February 2011 auctions to City management. No action is required. 
 
Funding Considerations -  
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS  NET INCOME 

 Scanner, monitor, clothing, games, computers, etc.    $             2,472.24              
   

 FEES:  
5% (Scanner, monitor, clothing, games, computers, etc) Fee             ($ 123.61)    

 Sales Tax +6%,(Scanner, monitor, clothing, games, etc) $               148.33  
   

     $      2,496.96 
 
G:\Purchasing\Auction - Reports\20110328 Agenda-Departmental Reports – Purchasing Department Final Reporting – Bidnet on-line Auction Services – February 2011 –
Misc.pdf  

bartholotl
Text Box
N-2a









 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:               March 23, 2011              
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   
 
Subject: Three Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
 
 
 
 
Please find attached, the Three Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
report for your review and consideration. This item will appear as a regular business item on the April 
4, 2011 regular City Council meeting agenda.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact one of us.  As a point of information, the current 
year estimates and the 2011-12 Budget will be covered in much more detail during the budget study 
sessions already scheduled for April 25 and May 2, 2011.  In addition, please know that ICMA’s 
recommendation to restore 4 police officer positions in FY 2013/14 will need to be addressed in our 
budget discussions on May 2, 2011.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:JML/bt\my documents\Budget\2011-12\Revised Three Year Budget-Spring Update\Memo - Three Year 2010-11 to 2012-13 Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-2b



 

 
 
 
 

Delete text and place photo here. 

 
 
 
 

Michigan 

22001100//1111--  22001122//1133    
BBuuddggeett  

 
 
 
 

Three Year (2010/11-2012/13) Revised Budget  
Spring 2011 Update 



 
 

1 
 

THREE YEAR (2010-11 THROUGH 2012-13) 
REVISED BUDGET 

SPRING 2011 UPDATE 
 
 

2010/11-  
2012/13
Budget 
  

 
March 23, 2011 
 
 
REVENUE TRENDS 
 
PROPERTY TAXES - The original projected taxable value reductions for 2011-12 
and 2012-13 were 10.6% and 4.8% respectively. The revised reductions are 8.5% for 
2011-12 and 7.0% for 2012-13. The residential class is realizing a lesser reduction, 
which is being offset by a larger reduction in commercial and industrial classes of 
property. 
 
LICENSES & PERMITS – The permit activity has picked up, we are projecting a 39% 
increase in this revenue source from the depressed results of the past two years. The 
2010-11 estimates are calling for a $200,000 increase over the original budget. 
 
STATE GRANTS – We are using the constitutional amount for budget purposes. We 
feel that we are well positioned to receive additional funding based on best practices, 
but are a little hesitant to budget that additional revenue until all the details are 
worked out in Lansing. 
 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES – Reflects the reduction of $250,000 from no longer 
providing winter maintenance to county roads. The Community Center revenues 
have been recalibrated to provide for a breakeven operation of that facility.  
 
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN - This revenue source contains transfers in from the 
Capital Projects Fund in the amounts of $1,500,000 for 2011-12 and $2,228,000 for 
2012-13. These amounts became available by cancelling funding for the trail system, 
civic center site improvements and new park development funds. 
 
RE-APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE – The 2011-12 Budget will require a 
$2.2 million re-appropriation of fund balance compared to an original estimate of $1.8 
million. The 2012-13 Budget calls for a re-appropriation of $.8 million the same 
amount as originally estimated. It should be noted that the 2012-13 re-appropriation 
is coming entirely from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance. The original 
budget estimate had $250,000 coming from the Volunteer Firefighter Incentive 
Reserve Fund Balance. We will not have to use that reserve because the General 
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance has the necessary funds. By utilizing the above 
mentioned amounts the percentage of the Unassigned Fund Balance to the General 
Fund budget will be approximately 18.5% at June 30, 2011 and 17.9% at June 30, 
2012. The utilization of fund balance to balance a budget means that you have a 
deficit spending plan or in other words your operating expenses are more that your 
operating revenues. 
 



 
 

2 
 

THREE YEAR (2010-11 THROUGH 2012-13) 
REVISED BUDGET 

SPRING 2011 UPDATE 
 
 

2010/11-  
2012/13
Budget 
  

 
EXPENDITURE TRENDS  
 
PERSONAL SERVICES –The 2011-12 Budget reflects the reduction of 45 full-time 
positions after restoring seven positions (5 in Public Works and 2 in Parks), according 
to the ICMA recommendations. The 2012-13 Budget reflects the reduction of 17 full-
time positions (Lieutenant, 2-Sergeants,10-Police Officers,2-Police Service Aides, 
Record Clerk and Secretary) in the Police Department, according to Option 1. 
  
The 2011-12 defined benefit pension contribution has been reduced by 
approximately $300,000 for the 2009 actuarial estimate due to a favorable 
investment return for the year ending December 31, 2010. The actuary is currently 
working on our December 31, 2010 report and until that time we will not know the 
exact amount of our required contribution. The actuaries are also working on our bi-
annual retiree healthcare valuation and until those results are in we will not know the 
exact amount of our required contribution.  
 
Wage and benefit concessions were taken into consideration for all employee groups 
in accordance with Council’s direction of a 10% reduction of base salary/wage, 
pension, FICA, and workers compensation.   
 
LIBRARY, MUSEUM & NATURE CENTER -   These three facilities have only 
estimated holding cost budgeted for 2011-12 and 2012-13.  
 
SUMMARY – The revisions are mainly attributable to the funding of the Community 
Center operations that were removed from the original three year budget. The 
Community Center budget was included in the 2011-12 and 2012-13 budgets 
because of their ability to cover their operating cost without any subsidy from the 
General Fund. 



  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Account # and Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget
4000   Revenues
4401   Taxes
4402   Property Taxes                  34,072,009$    33,808,079$    30,500,000$    28,000,000$    26,000,000$    
4423   Mobile Home Tax                 1,500               2,015               1,500              2,000              2,000              
4427   Senior Citizen Housing              31,155             31,352             31,000            31,000            31,000            
4445   Tax Penalties and Interest        688,462           829,922           600,000          780,000          800,000          
4447   Administration Fee              1,694,329        1,691,147        1,490,000       1,350,000       1,256,000       
4401   Total - Taxes 36,487,455$    36,362,515$    32,622,500$    30,163,000$    28,089,000$    
4450   Licenses and Permits 
4451.20   Electric, Plumbing, Heat         6,690$             -$                -$                6,000$            6,000$            
4451.30   Builders -                  -                  2,000              2,000              2,000              
4451.40   Sign Erectors -                  -                  500                 500                 500                 
4451.50   Service Stations               175                  200                  -                  200                 200                 
4451.60   Amusements                     17,561             18,966             19,000            19,000            19,000            
4451.70   Other                          15,889             24,089             -                  20,000            20,000            

4450     Licenses and Permits 40,315$           43,255$           21,500$          47,700$          47,700$          

4451   Business Licenses and Permits
4476.10   Refrigeration and Air Conditioning 21,050$           -$                -$                -$                -$                
4476.15   Building                       775,859           626,807           600,000          900,000          900,000          
4476.20   Electrical                     85,029             91,246             100,000          140,000          140,000          
4476.25   Heating                        52,878             72,773             75,000            120,000          120,000          
4476.30   Plumbing                       52,942             52,369             60,000            90,000            90,000            
4476.35   Animal                         29,457             33,860             30,000            -                  -                  
4476.40   Sidewalks                      7,393               7,092               8,000              9,000              9,000              
4476.45   Fence                          2,455               1,984               3,000              2,000              2,000              
4476.50   Sewer Inspection               7,624               7,923               10,000            7,000              8,000              
4476.55   Right of Way                   8,450               3,700               10,000            10,000            10,000            
4476.60   Multiple Dwelling Inspection   20,325             24,124             28,000            35,000            35,000            
4476.65   Grading                        2,120               2,390               2,000              3,000              3,000              
4476.70   Fire Protection                61,301             60,832             60,000            60,000            60,000            
4476.75   Occupancy                      30,409             26,586             25,000            30,000            30,000            
4476.80   Sign                           35,724             33,196             40,000            35,000            40,000            
4476.85   Fireworks                           625                  750                  500                 500                 500                 
4476.90   Hazardous Materials            2,275               24,050             5,000              10,000            10,000            
4476.95   Miscellaneous                  960                  870                  2,000              1,000              1,000              
4476   Non-Business Licenses and Permits 1,196,876$      1,070,552$      1,058,500$     1,452,500$     1,458,500$     
4450   Total - Licenses and Permits 1,237,191$      1,113,807$      1,080,000$     1,500,200$     1,506,200$     

4501 Federal Grants 
4507 Domestic Preparedness 486$                1,050$             -$                -$                -$                
4510 Federal Grant- VEST                25,683             266                  12,000            12,000            12,000            
4512 MCOLES Police Academy          -                  78,546             5,600              -                  -                  
4524 Fed Grant - OHSP               7,145               1,967               -                  -                  -                  
4501 Total - Federal Grants 33,314$           81,829$           17,600$          12,000$          12,000$          
4539 State Grants 
4543.100      Criminal Justice      27,705$           25,535$           27,000$          27,000$          27,000$          
4543.120    911 Training          19,025             19,553             20,000            -                  -                  
4543.130    Oakland County NET       13,311             5,753               7,500              1,300              -                  

4543 State Grants Pub Safety 60,041$           50,841$           54,500$          28,300$          27,000$          

4566.LIBRARY  Library               50,856$           16,100$           15,000$          -$                -$                
4566 State Grants-Culture 50,856$           16,100$           15,000$          -$                -$                

GENERAL FUND
REVENUE SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT

2010/11 -
2012/13
Budget

3



  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Account # and Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget

GENERAL FUND
REVENUE SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT

2010/11 -
2012/13
Budget

4574.010      Homestead Exempt Reimbursement 3,435$             6,549$             5,000$            6,000$            6,000$            
4574.020      Liquor Licenses       60,667             66,258             68,000            68,000            68,000            
4574.030      Sales Tax             6,313,999        5,615,666        5,100,000       5,200,000       5,200,000       
4574 State Revenue Sharing 6,378,101$      5,688,473$      5,173,000$     5,274,000$     5,274,000$     
4539 Total - State Grants 6,488,998$      5,755,414$      5,242,500$     5,302,300$     5,301,000$     

4580 Contributions - Local
4582 Public Safety                   45,226$           13,317$           15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          
4587 Library-Penal Fines             108,261           103,327           100,000          -                  -                  
4588 Library-Mini Grants             2,700               5,000               -                  -                  -                  
4589 County-West Nile              30,058             18,035             -                  -                  -                  
4580 Total - Contributions - Local 186,245$         139,679$         115,000$        15,000$          15,000$          

4600 Charges for Services
4607.010      Animal Impounds       975$                1,050$             1,000$            -$                -$                
4607.015      Police Auto Crash Property Damage -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
4607.016      Police Injury Accident Recovery -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
4607.020      Building Board of Appeal 1,150               860                  1,000              1,000              1,000              
4607.025      Business Occupany Permit 200                  -                  7,500              4,000              7,500              
4607.030      CATV Franchise Fee    969,142           978,068           950,000          1,000,000       1,000,000       
4607.035      Police Fuel Surcharge -                  -                  -                  5,000              -                  
4607.040      Non Resident Library Card  19,600             17,200             16,000            -                  -                  
4607.045      Non Resident Internet 1,440               5,969               6,000              -                  -                  
4607.050      Miscellaneous         3,911               1,450               1,000              1,000              1,000              
4607.060      Museum Program Fees   61,558             61,674             10,000            -                  -                  
4607.064      Museum - Admission -                  14,320             5,000              -                  -                  
4607.066      Nature Center - Admission -                  10,308             10,000            -                  -                  
4607.070      Plan Review Fee       58,378             61,986             50,000            60,000            60,000            
4607.085      NSF Fees              12,406             10,425             12,000            12,000            12,000            
4607.090      P.U.D. Application Fee 12,728             7,090               15,000            6,000              6,000              
4607.095      Police Arrest Booking -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
4607.110      Site Plans            22,800             25,870             25,000            25,000            25,000            
4607.135      Telecom - METRO 234,277           240,426           230,000          240,000          240,000          
4607.140      Towing Fees           12,080             13,000             20,000            20,000            20,000            
4607.150      Vital Statistics      133,482           131,099           135,000          135,000          140,000          
4607.170      Zoning Board of Appeal 5,330               4,205               6,000              5,000              6,000              
4607.180      Zoning Fees           12,800             2,800               5,000              5,000              5,000              
4607 Charges for Services - Fees 1,562,257$      1,587,800$      1,505,500$     1,519,000$     1,523,500$     

4626.010      Cemetery-Open & Close 3,850$             3,500$             4,000$            3,000$            4,000$            
4626.020      Court Ordered Payment & In 12,259             4,875               12,000            10,000            10,000            
4626.030      County Road Maintenance 249,691           234,064           250,000          -                  -                  
4626.060      DPW Services          35,616             9,950               30,000            10,000            10,000            
4626.070      Duplicating & Photostat 40,668             40,146             40,000            38,000            38,000            
4626.080      Election Services     310                  3,878               100                 100                 -                  
4626.085      School Elections -                  -                  3,300              -                  -                  
4626.090      Engineering Fees      981,476           1,410,338        1,000,000       1,300,000       1,300,000       
4626.095      Inspections - Madison Heights 11,000             26,400             26,400            -                  -                  
4626.100      Landscape/Tree Preservation Plan 10,976             7,421               8,000              2,000              2,000              
4626.110      Microfilming          3,809               2,919               5,000              4,000              4,000              
4626.120      Miscellaneous         8,332               10,247             10,000            10,000            10,000            
4626.125      Passports 51,492             43,628             50,000            40,000            40,000            
4626.130      Police Services-Contractual 101,181           68,075             50,000            90,000            90,000            
4626.135      Police Service-Clawson       200,309           203,270           203,000          190,000          190,000          
4626.140      Police Inspection Reports   44,070             49,749             40,000            50,000            50,000            
4626.141      Police PBT 10,135             2,295               2,500              400                 1,000              

4



  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Account # and Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget

GENERAL FUND
REVENUE SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT

2010/11 -
2012/13
Budget

4626.145      Police APCO Training  -$                -$                5,650$            -$                -$                
4626.170      ROW Fees              9,540               68,407             10,000            10,000            10,000            
4626.210      Soil Erosion          21,570             12,080             30,000            15,000            15,000            
4626.220      Special Right of Way Maintenance    25,706             7,648               40,000            10,000            10,000            
4626.230      Weed Cutting          23,251             23,612             24,000            25,000            24,000            
4626 Charges/Services Rendered 1,845,241$      2,232,502$      1,843,950$     1,807,500$     1,808,000$     

4642.010      Abandoned Vehicles    26,274$           46,665$           50,000$          45,000$          50,000$          
4642.020      Auction Confiscated Property 13,048             24,483             20,000            20,000            20,000            
4642.050      Landscaping & Greenbelt -                  12,291             12,000            12,000            12,000            
4642.070      Miscellaneous         11,337             16,318             20,000            20,000            20,000            
4642.080      Printed Materials     2,476               1,246               1,000              1,000              1,000              
4642.100      Recreation & OEC Merchandise 35,725             30,886             15,000            -                  -                  
4642.115      Senior Store 14,903             16,309             20,000            -                  -                  
4642.120      Sign Installations    159                  87                    1,000              -                  -                  
4642.130      Smart Tickets         5,545               5,073               5,000              -                  -                  
4642.150      Tree Planting         2,880               2,810               2,800              2,800              2,800              
4642 Charges/Service - Sales 112,347$         156,168$         146,800$        100,800$        105,800$        

4651.040      Miscellaneous         14$                  -$                -$                -$                -$                
4651.050      Outdoor Education Center 55,872             60,395             15,000            -                  -                  
4651.074      Senior Citizen Activities 285,583           332,674           370,000          100,000          100,000          
4651.075      Community Center Passes      1,510,191        1,392,669        1,525,000       1,400,000       1,450,000       
4651.076      Community Center Swim Programs 234,586           252,774           230,000          240,000          250,000          
4651.077      Community Center Fitness Classes 79,630             69,341             92,000            60,000            70,000            
4651.078      Community Center Programs/Events 36,498             28,213             30,000            30,000            30,000            
4651.080      Summer Program        1,393,257        1,421,026        1,400,000       803,000          825,000          
4651 Charges/Service-Use/Administration 3,595,631$      3,557,092$      3,662,000$     2,633,000$     2,725,000$     
4600 Total - Charges for Services 7,115,476$      7,533,562$      7,158,250$     6,060,300$     6,162,300$     

4655 Fines and Forfeits 
4655.010      County Reimbursement-Court     345,751$         379,863$         400,000$        400,000$        400,000$        
4655.015      DMIF 189                  11,498             -                  2,000              2,000              
4655.020      Drug Forfeiture Proceed 270,304           379,962           270,000          200,000          200,000          
4655.022      Police Investigations Reimburse -                  71,002             68,000            62,000            68,000            
4655.030      False Alarms-Fire      9,400               35,250             26,000            30,000            30,000            
4655.040      False Alarms-Police    169,030           142,283           220,000          240,000          260,000          
4655.046      Federal Drug Forefeiture 6,382               1,170               39,270            30,000            30,000            
4655.050      Library-Book Fines     133,614           128,701           130,000          -                  -                  
4655.060      O.U.I.L Reimbursement     67,604             73,901             55,000            70,000            70,000            
4655.065      Civil Infractions      1,095               1,260               2,000              2,000              2,000              
4655.066      State Drug Forefeiture 48,634             505                  30,000            15,000            25,000            
4655.070      Bond Processing Fees 1,358               1,334               1,000              1,000              1,000              
4655 Total - Fines and Forfeits 1,053,361$      1,226,729$      1,241,270$     1,052,000$     1,088,000$     

4664 Interest and Rents
4667.010      Building Rent         242,213$         232,462$         250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        
4667.015      Communication Tower Rent 50,400             59,400             57,600            57,600            57,600            
4667.020      Concession Stand Rental 3,325               2,280               3,500              3,500              3,500              
4667.025      Community Center Rent 235,828           262,926           260,000          250,000          270,000          
4667.028      Flynn Park - Beaumont 15,000             15,000             15,240            15,240            15,240            
4667.030      Gazebo Rental         3,150               4,700               2,000              -                  -                  
4667.045      Library Café Rental   750                  4,520               4,500              -                  -                  
4667.050      Library Rent-AV       16,822             15,301             16,000            -                  -                  
4667.060      Library Rent-Books    2,315               1,704               2,500              -                  -                  
4667.075      Field Maintenance     53,058             50,999             50,000            30,000            40,000            

5



  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Account # and Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget

GENERAL FUND
REVENUE SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT

2010/11 -
2012/13
Budget

4667.085      Parking Lot (SMART)   176,918$         192,898$         185,000$        190,000$        190,000$        
4667.095      Tennis Bubble Rent    27,636             26,562             28,000            28,000            28,000            
4667 Rent Income 827,415$         868,752$         874,340$        824,340$        854,340$        

4669.020      Investment Income     718,807$         267,442$         300,000$        250,000$        275,000$        
4669 Investment Income 718,807$         267,442$         300,000$        250,000$        275,000$        
4664 Total - Interest and Rents 1,546,222$      1,136,194$      1,174,340$     1,074,340$     1,129,340$     
4671 Other Revenue
4675.040      Contributions-Library       -$                -$                1,000$            -$                -$                
4675.050      Contributions-Fire Dept     3                     -                  -                  -                  -                  
4675.060      Contributions-Miscellaneous          6,000               13,257             -                  2,000              2,000              
4675.070      Contrubutions-Museum 76,170             57,083             40,000            -                  -                  
4675.080      Contributions-Police Department            5,679               8,097               5,000              5,000              5,000              
4675.090      Contributions-Police - Recovery -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
4675.110      Contributions-Parks & Recreation           16,627             1,510               1,000              1,000              1,000              
4675 Total - Contributions - Private 104,479$         79,947$           47,000$          8,000$            8,000$            
4676 Reimbursements
4676.010      Reimbursements 5,428$             3,614$             12,220$          -$                -$                
4676 Total - Reimbursements 5,428$             3,614$             12,220$          -$                -$                

4677.226      Admin. Charges - Refuse     -$                50,000$           51,500$          53,000$          55,000$          
4677.301      Admin. Charges - Debt Services 46,440             50,000             51,500            53,000            55,000            
4677.584      Admin. Charges - Sylvan Glen 45,420             50,000             51,500            30,000            31,000            
4677.590      Admin. Charges - Sewer      124,000           150,000           195,000          201,000          207,000          
4677.591      Admin. Charges - Water      142,000           175,000           250,000          258,000          266,000          
4677.661      Admin. Charges - Motor Pool 39,000             50,000             51,500            53,000            55,000            
4677.731      Retirement System -                  25,000             25,000            25,000            27,000            
4677 Administrative Charges 396,860$         550,000$         676,000$        673,000$        696,000$        

4687.010      Refunds-Legal Fees 5,318$             -$                5,000$            -$                5,000$            
4687.040      Rebates               97,395             10,353             4,500              4,500              5,000              
4687 Refunds & Rebates 102,713$         10,353$           9,500$            4,500$            10,000$          

4671      Miscellaneous      93,151             189                  10,000            10,000            10,000            
4671 Other Revenues 702,631$         644,103$         754,720$        695,500$        724,000$        
4000 Total - Revenues 54,850,893$    53,993,832$    49,406,180$    45,874,640$    44,026,840$    
4695 Other Financing Sources
4699 Operating Transfer In
4699.101      Transfer From General  -$                -$                2,400,000$     2,165,131$     780,660$        
4699.202      Transfer From M/S Fund 2,417,128        1,678,007        1,887,960       1,742,850       1,800,000       
4699.203      Transfer From L/S Fund 1,505,421        1,628,568        1,721,940       1,662,080       1,700,000       
4699.243      Transfer From LDFA 10,000             50,000             50,000            50,000            50,000            
4699.248      Transfer From DDA      207,607           388,274           376,560          258,000          258,000          
4699.250      Transfer From Brownfield 10,000             1,198,310        25,000            25,000            25,000            
4699.257      Transfer From Budget Stabilization 54,113             300,000           305,000          305,000          305,000          
4699.401      Transfer From Capital 100,000           -                  -                  1,500,000       2,228,000       
4699.403      Transfer From Special Assessment -                  1,000,000        1,000,000       356,000          -                  
4699.590      Transfer From Sewer    704,200           627,160           666,350          652,820          706,000          
4699 Total - Operating Transfer In 5,008,469$      6,870,319$      8,432,810$     8,716,881$     7,852,660$     

4695 Total-Other Financing Sources 5,008,469$      6,870,319$      8,432,810$     8,716,881$     7,852,660$     

1010 Total-General Fund Revenues 59,859,362$    60,864,151$    57,838,990$    54,591,521$    51,879,500$    

Original Budget 52,203,240$    50,143,890$    
Revisions 2,388,281$     1,735,610$     

6



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget

Building Inspection                                           
Building Inspection 2,137,944$   1,882,269$   962,513$      1,198,914$   1,200,000$   
Total - Building Inspection 2,137,944$   1,882,269$   962,513$      1,198,914$   1,200,000$   

Council/Executive Administration                                           
Council 63,131$        55,895$        60,393$        58,142$        60,000$        
Manager 755,340        673,131        1,218,814     1,194,990     1,220,000     
Attorney 1,073,949     1,084,122     1,036,260     1,009,386     1,025,000     
Elections 267,624        200,256        263,367        218,618        264,000        
Clerk 475,399        495,823        478,760        362,369        360,000        
Human Resources 595,335        519,676        491,384        418,847        425,000        
Community Affairs 518,212        340,716        -                    -                -                
Total - Council/Executive Admin. 3,748,990$   3,369,619$   3,548,978$   3,262,352$   3,354,000$   

Engineering                                           
Engineering - General 2,432,591$   1,995,256$   1,900,946$   1,898,786$   1,935,000$   
Traffic Engineering 92,524          48,208          51,051          50,339          51,000          
Total - Engineering 2,525,115$   2,043,464$   1,951,997$   1,949,125$   1,986,000$   

Finance                                           
Accounting 1,146,827$   836,004$      765,140$      734,170$      748,000$      
Risk Management 3,253            252,133        177,236        184,016        188,000        
Independent Audit 62,157          61,225          64,000          58,000          59,500          
Purchasing 376,904        377,310        379,798        268,812        274,000        
Board of Review 4,661            3,035            2,925            2,925            3,000            
Treasurer 628,293        629,767        629,837        663,725        677,000        
Assessing 960,869        965,003        806,900        821,227        837,000        
Total - Finance 3,182,964$   3,124,477$   2,825,836$   2,732,875$   2,786,500$   

Fire                                           
Total - Fire 4,422,113$   4,263,605$   4,238,338$   4,214,198$   4,300,000$   

Library/Museum                                           
Library 3,689,222$   3,391,740$   2,259,670$   97,550$        99,500$        
Museum Buildings 459,021        494,416        199,773        56,960          58,000          
Museum Grounds 19,006          19,771          18,798          16,000          16,500          
Total - Library/Museum 4,167,249$   3,905,927$   2,478,241$   170,510$      174,000$      

 

GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURES HISTORY BY DEPARTMENT

2010/11 -
2012/13 
Budget

7



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget

 

GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURES HISTORY BY DEPARTMENT

2010/11 -
2012/13 
Budget

Other General Government                                           
City Hall 810,607$      785,460$      831,350$      740,200$      755,000$      
District Court 216,500        204,020        243,210        223,210        227,000        
Fire-Police Training Center 100,360        87,515          102,060        87,710          89,000          
Planning 642,046        606,635        678,306        731,544        746,000        
Planning Commission 24,722          18,590          19,581          15,035          15,500          
Board of Zoning Appeals 6,006            6,841            7,634            9,194            9,500            
Real Estate & Development 435,133        359,762        -                    -                -                
Total - Other General Government 2,235,374$   2,068,823$   1,882,141$   1,806,893$   1,842,000$   

Police                                           
Total - Police 24,482,227$ 24,756,774$ 27,049,630$ 27,873,319$ 24,626,000$ 

Parks & Recreation                                           
Total - Parks and Recreation 9,527,699$   8,197,645$   7,524,747$   6,081,411$   6,203,000$   
Streets                                           
Total - Streets 5,687,383$   4,844,712$   5,376,569$   5,301,924$   5,408,000$   

Total - General Fund 62,117,058$ 58,457,315$ 57,838,990$ 54,591,521$ 51,879,500$ 

Original Budget 52,203,240$   50,143,890$   
Revisions 2,388,281$     1,735,610$     

8



City of Troy

Net Taxable Value

Original Revised

1995 3.4$         

1996 3.5$         

1997 3.6$         

1998 3.8$         

1999 4.0$         

2000 4.1$         

2001 4.4$         

2002 4.6$         

2003 4.7$         

2004 4.8$         

2005 5.0$         

2006 5.1$         

2007 5.2$         

2008 5.3$         

2009 5.2$         

2010 4.7$         4.7

2011 4.2$         4.3

2012E 4.0$         4

$-

$1.0 

$2.0 

$3.0 

$4.0 

$5.0 

$6.0 

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012E

B

i

l

l

i

o

n

s

City of Troy
Net Taxable Value

Original

Revised

 9



City of Troy

Unassigned Fund Balance

1995 3.8$         

1996 5.4$         

1997 5.9$         

1998 9.1$         

1999 11.3$       

2000 11.5$       

2001 10.0$       

2002 9.7$         

2003 9.0$         

2004 8.2$         

2005 13.0$       

2006 11.2$       

2007 10.8$       

2008 8.7$         

2009 10.5$       

2010 10.7$       

2011E 10.1$       

2012E 9.3$         

$-

$2.0 

$4.0 

$6.0 

$8.0 

$10.0 

$12.0 

$14.0 

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011E 2012E

M

i

l

l

i

o

n

s

City of Troy - General Fund 
Unassigned Fund Balance

 10



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:     2/7/2011                         
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
Subject: RCOC snow and ice control contract expense report 3/1/11 
 
 
Background 
 
When the RCOC snow and ice control contract was approved by city council, city staff was requested 
to provide a monthly report on corresponding expenditures. 
 
Report 
 
The expenditures for snow and ice control on county roads under the RCOC contract are as follows. 
 
1/1/11 
Labor   $ 19,557  28% 
Salt   $ 40,307  57% 
Equipment  $ 10,202  15% 
Total   $ 70,066  100 % 
 
This expense is 28% of the total RCOC contract ($249,691). 
 
2/1/11 
Labor   $ 47,918 27% 
Salt   $ 97,546 56% 
Equipment  $ 30,346 17% 
Total            $175,810 100% 
 
This expense is 70% of the total RCOC contract ($249,691). 
 
3/1/11 
Labor   $  68,137 25% 
Salt   $146,302 54% 
Equipment  $  54,439  21% 
Total             $268,878  100% 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-2c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
This expense is 108% of the total RCOC contract ($249,691). The expenditure to date is 68% of the 
total budgeted for snow and ice control for county roads in 2010/11 budget. 
 
 
As of 3/1/2011 snow fall amounts have accumulated 51.5 inches. The annual average for Southeast 
Oakland County is 39 inches. We have received 132% of an average year snowfall to date.  
 
 
S:/Richnak Agenda Items–3.14.11 – RPT – RCOC snow and ice control contract expense report 3/1/11 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: March 24, 2011 
 
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
From: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
Subject: Update – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite 
 
 
 
A Zoning Ordinance Workshop was held in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall on 
March 2, 2011.  The intent of the workshop was to solicit input and answer questions from residents, 
designers, developers and real estate brokers on the proposed Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed Zoning Ordinance at their March 8, 
2011 Regular meeting.  The Planning Commission recommended adoption of the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance at their March 22, 2011 Special/Study meeting. 
 
City Council is authorized to adopt the proposed Zoning Ordinance.  A City Council public hearing is 
being scheduled for the April 18, 2011 Regular meeting.  The public hearing will be formally 
announced at the April 4, 2011 Regular meeting.  
 
A hard copy will be available for review at the Planning Department in Troy City Hall and the Troy 
Public Library.  An electronic web-enabled version of the document is available for review online on 
the Planning Department page of the City of Troy website, www.troymi.gov. 
 
 
cc: Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
RBS\G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 236 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite\CC Update Memo 03 28 2011.doc 
 
 

http://www.troymi.gov/
bartholotl
Text Box
N-2d



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 21, 2011 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Pamela Valentik, Economic Development Specialist  
 
Subject: Report on Oakland/Macomb Job Hub 2011 
 
 
Background 
 
During a quarterly meeting in 2010 of the Oakland County Economic Development Group, it 
was discussed the amount and significance of our individual communities’ economic 
development success stories for the year and the anticipated jobs these companies will create 
for the region.  Further discussion lead to information shared by some of the companies, that 
they were having a difficult time locating qualified talent.   In our continued efforts as economic 
developers to assist our businesses with their business development plans and promote good 
news for our region, the group decided to collaborate on a regional job fair.  Thus, the plan for 
the Oakland/Macomb Job Hub Event 2011 was developed. 
 
This job fair was to connect these companies with the educated workforce in our communities 
to create employment opportunities for our residents.  I ts purpose was also to showcase the 
positive developments coming to Southeast Michigan.   
 
The event was held on February 24th at the Oakland Center on t he campus of Oakland 
University.  T o focus our efforts, we recruited companies looking to fill technical and 
professional positions here in our region within the next six months.  Within four weeks, the 
planning committee had received registration for 76 companies to participate – more than any 
other local job fair within the past year.  City of Troy staff was actively involved in the 
coordination and delivery of this event.  We had 10 Troy companies participate in the event, 
looking to fill upwards of 600 positions this year.   
 
Below is a testimonial from a Troy company that participated in the event: 

“Wow! The Feb. 24th Oakland-Macomb Job Hub was the BEST ever my company 
(Detroit Engineered Products, Inc.) participated. Overall, it was a fabulous job 
fair. We received over 50 q ualified resumes for our currently pending 40+ 
positions. Thank you very much for the great hospitality. From the moment we 
entered the Oakland Center the welcome was warm and friendly. The registration 
process, breakfast & lunch, the floor set up was beyond our expectations. The 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-2e



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

entire event was well thought out, meticulously planned and executed. We are 
truly looking forward to your future Job Hub and similar events.” 

The event attracted approximately 1700 job candidates and received a lot of media coverage.  
Below is a testimonial from a Troy resident that attended the event: 

“The event was well organized, well publicized, and ef ficiently run, from the 
check in process to the placement of and access to employers throughout the 
facility.  The facility was excellent, the quality of employers present was excellent, 
the event was well publicized, and information was easily obtained.” 

The event was a t rue example of regional efforts to promote economic growth as the event 
was sponsored by the Cities of Troy, Auburn Hills, Rochester Hills, Southfield, Rochester, 
Madison Heights, Sterling Heights and Warren.  Our workforce development and education 
partners included Oakland University, Oakland Community College, Macomb Community 
College and the Michigan Works offices in Oakland and Macomb Counties, specifically the 
Troy Career Center as the lead office.  Credential Check (a Troy business) and Expectec were 
corporate sponsors.  The planning committee is currently awaiting more results from a survey 
sent to companies and participants but initial feedback from both groups is asking us to hold 
the event again in the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/pv\AGENDA ITEMS\03.28.11 – Job Hub report 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
March 24, 2011 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director  
 
Subject: Report on CMNtv Michigan Town Hall: State Budget Crisis 
 
 
CMNtv in conjunction with the Oakland Press and FOX 2 held a Michigan Town Hall on the 
State Budget Crisis at their Troy Studio on March 9, 2011.  The panel was Andy Meisner, 
Oakland County Treasurer; John Nixon, Michigan State Budget Director; L. Brooks Patterson, 
Oakland County Executive and John Szerlag, Troy City Manager.  Here is a brief synopsis 
from the program which went very well. 
 
John Nixon said:  “If you look at why John Szerlag and Troy are in good shape it’s because he 
has implemented a lot of best practices.  He’s done away with his defined benefit pension 
system, he’s done away with some of these areas which we need to encourage all cities, 
villages and towns to do, as well as the counties.  We’re sitting in one of the best managed 
counties in the country and I think that all the other counties -- or a lot of counties here in 
Michigan -- are not in such a good position.  Through our revenue sharing proposal we’ve 
reduced the statutory revenue sharing and we’re going to give back a significant amount if the 
cities, villages and towns implement best practices like the City of Troy has done already.   
 
Andy Meisner said:  In fairness, I think there have been a number of services at the local level 
and sometimes there’s duplication and different communities have shown a different 
willingness to kind of get out in front of this problem, certainly Troy is one that has (and Nixon 
interjects with an “absolutely”) … so I agree with the notion of letting these locals know that this 
is seriously “go” time.  I would just respectfully request that communities like Troy that have 
implemented those best practices be given credit in whatever structure you develop ... so that 
they are not penalized for having been forward thinking.” 
 
Nixon:    “Certainly … we won’t penalize good -managed cities.” 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\Word Files\ 03.28.11 – Town Hall Meeting 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-2f



bartholotl
Text Box
N-4a



1 
 

 
 
March 24, 2011 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
Subject: Implementation Schedule for Recommendations Advanced by the International City 

Management Association (ICMA) 
 
 
The Organizational Restructuring Study conducted by the International City Management Association 
(ICMA) was presented in two phases.  Phase one reviewed all departments with the exception of the 
Police department.  This phase also incorporated a comparative benefits review consisting of post 
retirement, health, pension, current salary, and benefits.  Phase two was a review of the Police 
department, and this was presented to us on March 21, 2011. 
 
In terms of the phase one recommendations, I conducted a series of meetings with all employees to 
explain the recommendations contained in the ICMA report as well as determine target dates for 
implementation with reference to restructuring the table of organization.  And it is here where I will 
begin. 
 
ICMA recommended a series of actions to take place by August of 2011.  They are listed below along 
with the corresponding status.   
 

1. Merge Park Maintenance with Street Maintenance 
 

We currently have a division of Streets and Drains as well as a Parks Maintenance division.  
Each division has a Superintendent, which is a management position.  These divisions will be 
merged on April 1, 2011 and by April 16, 2011 we will be down to one Superintendent. 
 

2. Move Building Operations into Public Works as a New Division 
 
Currently, the Department of Building Operations is a separate siloed department.  Moving 
Building Operations to Public Works means that all maintenance functions for the city will be 
ensconced in the Public Works department.  This move will take effect April 1, 2011. 
 
 
 

FROM THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-5



2 
 

 
 

3. Move Risk Management into Human Resources and Consolidate Human Resources and City 
Clerk into Finance and Administrative Services 
 
Currently the Human Resources director and City Clerk report to me.  Effective April 1, 2011, 
they will be reporting to the Assistant City Manager/Director of Finance and Administrative 
Services.  The rationale for doing this is that our Three Year Budget makes so many staff cuts 
to Human Resources, Purchasing and the City Clerk’s offices that they will become 
unsustainable as individual departments.  To this end, virtually all departments in the 
Administrative/Finance area need to be clustered so that employees can be cross-trained to do 
each other’s work.  There are two consequences to this.  One is that employees to be cross-
trained need to be in close physical proximity to each other and this will necessitate office 
relocation.  The second is that the Assistant City Manager will be spending more time 
managing the departments under his direction.   
 
The Risk Manager has already moved into the Treasurer’s office. 
 

4. Redeploy Assistant City Manager of Economic Development Services to Director of Economic 
and Community Development 

 
This will take effect April 1, 2011.  In addition, the Recreation division (which used to be the 
Parks and Recreation department) will be reporting to the Director of Economic and 
Community Development.  Also, the management position of Superintendent of Recreation 
has already been expunged and will not be replaced. 
 
The complete restructuring of our table of organization is attached.   
 
ICMA also recommended that we create a culture of continuous service improvement and 
select someone in our existing staff to act as coordinator.  This has already been 
accomplished by filling a budgeted vacancy of Assistant to the City Manager with someone 
having a master’s degree thereby making that position more managerial oriented as opposed 
to executive support oriented. 
 
We are currently in the process of prioritizing service report recommendations contained in the 
ICMA reports.  Once we have our recommendations, I will request a study session to engage 
your input on where we should proceed next.  As you recall, we have already analyzed 
alternative service delivery venues for the building inspection department, engineering 
department, planning department, ordinance enforcement, and golf course operations.  ICMA 
recommends that we initiate service optimization efforts within a time frame of six months to 
two years.  We are definitely going to beat that time horizon. 
 
 
 



3 
 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
c: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 Tim Richnak, Director of Public Works 
 Monica Irelan, Assistant to City Manager/Coordinator of Continuous Improvements 
 Department Heads 
 All Employees 
  

 
JS/bt\Szerlag\2011\To M&CC – Implementation Schedule for Recommendations Advanced by the International City Management Association (ICMA) 



appenDix	h: 	existing	anD	pRoposeD	oRganizational	ChaRts	 125

figuRe	1:	existing	organization

City	Manager

Community	
affairs

administrative	
assistant

administrative	
aide

fire police
human	

Resources
Clerk

assistant	
City	Manager

assistant	
City	Manager

purchasing it assessor
building	

operations
parks	and	
Recreation

finance
library/	
Museum

engineering planning
building	

inspections
public	works

economic		
Development

accounting

treasurer

Risk

park	Mtce

Recreation

streets/
Drains

fleet

water/sewer

Refuse/	
Recylcing

figuRe	2:	proposed	Restructuring

City	Manager

assistant	
to	City	Manager

administrative	
aide

fire police
(aCM)	finance	and	

administrative	services
public	works

economic	and	Community		
Development

finance

accounting

treasurer

hR

Risk

Clerk

purchasing

it

assessor

library/Museum

streets/Drains

fleet	Mtce.

water/sewer

Refuse/Recycling

building	
operations

park	Mtce

building	
inspection

engineering

planning

economic		
Development

Community	
affairs

Recreation


	20110328 - Agenda
	COVER MEMO
	VISIONS STATEMENT AND GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 No Certificates of Recognition or Special Presentations

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments:
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Agreement Between City of Troy and the Troy Historical Society for Management of the Troy Museum and Historic Village
	I-5 Transfer of Animal Control Services to Oakland County
	a) Inter-Local Agreement – Oakland County Animal Impound Amendment
	b) Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Services
	c) Rescinding Chapter 75 – Pet Shops
	d)  Amendment to Chapter 90 – Animals
	e) Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required


	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder - Park Restroom and Picnic Shelter Cleaning
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Greenstar & Associates, L.L.C. for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicle
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Lowest Bidder – Custodial Supplies
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs and Posts
	g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris
	h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance Program

	J-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-010
	J-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm Sewer and Surface Drainage from Gary F. and Brenda A. Abitheira - #88-20-02-129-023
	J-7 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from Woodside Bible Church of Troy - #88-20-02-151-005
	J-8 Request for Approval of Payment of BG’s LLC Relocation Claim – Rochester Road Improvement Project, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 30 – Sidwell #88-20-02-277-027
	J-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #44 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011.
	J-10 Request to Sell a City Owned Surplus Parcel located in Section 10, Sidwell #88-20-02-477-017 and Authorization to Hire an Independent Fee Appraiser
	J-11 Application for New Direct Connection-1 for The Neiman Marcus Group, Inc.
	J-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations
	J-13 Agreement Extension – Troy Community Center Catering Services

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Major Road Speed Limits:
	b) Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code


	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Traffic Committee-Final-August 18, 2010
	b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 23, 2010
	c) Library Advisory Board-Final-January 13, 2011
	d) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-February 8, 2011
	e) Planning Commission Regular-Final-February 8, 2011
	f) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-March 8, 2011
	g) Library Advisory Board-Draft-March 10, 2011
	h) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft- March 14, 2011
	i) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft- February 15, 2011
	j) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final- February 15, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – February 2011
	b) Three Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update
	c) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 3/1/11
	d) Update – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite
	e) Report on Oakland/Macomb Job Hub 2011
	f) Report on CMNtv Michigan Town Hall: State Budget Crisis

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted
	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	a) City of Huntington Woods Resolution Urging Regional Cooperation Regarding Detroit Water and Sewer Governance

	N-5  Implementation Schedule for Recommendations Advanced by the International City Management Association (ICMA)

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  Troy v. Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash) and Nancy Huntley Legal Guardian of Carolyn Huntley, a Protected Person v Troy,

	Q. ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED REGULAR and SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:




